
TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

Town Hall Council Chambers 
30 South Main Street 
Weaverville, NC 28787 

AGENDA 

May 20, 2019 
Public Hearings at 6:00pm 

Regular Meeting at 7:00 pm 

 Public comment will be permitted at the time of the discussion of the agenda items marked with an asterisk (*). The content and timing rules applicable 
to public comment at the opening of the Council Meeting shall also apply to comments on agenda items. Such public comment shall be permitted only 
after each of Town Council has been provided the opportunity to discuss the respective agenda item. 

Pg # Presenter 

1. Public Hearing: Annexation of Riverside Stump Dump and Zoning to R-12 .......................... 1 Planning Director 

2. Public Hearing: Conditional Zoning District for 37 Brown Street .......................................... 21 Planning Director 

Regular Meeting Agenda 

1. Call to Order ........................................................................................................................... Mayor Root 

2. Approval/Adjustments to the Agenda .................................................................................. Mayor Root 

3. Approval of Minutes ……………………………………………………………………………………..………............. Mayor Root 

A. April 9, 2019 Town Council Workshop ............................................................................... 
B. April 15, 2019 Town Council Regular Meeting ................................................................... 

52 
55 

4. Special Recognitions ............................................................................................................... Mayor Root 

5. General Public Comments …........……………………………………………...………………………….............. Mayor Root 

6. Consent Agenda ...................................................................................................................... Town Manager 

A. Proclamation Recognizing National Police Week ............................................................... 60 

B. Monthly Tax Report ............................................................................................................ 61 

C. Initial Consideration of Conditional Zoning District on the Property Commonly Known as 
108 Church Street ............................................................................................................... 63 

D. Resolution Concerning Minimal Taxes ............................................................................... 
E. Comprehensive Land Use Plan Update .............................................................................. 

73 
76 

F. Set Public Hearing on the Budget for June 11, 2019 at 6pm .............................................. 77 

7. Town Manager’s Report ........................................................................................................ 78 Town Manager 

8. Discussion & Action Items

A. Community Center Project: Final Approval of Plans * ....................................................... 82 John Legerton 

B. Action on Conditional Zoning District for 37 Brown Street ................................................ 
C. Action on Riverside Stump Dump Annexation & Initial Zoning .......................................... 

83 
99 

Planning Director 
Planning Director 

D. Update on Sale of Bus Garage * ......................................................................................... 103 Town Attorney 

E. Personnel-Related Policies and Proposed Policy & Procedures Manual * ......................... 110 Town Manager & 
Town Attorney 

F. Quarterly Report: Fire Department .................................................................................... 120 Fire Chief 

G. Quarterly Report: Police Department ……………………………………………………………………………. 123 Police Chief 

9. Adjournment ………………………………………………………......……………………………………………............ Mayor Root 



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

PUBLIC HEARING 
MEETING DATE:  May 20, 2018  

SUBJECT: Voluntary Annexation Petition and Initial R-12 Zoning for 
Riverside Stump Dump, Inc., Property at 135 Monticello Road 

PRESENTER:   Planning Director 

ATTACHMENTS: Notice of Public Hearing 
 Voluntary Annexation Petition 

Zoning Map Amendment Application 
Certificate of Sufficiency 
Planning & Zoning Board Recommendation 
Staff Reports 
 

 
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

Tonight’s public hearing is being held on a proposed voluntary contiguous annexation of 
the Riverside Stump Dump, Inc., property located at 135 Monticello Road and an initial 
zoning of R-12 if the property is annexed.  

The Town Clerk has certified the sufficiency of the annexation petition. The applications 
and other relevant materials including the staff reports are attached.  

The Planning and Zoning Board has reviewed the requested R-12 zoning designation and 
unanimously recommends this designation for the property should it be annexed. 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Town Council is asked to hear from the public on this voluntary contiguous annexation 
petition and the related initial zoning of R-12 prior to taking any action on this request. 

1



 
 

 
 

NOTICE OF SPECIAL CALLED MEETING  
AND PUBLIC HEARING 

 
Public Notice is hereby given that the Town of Weaverville Town Council will hold a special called 
meeting and public hearing on Monday, May 20, 2019 at 6:00p.m. or at such time as Council reaches 
the matter. This meeting will occur within Council Chambers at Town Hall located at 30 South Main 
Street, Weaverville, NC to consider the following item: 
 
Proposed Zoning Map Amendment related to a parcel of land known commonly by the parcel 
identification number 9733-62-6052, 135 Monticello Road. The application calls for the initial 
zoning of the property as R-12 pursuant to and contingent upon a voluntary annexation petition for 
the same parcel of land.   
  
If you would like additional information or to review the content related to the Public Hearing you 
may contact Planning Director and Deputy Town Clerk James Eller at 828-484-7002 or 
jeller@weavervillenc.org. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2

mailto:jeller@weavervillenc.org


 
 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING  
ON REQUEST FOR VOLUNTARY ANNEXATION 
AND INITIAL ZONING 
 
The public will take notice that the Town Council of the Town of Weaverville, North Carolina, has 
called a public hearing at 6:00 p.m. on May 20, 2019, in the Council Chambers at Town Hall located at 30 
South Main Street, Weaverville, NC, on the questions of annexing a +/- 19.5 acre tract of land owned by 
Riverside Stump Dump, Inc., located at 135 Monticello Road, into the Town of Weaverville, and providing 
an initial zoning designation of R-12 on the property should it be annexed. The property to be annexed is 
described in that deed recorded in Book 4900 at Page 1080, Buncombe County Registry, and is also 
identified as Buncombe County Parcel Number 9733-62-6052.  

The property owner initiated a voluntary annexation by filing a petition pursuant to N.C. General Statutes. 
All interested citizens are invited to attend the meeting and provide input during the public hearing. 

If you would like more information concerning the annexation petition and zoning request please contact 
Jennifer Jackson at jjackson@weavervillenc.org or by calling 828-645-7116. 
 
James Eller 
Weaverville Deputy Town Clerk 
 
Publication Dates:   
April 28, 2019 
 

3

mailto:jjackson@weavervillenc.org


CERTIFICATE OF SUFFICIENCY OF 
ANNEXATION PETITION 2019-1  

RIVERSIDE STUMP DUMP, INC., PROPERTY AT 
135 MONTICELLO ROAD 

TO THE WEAVERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL: 

I, Derek Huninghake, Weaverville Town Clerk, do hereby certify that I have 
investigated the Voluntary Annexation Petition of Riverside Stump Dump, Inc., (Petition No. 
2019-1) and have found as a fact that the Petition is signed by all the owners of real 
property lying in the area described therein and that the area to be annexed is contiguous 
to the Town's primary boundary. 

Therefore, in accordance with North Carolina General Statutes § 160A-31, et seq., I 
certify that the Petition is valid and sufficient for the voluntary annexation of a contiguous 
area pursuant to said § 160A-31 et seq., of the North Carolina General Statutes. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Town 
of Weaverville, this the 9th day of April, 2019. 

______________________________________________ 
DEREK K. HUNINGHAKE, Town Clerk 

4



M
artin B

lank
D

eed B
ook 1607 P

age 174
P

IN
: 9733515734

29

28

H
 &

 K
 P

roperties
D

eed B
ook 4608 P

age 665
P

IN
: 9733627514

C
rystal Jean P

onder H
opkins &

 
A

nother V
enture LLC

D
eed B

ook 4615 P
age 467

P
IN

: 9733721293Leonard F
. P

onder &
 C

rystal Jean 
P

onder H
opkins

D
eed B

ook 4135 P
age 87

P
IN

: 9733722097

H
M

V
H

N
-3V

H
M

 LLC
D

eed B
ook 4375 P

age 108
P

IN
: 9733713521

N
 71

°1
8
'2

7
" W

  1
4
9
1
.3

2
'

N 03°48'43" E

N
o. 5(0.4' ag)

0.75" O
P

(flush)

N
 54

°5
9
'3

4
" E

112.99'

N
 68

°4
0
'4

7
" E

S 38°49'01" W

338.70' Tie only

R
eese C

ap(0.4' ag)

R
eese C

ap(0.4' bg)

LIN
E

B
E

A
R

IN
G

D
IS

T
A

N
C

E

L1

L1
N

 64
°1

5
'4

8
" E

42.28'

L2

L2
N

 37
°4

2
'0

6
" E

18.74'

L3

L3
N

 60
°5

9
'3

7
" E

20.19'
L4

N
 21

°0
4

'0
0
" E

21.23'
L5

N
 62

°1
7

'3
5
" E

6.21'
L6

S
 85

°2
4

'1
3
" E

46.36'

L7

L7
S

 52
°5

3
'4

7
" E

11.64'

L8

L8
S

 06
°1

1
'2

9
" W

10.94'

L9 L9
S

 40
°0

8
'1

6
" E

9.10'

L10

L10
N

 70
°1

2
'2

9
" E

31.97'

L11

L11
S

 89
°4

8
'4

2
" E

34.53'

L12

L12
S

 81
°0

4
'1

1
" E

22.58'

L13

L13
S

 59
°2

8
'1

1
" E

35.78'

S
 67

°3
0
'1

9
" E

S 56
°2

6
'1

0
" E

S 58
°1

1
'2

1
" E

S 45°27'38" E

S
 89

°0
3

'4
2
" E

268.30'

125.82'

S 19°42'42" W

C
urve

R
adius

A
rc Length

C
hord B

earing
C

hord Length

C1

C
1

888.17'
164.06'

S
 28

°0
6

'2
2
" W

163.83'

L14

L14
S

 22
°4

8
'5

1
" W

62.47'

C
2

2017.39'
17.71'

S
 22

°3
3

'4
9
" W

17.71'

N
 21

°3
0

'1
1
" E

58.01' T
ie only

104.53'S 09°48'36" W

S
 63

°5
7

'4
5
" E

19.91'

N
 60

°4
5

'5
8
" W

20.00'

N 27°40'17" E
51.63'

N 05°40'38" E
211.59'

156.74'

S 10°07'01" W

3165 +
/- square feet

0.073 A
cre

*H
atched area depicts an apparent gap

betw
een right-of-w

ay show
n on P

lat B
ook 110

P
age 23 and that described in C

onsent
Judgem

ent  recorded in D
eed B

ook 1284 P
age

693.N
o recorded instrum

ent found granting
right-of-w

ay or conveyance of hatched area to
N

C
 D

epartm
ent of T

ransportation.*
D

etail

A
rea of T

ract
19.397 A

cres
(D

oes not include area of apparent gap)

branch

branch

asphalt

asphalt

pool

porch

barn

shed

block   building

w
am

apa cap(0.1' ag)

w
am

apa cap(0.3' bg)

w
am

apa cap(flush)

S
 35

°0
0

'3
8
" E

26.88' tie only

N
o. 5(0.4' ag)

P
osthole in C

oncrete F
ound

branch goes underground here

branch re-em
erges here

gate

N
 85

°2
6

'3
9
" W

61.61' tie only

barbed wire

chain link

w
oven w

ire

R
ebar w

ith ID
 C

ap F
ound (N

am
e on C

ap)
R

ebar F
ound (S

ize)
Iron P

ipe F
ound (D

escription)
N

o 5 R
ebar w

ith ID
 C

ap S
et (E

H
A

)
U

nm
arked P

oint
C

oncrete R
ight-of-W

ay M
onum

ent
F

ire H
ydrant

U
tility P

ole
G

uy W
ire

S
torm

 S
ew

er M
anhole

W
oven W

ire or B
arbed W

ire F
ence

A
bove G

rade
B

elow
 G

rade
O

pen P
ipe

P
olyvinylchloride

R
einforced C

oncrete P
ipe

agbgO
P

P
V

C
R

C
P

18" RCP

W
ater V

alve

G
as Line M

arker

S
 73

°2
6

' W

1.0' tie only

D
etail

S
ee D

etail A
bove

6" P
V

C
 P

ipe filled w
ith concrete

N
C

 D
epartm

ent of T
ransportation

D
eed B

ook 1284 P
age 693

P
roject N

o. 6.801760
R

ight-of-W
ay M

ap B
ook 1 P

age 300

C
urve T

able
Line T

able

trailer

S
 17

°5
3

'5
1
" W

16.24'

gravel  drive

gate

S
ym

bol and Line Legend

C
hain Link F

ence
W

ood S
tockade F

ence
O

verhead E
lectric Line

O
verhead T

elephone Line

A
bbreviation Legend

E
d H

olm
es &

 A
ssociates

E
H

A

w
oven w

ire

w
oven w

ire

John G
. &

 M
arta L B

odenhorst
D

eed B
ook 1962 page 752

P
IN

: 9733528356

1-story brick, stone &

wood house

w
oven w

ire

M
cM

ahan cap

1"=
10'

S
ee D

etail of H
atched A

rea

edge of pavement

edge of pavement

R
ight-of-W

ay
R

/W

0.5" O
P

(0.3' ag)

brushpile

brushpile
m

ulchpile

stum
ppile

debris (scattered; dense vegetation)

2180

2170

2160

2160

2150

2150

2150

2140

2120

2110

2100

2100

2090

2080

2070

2050

2170

2160
2150

2150

2150

2140

2140

2130

2130

2120

2120

2120

2110

2110

2100

2100

2090

2080

2070

2060

2050

2152

2154
2156

2154

2152

2148

Invert=
2151.2

Invert=
2151.4

Invert=
2148.2

Invert=
2150.5

2156

2152

2152

2154

2156

2156

2154

2152

2152

2058
2056

C
oncrete

row of oaks

30" H
ickory

20" H
ickory

52" O
ak

T
w

in 36" B
eech

20" H
ickory

A
pproxim

ate tie to M
S

D
 m

anhole #110184 located 
near the intersection of G

ill R
d w

ith N
orthridge 

C
om

m
ons P

arkw
ay. M

anhole location based on 
inform

ation obtained from
 M

S
D

 w
ebsite.

S
anitary S

ew
er M

anhole 

S
pigot

W
ell

roof

T
ree (as described) soil 

 road

18" R
C

P
(dam

aged)

Invert=
2148.9

15" RCP

Invert=
2149.2

Invert=
2149.4

porch

pool house

2154

2148

2152

2160

septic tank

2-story block &
w

ood fram
e house

gravel

gravel

gravel

A
pproxim

ate location
of 12" w

ater m
ain

A
pproxim

ate location
of 12" w

ater m
ain

12" W
ater Line (approxim

ate location)

W
oods Line approxim

ate;
draw

n from
 aerial photo.

W
oods Line approxim

ate;
draw

n from
 aerial photo.

G
ill R

oad - S
.R

. 1791
(60' R

ight of W
ay)

Gill Road - S.R. 1791
(60' Right of Way)

S
torm

 S
ew

er D
rain Inlet

S
torm

 S
ew

er P
ipe

S 48°13' E
1115'

edge of pavem
ent from

 aerial photo

D

D

0

Monticello Road - S.R. 1727

(Right of W
ay varies)

330.25'

S
 87

°2
6

'4
5

" E
  1

8
6
.0

6
'

79.62'

S
 75

°0
6

'1
5
" W

31.45' T
ie only

0.5" O
P

(0.8' ag-painted orange)

L4 L5
L6

N
 83

°5
4

'2
5
" E

99.09'

64.36'

S
 69

°4
8
'3

7
" E

88.36'

S 52°08
'1

5" E

92.92'

134.52'

102.48'

254.00'

156.74'
S

 10
°0

7
'0

1
" W

2150

15" RCP
chain link

chain link

w
oven w

ire

barbed wire

w
oven w

ire

chain link

soil piles

S
 66

°5
2
'0

7
" E

2388.83'

(plat bearing)
(ground distance)

deed line (typical)

R
ight-of-W

ay line from
 C

onsent Judgem
ent

D
eed B

ook 1284 P
age 693

R
ight-of-W

ay as show
n on

P
lat B

ook 110 P
age 23

C2A

B

P
lat B

ook  P
age 

P
.B

. P
g.

B
ranch

D
itch

D
eed Line

R
ight-of-W

ay Line

N
ote: G

ravel area approxim
ate; lines

draw
n from

 aerial photo and field observation.

N
C

G
S

 M
onum

ent "G
ill"

NC Grid North

B
o
und

ary & To
po

g
rap

hic S
urvey fo

r

R
o
nnie R

ay
o
f pro

p
erty o

w
ned

 by

S
teve C

. & Jeanna Y. B
ro

w
n

R
EFER

EN
C
ES

P
IN

 9
7

3
3

6
2

6
0
5
2

D
eed

 B
o
o
k 4

3
2

4
 Pag

e 8
9
7

D
eed

 B
o
o
k 1

2
8

4
 Pag

e 6
9
3
 

R
eem

s C
reek To

w
nship, B

unco
m

be C
o
unty, N

.C
.

D
A
TE: 0

5
-0

3
-1

1
 thro

ug
h 0

5
-2

7
-1

1
   

D
R
A
W

N
 B

Y: M
A
B

JO
B
 #1

1
0

7
0

   C
H

EC
K
ED

 B
Y: JD

H

M
artin A

. B
arnes, PLS

C
o
rpo

rate License C
-2

8
0
6

P
.O

. B
o
x 1

7
3

3
5

  A
sheville, N

C
  2

8
8
1
6

8
2

8
.2

2
5

.6
5
6
2

S
C

A
LE 1

" =
 8

0
'

 N
O

TES

1
.

This survey is o
f an existing

 parcel o
r parcels o

f land
.

2
.

To
tal A

rea =
 1

9
.4

7
0
 A

cres.

3
.

A
ll areas calculated

 by co
o
rd

inate co
m

putaio
n m

etho
d
.

4
.

This survey w
as prep

ared
 w

itho
ut benefit o

f abstract title and
m

atters o
f title sho

uld
 be referred

 to
 an atto

rney-at-law
.

5
.

This p
ro

perty m
ay be subject to

 all rig
hts-o

f-w
ay, easem

ents,
reservatio

ns and
 restrictio

ns, w
ritten and

 unw
ritten, reco

rd
ed

 and
unreco

rd
ed

.

6
.

The certificatio
n sho

w
n hereo

n is no
t a certificatio

n o
f title,

zo
ning

 o
r freed

o
m

 fro
m

 encum
brances.

7
.. N

o
 und

erg
ro

und
 utilities w

ere lo
cated

.  C
all 1

-8
0
0
-6

3
2
-4

9
4
9
 

befo
re d

ig
g
ing

.

8
.

N
o
 ho

rizo
ntal co

ntro
l fo

und
 w

ithin 2
0
0

0
 feet.

9
.

B
ased

 o
n g

rap
hical lo

catio
n info

rm
atio

n fro
m

 the N
o
rth C

aro
lina

Flo
o
d
plain M

app
ing

 Pro
g
ram

, the subject p
ro

perty d
o
es no

t lie
w

ithin a sp
ecial flo

o
d
 hazard

 area, as sho
w

n o
n N

atio
nal Flo

o
d

Insurance P
ro

g
ram

 Flo
o
d
 Insurance R

ate M
ap 3

7
0
0
9
7
3
3
0
0
J,

effective d
ate January 6

, 2
0
1
0
.

1
0
.

A
ny stream

s, creeks, po
nd

s, lakes, w
etland

s, etc. lo
cated

 o
n

this pro
p
erty, sho

w
n o

r no
t sho

w
n hereo

n, m
ay be subject to

 buffer 
areas. It is the o

w
ner/d

evelo
per's resp

o
nsibility to

 have the areas 
d
esig

nated
 by p

erso
n(s)/firm

(s) autho
rized

, by the pro
per 

autho
rities, to

 m
ake such d

eterm
inatio

n.

1
1
.

A
ll d

istances sho
w
n hereo

n are ho
rizo

ntal g
ro

und
 d

istances
unless o

therw
ise no

ted
.

1
2
.

A
ll im

p
ro

vem
ents o

n site no
t lo

cated
 fo

r this survey.

1
3
.

C
o
nto

ur interval: M
ino

r - 2
 feet  M

ajo
r - 1

0
 feet

Elevatio
ns based

 o
n published

 elevatio
n fo

r N
C

G
S
 M

o
num

ent
"G

ill" o
f 2

1
2

3
.0

1
' (N

A
V
D

 8
8
).

1
4
.

A
cco

rd
ing

 to
 W

eaverville W
ater D

epartm
ent there is a 1

2
"

w
ater m

ain in the no
rth sho

uld
er o

f M
o
nticello

 R
o
ad

 betw
een fire

hyd
rants and

 ed
g
e o

f pavem
ent sho

w
n.

1
5
.

C
urrent d

eed
 d

escriptio
n includ

es p
ro

perty co
nveyed

 in D
eed

B
o
o
k 1

2
8

4
 P

ag
e 6

9
3

 and
 D

eed
 B

o
o
k 4

3
7
5
 Pag

e 1
0
8
.

1
6
.

B
asis o

f bearing
s fo

r this survey fro
m

 Plat B
o
o
k 1

1
0
 Pag

e 2
3
.

C
o
rners labeled

 A
 and

 B
 w

ere held
 fo

r o
rientatio

n to
 this plat.

V
icinity M

ap
(no

t to
 scale)

P
lat R

eferences:

1
.

Plat o
f "S

urvey o
f: N

ew
 R

ig
ht o

f W
ay A

cq
uisitio

n acro
ss the pro

p
erty o

f D
an Yo

ung
p
rep

ared
 fo

r H
M

V
H

N
-3

V
H

M
, LLC

" d
ated

 M
arch 6

, 2
0
0
7
, by W

ebb M
o
rg

an &
A
sso

ciates, P
.A

.,  G
erald

 W
. S

tevenso
n N

C
PLS

 2
6
6
9
, Jo

b File N
o
. 0

5
0
3
6
-D

-1
1
8
7

and
 reco

rd
ed

 in the B
unco

m
be C

o
unty R

eg
istry in Plat B

o
o
k 1

1
0
 Pag

e 2
3
.

2
.

Plat o
f "B

o
und

ary S
urvey fo

r Jo
hn K

no
x B

rig
m

an R
evo

cable Trust and
 H

 & K
P
ro

p
erties, LLC

", d
ated

 A
p
ril 2

4
, 2

0
0

6
, by Pesterfield

 P.A
., K

even A
. H

o
llar N

C
PLS

4
2

3
9

, File #0
6

5
1

2
 and

 reco
rd

ed
 in the B

unco
m

be C
o
unty R

eg
istry in Plat B

o
o
k 1

1
7

P
ag

e 1
9
9
.

3
.

Plat o
f "S

ubd
ivisio

n o
f A

utum
n H

ills"  d
ated

 A
pril 4

 1
9
9

5
  by R

eese & A
sso

ciates,
P
.A

.  P
hilip

 D
. R

eese N
C

P
LS

 2
6

4
2

, Jo
b N

o
. 9

4
-2

1
7
1
 and

 reco
rd

ed
 in the

B
unco

m
be C

o
unty R

eg
istry in P

lat B
o
o
k 6

4
 Pag

e 9
1
.

4
.

Plat o
f "S

urvey fo
r R

o
bert B

lank" d
ated

 N
o
vem

ber 1
9
8

7
 by M

cM
ahan & R

eese,
P
.A

., B
o
bby M

cM
ahan N

C
P
LS

 2
4

7
5

, Jo
b N

o
. 8

7
-1

4
1
0
 and

 reco
rd

ed
 in the

B
unco

m
be C

o
unty R

eg
istry in P

lat B
o
o
k 5

1
 Pag

e 8
5
.

5
.

N
o
rth C

aro
lina D

ep
artm

ent o
f Transp

o
rtatio

n R
ig

ht-o
f-W

ay Plan S
heet N

o
. 2

0
 fo

r
P
ro

ject 6
.8

0
1

7
6

0
 reco

rd
ed

 in the B
unco

m
be C

o
unty R

eg
ister o

f D
eed

s R
ig

ht o
f

W
ay M

ap
 B

o
o
k 1

, Pag
e 3

0
0
.

D
eed

 R
eferences:

B
o
o
k 1

2
8

4
 P

ag
e 6

9
3

B
o
o
k 4

3
2

4
 P

ag
e 8

9
7

B
o
o
k 4

3
7

5
 P

ag
e 1

0
8

8
0

'
0

'
8

0
'

1
6

0
'

2
4

0
'

E
xit 19

M
onticello  R

oad

G
ill Rd. U.S. 25/70

U.S. 19/23/Future I-26

W
eaver  B

lvd.

Monticello  Road

I, M
artin A

. B
arnes, certify that this bo

und
ary m

ap
 w

as d
raw

n by m
e fro

m
an actual survey m

ad
e und

er m
y supervisio

n (d
eed

 d
escriptio

n reco
rd

ed
in B

o
o
k 4

3
2

4
 P

ag
e 8

9
7

); that the bo
und

aries no
t surveyed

 are d
ashed

and
 d

raw
n fro

m
 info

rm
atio

n in references cited
 o

n p
lat; that the ratio

 o
f

p
recisio

n is 1
:1

0
,0

0
0

; and
 that this m

ap m
eets the req

uirem
ents o

f
The S

tand
ard

s o
f P

ractice fo
r Land

 S
urveying

 in N
o
rth C

aro
lina (2

1
 N

C
A
C
 5

6
.1

6
0
0
). 

This ______ d
ay o

f ____________________, 2
______.

________________________________________
M

artin A
. B

arnes, PLS
 4

2
7
4

D
11-033A

I, M
artin A

. B
arnes, further certify that the to

po
g
raphic survey w

as co
m

pleted
 und

er m
y 

d
irect and

 resp
o
nsible charg

e fro
m

 an actual  g
ro

und
 survey m

ad
e und

er m
y sup

ervisio
n; 

that this to
p
o
g
rap

hic survey w
as p

erfo
rm

ed
 to

 m
eet N

atio
nal M

ap A
ccuracy S

tand
ard

s; 
that the o

rig
inal d

ata w
as o

btained
 o

n 5
-0

3
 thro

ug
h 6

-2
8
-2

0
1
1
; that the survey w

as 
co

m
p
leted

 o
n 6

-2
9

-2
0

1
1

; and
 all co

o
rd

inates are based
 o

n N
.C

. G
R
ID

 N
A
D

8
3
(2

0
0
7
), 

N
A
V
D

 8
8
."

from P.B. 110 Pg. 23

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T 
O

R
IG

IN
A
LLY IS

S
U
ED

 
A
N
D

 S
EA

LED
 B

Y 
M

A
R
TIN

 A
 B

A
R
N
ES

N
C
. N

O
. L-4

2
7

4
 O

N
 

1
0
-0

6
-2

0
1
1
.

TH
IS

 M
ED

IA
 S

H
A
LL 

N
O

T B
E C

O
N
S
ID

ER
ED

 
A
 C

ER
TIFIED

 
D

O
C

U
M

EN
T.

5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



 

 

Town of Weaverville 
Planning and Zoning Board 

 
 

On Tuesday, April 2, 2019 the Planning and Zoning Board reviewed and unanimously recommended to 
Town Council a proposed initial zoning of R-12 for the property commonly known as 135 Monticello 
Road, 9733-62-6052. 
 
It has been found that the proposed initial zoning is consistent with the Town’s Comprehensive Plan 
in that the plan calls for a balance of residential uses. The Planning and Zoning Board considers 
approval both reasonable and in the public interest due to the desire of the proposed property owner 
to further develop the for multifamily residential purposes and finding that adjacent parcels of land 
are zoned R-12 creating contiguity of zoning districts.  
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 

Doug Theroux  
Chairman, Planning and Zoning Board  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

14



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina  
Staff Report: 135 Monticello Road 
Initial Zoning – R-12 

Prepared March 2019 

 
Sources:  
 

Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan; Strategic Plan; Town of 
Weaverville Fact Sheet 

 

Page 1 of 2 
 

Zoning Analysis 
 
As the Board is aware Town Council is set to consider a voluntary annexation of 135 Monticello 
Road commonly known as the Riverside Stump Dump. The parcel consists of 19.5 acres as 
shown on the voluntary annexation petition and zoning map amendment application and an 
initial zoning of R-12 is desired. With the acreage present and the density permitted within the 
desired zoning district the Town may expect approximately 234 dwelling units under these 
conditions. 
 
Such an initial zoning of R-12 provide zoning would provide contiguity of district and use with 
the neighboring developments on Weaver View Circle (constructed) and Gill Branch Road 
(approved for construction). 
 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan Compliance 
 
When considering compliance with the Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan (CLUP), often the 
analysis begins with a consultation of the future land use map (Figure 3-6 on page 3-5). Here it 
is found that this property exists in a gap between the defined areas shown for the future uses 
of Commercial and Rural. These gaps are intentional and are addressed within the CLUP on 
page 3-2 as follows: 
 
“When reviewing the map, you will see that there are gaps between defined areas, and that the 
defined areas do not necessarily follow property boundaries. This is purposeful given the 
uncertainties that exist on the ground that cannot be accounted for, and in recognition of the 
need for flexibility. And so, the boundaries and gaps should be viewed as flexible rather than 
lines in the sand, and the final decisions on transitional land use types in these areas should be 
left to the good judgement of the appointed and elected officials that are charged with 
establishing development policy and regulations in the Town.” 
 
Additionally, found on page 2-2, it is the stated goal of the Town to “promote the stability of 
existing residential neighborhoods while fostering a diversity of housing opportunities.”  
 
Given each of the listed variables, it is the opinion of staff that the development proposed for 
annexation is consistent with the Town’s CLUP. 

15



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina  
Staff Report: 135 Monticello Road 
Initial Zoning – R-12 

Prepared March 2019 

 
Sources:  
 

Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan; Strategic Plan; Town of 
Weaverville Fact Sheet 

 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
Strategic Plan Compliance 
 
Within the Town’s Strategic Plan (SP) a parallel sentiment toward fostering a diversity of 
housing opportunities is found. Town Council identified “affordable housing – mixed income 
housing, additional housing opportunities” within a list of 3-5 year visioning found on page 3 of 
the SP. Additionally, a similar statement is made within the list of 15-20 year visioning found on 
page 4 of the SP and reads as follows, “self-sustaining, vibrant community with a mix of young, 
old, long-term and new residents with a common bond of living in a safe space that meets their 
needs.” It was found when compiling information for the update of the CLUP that the Town’s 
median age was the eldest at 52.6 years of age and home values the highest at $335,000 of all 
jurisdictions studied in both Buncombe and Madison Counties. One could reason that 
additional leased housing stock could invite a younger population to become invested in the 
Town hence forwarding the stated visions adopted by Town Council. 
 
Other Considerations 
 
The 2016 American Community survey provided the Town with a household size of 2.12 persons per 
household. This figure applied to the theoretical 234 units suggests that this project will grow the 
population of the Town by approximately 496 people should Town Council annex the property and grant 
the desired R-12 Zoning District. 
 
Should Town Council annex the property, said annexation would be a contiguous annexation. This 
property is also contiguous to an existing satellite annexation meaning said satellite (Hawthorne at 
Weaverville Apartments) would become contiguous as well. Therefore the total number of acres of 
satellite annexed areas would decrease to 23.38 acres down from 37.54. This would also decrease the 
percentage of total incorporated area outside of the contiguous municipal borders to from 1.8% to 1.1% 
with a statutory limitation of 10% on satellite annexations.  
 
A comparable project next door, the Hawthorne at Weaverville Apartments, yields an annual tax 
revenue of $73,000 based upon current property valuation and municipal tax rate. 
 
 

16



From: Dale Pennell
To: James Eller
Cc: Dale Pennell
Subject: RE: 135 Monticello (Riverside Stump Dump) Annexation Analysis
Date: Friday, May 10, 2019 5:19:54 PM

James,
 
I apologize for the delay in responding to your request for information from PW regarding this
project.
 
Based on our experience on the Hawthorne Apartments on Monticello Road, we assume the
following effects for the PW Department’s Divisions from the Stump Dump project:
 
Streets:                No additional costs to PW are expected since the streets will be privately owned

and maintained; the town will have no responsibility for repairs or snow plowing. 
Residents from these apartments might use our streets and sidewalks to visit
downtown businesses, churches, or the homes of other citizens, but we cannot
evaluate how this usage could be quantified or measured or estimated.

 
Sanitation:          We will not be collecting garbage or recycling within the development, nor will we

be picking up brush, leaves, or yard debris; therefore, no additional costs for PW.
 
Recreation:        I hope any residents of the 240 units will choose to use our parks, especially their

children.  We would anticipate no additional costs to the town for mowing or
maintenance outside of the normal wear and tear on our facilities.

 
Water:                  240 units x 400 gallons per day (GPD) = 96,000 gallons of required daily water

allocation for the development; however the actual usage will probably be closer to
24,000 GPD based on recent historical trends.  We now produce an average of
600,000 GPD with additional future commitments of approximately 340,000 GPD. 
There will be an additional cost to produce this water and distribute it to the
customer; however, our water rates generally cover this cost, especially when it
involves only 1 domestic meter for monthly reading and occasional maintenance. 
The maintenance for the fire meter and piping is minimal, with other similar
installations having little or no maintenance issues in the past.

 
In summary, the addition of the proposed Stump Dump project will have minimal effect on the
operations of the PW Department and I would anticipate little additional costs to the department.
 
If you need additional information or have any questions, please do not hesitate to call.
 
Dale Pennell, PE, PLS
Public Works Director
Town of Weaverville
15 Quarry Road

17

mailto:dale.pennell@weavervillenc.org
mailto:JEller@weavervillenc.org
mailto:dale.pennell@weavervillenc.org


   Weaverville Police Department 
 
        30 South Main Street 

        Post Office Box 338       
                                                                  Weaverville, NC 28787 
   
 
 
 
James, 
 
 
In response to your request regarding the possible voluntary annexation of the 135 Monticello Road development 
a cost impact study was completed as well as a site survey.   
 
Scenario #1- If the negotiations fall through the cost to The Town from a law enforcement prospective would be 
extremely minimal unless and until the property is redeveloped to some degree.  We are already providing police 
services around the area.  I do not anticipate any associated costs or manpower needs as it relates to police 
services.  
 
Scenario #2- Based on other “like” areas of development, calls for service and required extra patrols, I feel this 
annexation could be achieved with minimal associated cost to the department as it relates to law enforcement. 
Again, we’re already providing services in this area.  I do anticipate a more nuisance type issues such as parking 
and noise complaints etc.  However based on the Weaver View Circle model I do not anticipate calls for service 
that would be of a volume, or a degree as to adversely impact the department.   As in similar complexes I 
anticipate we will need to patrol this new subdivision at least 1,100-1,400 times per year to have an adequate 
presence.  Of course, this does not consider any other calls for service which might arise outside the scope of 
“routine patrol”.   
 
I have estimated fuel, maintenance and additional man hours to be the following per year: 
 
Fuel: $ 600.00 
 
Maintenance: $ 300.00 
 
Additional man hours: 180 per year 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions. 
 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
 
Ron Davis 
Chief 
 
 

18



From: Ted Williams
To: James Eller; Ron Davis; Dale Pennell
Cc: Selena Coffey; Jennifer Jackson; Derek Huninghake
Subject: RE: 135 Monticello (Riverside Stump Dump) Annexation Analysis
Date: Tuesday, March 19, 2019 1:33:02 PM

James
 
Our situation is again pretty simple as we are already providing coverage for that property. For
purposes of comparison the Weaver View Circle project has increased our call volume by
approximately 1.9% so I would project another 2.5% increase for the size of project that we could
potentially be looking at on the Stump Dump property. I would again bring attention to the fact that
annexed properties eliminate North Buncombe fire tax revenue for that property which in turn
reduces the funds collected via the NB Fire Tax. I do not bring that up as any opposition at all just to
make sure everyone is on board that as county funding goes away we will need to be looking at
some of the new tax revenues generated by the project going to provide appropriate fire protection.
 
I hope this helps and let me know if you need additional?
 

Ted Williams
Fire Chief
Weaverville Fire Department
(828)645-3500 ext. 1801
(828)484-7031 Direct
(828)658-9868 Fax
(828)545-2823 Cell
 
 
 

From: James Eller 
Sent: Tuesday, March 19, 2019 8:58 AM
To: Ron Davis <rdavis@weavervillenc.org>; Ted Williams <twilliams@weavervillefd.org>; Dale
Pennell <dale.pennell@weavervillenc.org>
Cc: Selena Coffey <scoffey@weavervillenc.org>; Jennifer Jackson <jjackson@weavervillenc.org>;
Derek Huninghake <dhuninghake@weavervillenc.org>
Subject: 135 Monticello (Riverside Stump Dump) Annexation Analysis
 
All,
 
As you will recall from last night’s meeting of Town Council, the town is beginning to consider the
voluntary annexation of 135 Monticello Road commonly known as the Riverside Stump Dump.
Similar to the Wheeler Road project we are beginning to compile information which may assist
Council in their impending decision related to the annexation. Please use the attached staff report
from Wheeler Road as a template for an analysis from your respective departments. Once the

19

mailto:TWilliams@weavervillefd.org
mailto:JEller@weavervillenc.org
mailto:rdavis@weavervillenc.org
mailto:dale.pennell@weavervillenc.org
mailto:SCoffey@weavervillenc.org
mailto:jjackson@weavervillenc.org
mailto:DHuninghake@weavervillenc.org


information is received I will package into a staff report for Council’s consideration.
 
Here though, we need to consider two scenarios and attached you will find the annexation petition
and zoning map amendment application should any of the information contained therein be of any
use to you.
 

1. The property is annexed and negotiations fall through on the private side leaving the town
with a newly acquired stump dump. What will be the approximate cost of providing service to
the property in this condition?

2. The property is annexed and ultimately converted to a multifamily residential complex as
desired by the initial zoning request. Given the acreage present the property could sustain
approximately 234 dwelling units. What will be the approximate cost of providing service to
the property in this condition? For comps on calls for service the property next door at
Weaver View Circle, consisting of 168 units, may provide an accurate assessment.

 
Town Council may set a public hearing for the following month on the voluntary annexation and

initial zoning request on the night of April 15th. If you could send back your reports a week in
advance of this date it would be greatly appreciated. Thank you in advance for your time and
attention and please feel free to contact me if I may provide any additional information or
assistance.
 
James W. Eller, NCAZO
Planning Director
Town of Weaverville
 

20



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

PUBLIC HEARING 
MEETING DATE:  May 20, 2018  

SUBJECT: Conditional Zoning District – 37 Brown Street 

PRESENTER:   Planning Director 

ATTACHMENTS: Notice of Public Hearing 
 Code Section 36-84 on Conditional Zoning Districts  

Planning & Zoning Board Recommendation Letter 
Public Involvement Meeting Report 
Staff Report 
Application, Site Plan, Elevations and Floor Plans 
 

 
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

Tonight’s public hearing is being held on the conditional zoning district application for 37 
Brown Street which is proposed as a 16-unit residential project within the historic Boy’s 
Dormitory of the Old Weaver College. The application, site plan, elevations and floor plans 
are attached. The developer has conducted the required public involvement meeting and a 
report on those discussions is attached. The staff report that is attached provides important 
information regarding the proposed project. 

The Planning and Zoning Board has reviewed and unanimously recommends project with 
certain conditions as reflect in the attached recommendation letter. 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Town Council is asked to hear from the public on this conditional zoning district prior to 
taking any action on this request. 

21



 
 

 
 

NOTICE OF SPECIAL CALLED MEETING AND 
PUBLIC HEARING 

 
Public Notice is hereby given that the Town of Weaverville Town Council will hold a special called 
meeting on Monday, May 20, 2019 at 6:00p.m., or at such time as Council reaches the matter, for the 
purpose of holding a Public Hearing. This meeting will occur within Council Chambers at Town Hall 
located at 30 South Main Street, Weaverville, NC, to consider the following item: 
 
A proposed conditional zoning district application related to 37 Brown Street, parcel identification 
number 9742-16-7113, has been submitted by Saba Holding Group, LLC for the accommodation of a 
multifamily residential development within the existing structure containing no more than 16 units. 
  
If you would like additional information or to review the content related to the Public Hearing you 
may contact Planning Director and Deputy Town Clerk James Eller at 828-484-7002 or 
jeller@weavervillenc.org. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

22

mailto:jeller@weavervillenc.org


Sec. 36-84. - Conditional zoning district. 

(a) Intent. It is expected that, in most cases, a general district will appropriately regulate site-specific
impact of permitted use and structures on surrounding areas, however conditional zoning districts
provide for those situations where a particular use, properly planned, may be appropriate for a
particular site, but where the underlying general district has insufficient standards to mitigate the site-
specific impact on surrounding area.

(b) Use permitted. Any use may be considered for a conditional zoning district and shall be established
on an individual basis, at the request of the property owner, according to the procedures of this
section.

(c) Conditions . In establishing a conditional zoning district town council may place conditions on the
property which set individualized standards to the site and a site plan and supporting documents
illustrating said conditions and standards may be included in the ordinance establishing the district.
These conditions which may be established by town council shall only be those which are necessary
for ordinance and plan compliance and shall only address the impacts reasonably expected to be
generated by the project. Said conditions may be proposed by town council or the applicant and
must be mutually approved by town council and the applicant.

(d) Petition of request. Property may be rezoned to a conditional zoning district only in response to and
consistent with a petition of the owners, or agents of the owners of all of the property to be included
in the district and shall be accompanied by an petition, a statement analyzing the reasonableness of
the proposed rezoning request by the petitioner, the established fee, and documentation as required
by the following:

(1) A petition for a conditional zoning district must include a site plan and supporting information
that specifies the actual use or uses intended for the property and any rules, regulations, and
conditions that, in addition to all predetermined ordinance requirements, will govern the
development and use of the property;

(2) A boundary survey and vicinity map showing the property's total acreage, current zoning
classification(s), general location in relation to major streets, date and north arrow;

(3) Existing topography on the site and within 300 feet of the boundary of the site, and the general
nature of the proposed topography contours shown at a maximum of five feet;

(4) All existing easements, reservations, rights-of-way, and any other valid restrictions on the use
of the land;

(5) The number and general location of all proposed structures;

(6) The proposed use of all land and structures, including the number of residential units or the
total square footage of any nonresidential development;

(7) All yards, buffers, screening, and landscaping and sidewalks required within the underlying
zoning district;

(8) All existing and proposed points of access to public streets and the locations of proposed new
streets;

(9) Delineation of areas within the floodplain;

(10) Proposed number and location of the signs;

(11) Proposed phasing, if any, and the approximate completion time for the project;

(12) Traffic, parking, and circulation plans, showing the proposed location and arrangement of
parking spaces and ingress and egress to adjacent streets, existing and proposed;

(13) Photographs of buildings on properties within 200 feet of the subject property establishing the
scale of the buildings within the proposed project with those surrounding;

(14) Information on the height of all proposed structures;

23



(15) Exterior features of all of the proposed development including but not limited to construction
and finishing materials;

(16) Any supporting text and all documents presented shall constitute part of the petition.

(e) Approval procedures for initial CZD. Except as specifically modified by this section, the procedures
to be followed by the town council in reviewing, granting, or denying any petition for a conditional
zoning district shall be the same as those established for general use district zoning petitions under
N.C.G.S. Ch. 160A, Art. 19. The following procedures shall also apply for the approval of conditional
zoning districts:

(1) Initial consideration by town council. Petitions for conditional zoning district shall be initially
reviewed by town council. After its initial consideration of a petition for a conditional zoning
district, town council shall refer the request to the planning board for the full review process as
required by state statute. Initial consideration of such petitions are intended to provide town
council with the opportunity to express their preliminary thoughts related to the petition but shall
not serve as a final determination on same.

(2) Planning and zoning review. Following an initial review by town council as set forth herein and
in section 36-358 all conditional zoning requests shall be submitted to the town planning and
zoning board to determine if approvals of such plans are made in consideration of identified
relevant adopted land-use plans for the area including, but not limited to, comprehensive plans,
strategic plans, district plans, area plans, neighborhood plans, corridor plans, and other land-
use policy documents. A statement analyzing the reasonableness of the proposed rezoning
shall be prepared by the town planning and zoning board for each petition for a rezoning to a
conditional zoning district and submitted to the town council for final action on the request. Due
to the scope and complexities which may be presented by a conditional zoning district request,
the planning and zoning board shall have up to 180 days from its first consideration to submit its
statement of reasonableness and recommendation to town council. If the planning and zoning
board fails to submit such statement and/or recommendation within 180 days then the request
shall be forwarded to town council with a record of the planning and zoning board's comments
and town council is eligible to consider the request and take final action thereon.

(3) Public involvement meeting. Before a public hearing may be held by the town council on a
petition for a conditional zoning the petitioner must file in the office of the town clerk a written
report of at least one community meeting held by the petitioner. The report shall include, among
other things, a listing of those persons and organizations contacted about the meeting and the
manner and date of contact, the date, time, and location of the meeting, a roster of the persons
in attendance at the meeting, a summary of issues discussed at the meeting, and a description
of any changes to the rezoning petition made by the petitioner as a result of the meeting. In the
event the petitioner has not held at least one meeting pursuant to this subsection, the petitioner
shall file a report documenting efforts that were made to arrange such a meeting and stating the
reasons such a meeting was not held. The adequacy of a meeting held or report filed pursuant
to this subsection shall be considered by the town council but shall not be subject to judicial
review. Notice of such a public hearing shall be given to all the property owners within 200 feet
of the property boundaries and in accordance with the provisions of N.C.G.S. 160A-364.

(4) Public hearing. As required by N.C.G.S. Ch. 160A, Art. 19, town council cannot take any action
on a conditional zoning district request until such time as it has held a public hearing that has
been properly noticed.

(f) District approval and ordinance. If a petition for a conditional zoning district is approved, the
development and use of the property shall be governed by the ordinance establishing the conditional
zoning district, the approved site plan for the district, and any additional approved rules, regulations,
and conditions, all of which shall constitute the zoning regulations for the approved district. Each
conditional zoning district will be given a special number, distinguishing such conditional zoning
district from another zoning district. Each ordinance adopted by town council which establishes a
conditional zoning district within the Town of Weaverville is hereby incorporated into this chapter as a

24



separate and unique zoning district and shall be reflected on the town's zoning map. Copies of such 
ordinances shall be kept on file with the town clerk and may be reviewed upon request.  

(g) Time limits. Time limits for the completion of the projects infrastructure and completion of
construction shall be established on an individual basis by town council based upon the type and
scope of development. Extensions to established time frames shall be subject to the approval of
town council.

(h) Phasing of projects. Any project phasing must be reviewed and approved with the conditional
zoning district. Phases must be shown on the site plan that is adopted in conjunction with the
ordinance approving the conditional zoning district and the time periods related to the phasing must
also be addressed in said ordinance.

(i) Guarantee of conditions. At the discretion of the town council, the council may require the property
owner to guarantee the performance or completion of conditions included in the approved conditional
zoning plan. Such guarantee may be in the form of:

(1) A surety performance bond made by a surety bonding company licensed and authorized to do
business in the state;

(2) A bond of the developer with an assignment to the town of a certificate of deposit as security
for the bond;

(3) A bond of the developer secured by an official bank check drawn in favor of the town and
deposited with the town clerk;

(4) Cash or an irrevocable letter of credit; or

(5) A bank escrow account whereby the developer deposits cash, a note, a bond or some other
instrument readily convertible into cash for a specific face value, with a federally insured
financial institution in an account payable to the town.

The amount of the guarantee shall be determined by town council and must be reasonable taking 
into consideration the type and scope of proposed development.  

(j) Judicial review. Conditional zoning district decisions under this section are legislative decisions that
are presumed valid if there is a reasonable basis for the decision.

(k) Future variance request. Property zoned CZD will not be able to apply for a variance on the
approved project.

(l) Maintaining the zoning district. A CZD is a rezoning which represents both a text and map
amendment and as such is maintained after the sale of the property. If the property owner wishes to
change the approved CZD plan, all property owners within the original CZD must apply for a
rezoning or a modification to the CZD as per section 36-84(n).

(m) Modifications. Minor modifications that can be approved by staff are limited to modifications that do
not affect the property lines, do not affect the final plat and which are in substantial compliance with
the approved plans. An extension of any time frame stated within an ordinance designating a
conditional zoning district must be approved by town council but shall otherwise be considered a
minor modification. All other modifications must be approved by town council and are subject to the
procedures set out in section 36-84(n).

(n) Approval procedures for modifications of a CZD. Except for minor modifications that can be
approved by staff or town council as provided in section 36-84(m), the procedures to be followed in
reviewing, granting or denying any requested modification to the approved site plan or the CZD
ordinance shall be the same as those established for approval of an initial CZD except that a public
involvement meeting is not required. Staff is required to notify the mayor and town council of any
modifications that staff has approved or denied.

(o) Final plat approval process. All water, sewer, stormwater infrastructure, and all street, sidewalk, and
similar improvements must be installed and verified as complete by the appropriate authority prior to
final plat review. Once the required infrastructure is complete, the final plat will be reviewed by staff

25



and the planning and zoning board for compliance with the relevant portions of the ordinance 
approving the conditional zoning district for the project. After its review the planning and zoning 
board shall submit a recommendation to town council. Town council must consider the planning and 
zoning board's findings and recommendation and, upon finding that the required infrastructure is 
complete and compliant, shall approve the final plat and authorize the recordation of same.  

Final plats must contain the following language: 

"This plat has been approved as part of a conditional zoning district and all lots shown are subject to 
all the conditions, rules and regulations governing that conditional zoning district and not subject to 
the subdivision ordinance of the Town of Weaverville. Any modification to any lot or improvement 
shown on this plat may only be accomplished as an amendment to the conditional zoning district and 
in accordance with the applicable Code provisions of the Town of Weaverville."  

(p) Issuance of zoning permits. The zoning administrator shall not issue a zoning permit until a final plat
has been approved and recorded.

(q) Noncompliance. In the event of noncompliance by a property owner or any subsequent resale or
lease of a property for use other than that stipulated in the original CZD approval, the property owner
would be in violation of the town zoning ordinance.

(r) Appeal of zoning administrator decisions concerning CZDs. Any determination made by the zoning
administrator regarding the project and/or this conditional zoning district is appealable to the zoning
board of adjustment. Such appeal shall be made in accordance with the procedure set forth in town
code section 36-328(3). In addition, staff is required to notify the mayor and town council of any
appeals related to this project and/or this conditional zoning district proceeding before the zoning
board of adjustment so that town council has the opportunity to participate as a party to the appeal
should it wish to do so.

( Ord. of 8-21-2017(1) , § 1(Exh. A); Ord. of 10-15-2018(1) , § 3) 

26



27



The Town of 
Weaverville

N O R T H   C A R O L I N A 

April 3, 2019 

Mayor Al Root and 
Weaverville Town Council 

 Re: Margaret S. Ottofey (through agent Thomas Wolfe of Saba Holding Group, LLC) 
Conditional Zoning District Application for 37 Brown Street 
Old Boy’s Dormitory – Weaver College 
Statement of Reasonableness and Recommendation 

Dear Mayor and Council –  

On 5 March 2019 and 2 April 2019, pursuant to Section 36-84 of the Town’s Code of Ordinances, the 
Planning and Zoning Board reviewed the application for a Conditional Zoning District that was 
submitted by Thomas Wolfe of Saba Holding Group, LLC, authorized agent for property owner 
Margaret S. Ottofey, on January 31, 2019. 

This project would refurbish and renovate the old Weaver College boy’s dormitory located at 37 Brown 
Street into a 16-unit multi-unit residential building while maintaining the historic nature and aesthetics 
of the building. The property is under single ownership, is currently zoned R-2, and is bounded by 
Brown Street to the east/southeast, College Street to the northeast, and private properties to the 
north, west and southwest. A site plan is attached which contains survey data.  

The maximum number of units in this project is 16, which is consistent with the number of units that 
the table of dimensional requirements would allowed within the R-2 zoning district.  The existing 
historic building is compliant with the setback requirements for the R-2 zoning district and the building 
height is either in compliance with R-2 zoning or is allowed as an existing nonconforming structure.  

At these meetings the Planning and Zoning Board reviewed the project for compliance with all of the 
items enumerated in Section 36-84(d). The Planning and Zoning Board also analyzed the project’s 
reasonableness in light of the Town’s comprehensive land use plan and other land use policies and 
found that the project is reasonable in light of the Town’s land use regulations including specifically the 
Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan and the stated goals and objectives in that Plan including those 
provisions which encourage a variety of housing opportunities, and consistency with the Town’s 
underlying R-2 zoning district which was designed and implemented for residential use, including a mix 
of single family and multi-family residential options. 

After careful review of this application and the materials submitted, the Planning and Zoning Board 
unanimously recommends the approval of the application for a Conditional Zoning District for the 

28



2 

project as reflected on the attached site plan, historic elevations, and conceptual floor plans, subject 
to the following conditions: 

1. The project is to be constructed consistent with the preliminary site plan and historic elevation
submitted by the applicant, copies of which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by
reference. The height of the building may not exceed its current height which has been
established as 40 feet at the roof ridge as measured from the front sidewalk at the front steps.
It is recognized that a fire escape must be constructed exterior to the existing building. A rear
entrance from the parking area must be provided with related improvements to facilitate
access to the building from the parking areas located at the rear and side of the building.

2. The maximum number of units allowed is 16.
3. The floor plans that are attached hereto are conceptual in nature and are allowed to be

changed as long as the number of units does not exceed 16. Sitting areas, mailrooms, laundry
facilities, storage areas, and other uses which support the residential units are allowed as long
as they are housed within the existing building or garage area. Commercial uses, such as
restaurants and shops are not allowed on the property.

4. The exterior of the main building must be maintained in such a manner as is consistent with the
historic aesthetics of the building as shown on the original elevation submitted with the
application and attached hereto, including but not limited to the original façade and old
brickwork. The exterior of the garage building must be repaired with a masonry stucco finish.

5. Sidewalks are not required within the project or along Brown Street or College Street.
6. All driveways/streets within the project shall be private. Said private driveways/streets shall be

constructed to Weaverville’s driveway/street standards, except that the historic horseshoe
driveway in the front of the building off of Brown Street is not required to meet those
standards. The covenants, conditions and restrictions applicable to this project, if any, must
include language stating that the streets are private and part of the common area of the
project, and as such will be maintained through the assessments for common expenses.

7. A minimum of 32 off-street parking spaces, with a minimum size of 9 feet by 18 feet, must be
provided and must be constructed and maintained in an all-weather condition regardless of
surface materials used.

8. One freestanding sign at the entrance of the project is allowed but such sign must not be larger
than 50 square feet of surface area per side of the sign, for a maximum aggregate of 100 square
feet of surface area, and must comply with the other standards contained in Article VIII of
Chapter 36 of the Town’s Code of Ordinances.

9. Any and all outdoor lighting that is to be installed must comply with Town Code Section 36-26,
except as specifically provided in this paragraph. All outdoor lighting on the property shall be
mounted on posts that are no more than 16 feet tall. Blocking, shielding and aiming of all
outdoor lighting shall be used to minimize light trespass on to adjoining residential properties.
The outdoor lighting plan must be submitted and approved in conjunction with a zoning permit
application.

29



3 

10. Landscaping must comply with Article VI of Chapter 36 of the Town’s Code of Ordinances. A
landscaping plan must be submitted and approved in conjunction with a zoning permit
application.

11. Grading must comply with Article XV of Chapter 36 of the Town’s Code of Ordinances. A grading
plan must be submitted and approved in conjunction with a zoning permit application.
Compliance with Buncombe County sedimentation and erosion control standards is also
required.

12. Landscape buffers or privacy fences or walls between the property and adjoining properties are
not required but are allowed.

13. Construction related vehicles must be parked on the property and not on the public streets or
the shoulders of those public streets. All dirt, mud, construction materials, or other debris
deposited on the public streets as a result of construction activities must be removed by the
contractor or owner on a daily basis, pursuant to Code Section 22-48.

14. All construction must be completed within 24 months of the issuance of the first permit
allowing work to begin on the property. Upon request of the owner/developer, Town Council
may, in its sole discretion, grant such extension as Town Council deems appropriate under the
circumstances.

15. Section 36-84 shall continue to govern the project including, but not limited, to those provisions
regarding issuance of zoning permits, modifications, appeals, and final plat approval.

The height of the existing building had not been measured at the time that the Planning and Zoning 
Board took action on the recommendation. This information is to be provided by the property owner 
or her agent and should be included in paragraph 1 of the conditions prior to Town Council adoption. 

While the unit density of the project (16 units) is consistent with the number of units allowed under 
the table of dimensional requirements, a concern was shared by one of the Planning and Zoning Board 
members related to the density that is proposed for this project. 

Whether the main driveways/streets are to be constructed with pervious (gravel) or impervious 
(pavement) material has yet to be determined. Some members of the Planning and Zoning Board 
indicated a preference for an impervious or paved surface in order to reduce the possibility of erosion 
and washing of the driveways/streets and parking spaces and possible impact on the public streets and 
related safety issues. The property owner is likely to employ engineers that will provide 
recommendations on the surface material for the driveways/streets and a grading plan must be 
submitted with a zoning permit application.  

To support the condition stated in paragraph 4 concerning sidewalks, it is noted that sidewalks are not 
required for projects that do not involve new construction. As this project is a renovation project, 
sidewalks would normally not be required. In addition, the existing residential neighborhood in which 
the project is located does not have sidewalks and sidewalks along the Brown Street and/or College 
Street frontage of the property would not be in character with the existing neighborhood, including the 
subdivision known as Lakeside Meadows which lies to the south of the property and does not have 

30



4 

sidewalks. The closest sidewalk to the project is located approximately 500 feet north at the 
intersection of College Street and Lakeshore Drive. 

To support the condition stated in paragraph 11 concerning buffering and fencing, it is noted that 
buffers between adjoining properties is not required by any residential use within the R-1, R-2 or R-3 
zoning districts. 

A traffic analysis was not conducted as Town staff determined that the peak hour trips would not 
trigger the requirement stated in Town Code Section 36-25.    

Under Town Code Section 36-84(i) Town Council has the discretion to require a performance guarantee 
to guarantee the completion of the conditions approved with the conditional zoning district and to 
determine the amount of such guarantee should Town Council wish to require one.  

It is also noted that a public involvement meeting required by Sec. 36-84(e)(3) has not yet been 
scheduled. Town Council is reminded that it cannot hold its public hearing on the application until such 
public involvement meeting has been held.  

While recognizing that it is outside of the scope of the Planning and Zoning Board’s review of the 
application, a suggestion was made that any historical artifacts found within the existing building might 
be of interest to the Dry Ridge Museum and the agent of the owner seemed interested in donating 
such materials, if found, to the Dry Ridge Museum. 

Please let me know if you need anything further from us on this matter. 

Sincerely, 

Doug Theroux 
Planning and Zoning Board Chairman 

cc: James Eller, Town Planner 
Selena Coffey, Town Manager 
Jennifer Jackson, Town Attorney 
Thomas Wolfe, Saba Holding Group, LLC 

Doug Theroux

31



32



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina  
Staff Report: Proposed CZD – 37 Brown 
Old College Dormitory 

Prepared February, 2019 

 
Sources:  
 

Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan 

 

Page 1 of 1 
 

Zoning Analysis 
 
Density:  
 
Currently the parcel in question falls within the R-2 zoning district. The R-2 Zoning district does permit 
multifamily housing if certain variables can be found as established by the table of dimensional 
requirements. In short, a base land area of 7,500 square feet must be found with an additional 5,000 
square feet of minimum lot area (where public water and sewer is available) for each additional dwelling 
unit. The preliminary plat submitted in conjunction with the conditional zoning district application 
reports that the property consists of 1.918 acres which translates to 83,548 square feet. The amount of 
land present supports 16.2 units within the table of dimensional requirements with 16 units being 
applied for. 
 
However, when consulting the table of uses we find that multifamily dwellings with more than four units 
are not permissible within the R-2 zoning district, hence the conditional zoning district application. 
 
* This conflict of competing regulations is not lost on staff and has long been flagged for addressing * 
 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan Compliance 
 
When considering compliance with the Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan (CLUP), often the analysis 
begins with a consultation of the future land use map (Figure 3-6 on page 3-5). Here it is found that this 
property exists in a gap between the defined areas shown for the future uses of Downtown Core and 
Residential. These gaps are intentional and are addressed within the CLUP on page 3-2 as follows: 
 
“When reviewing the map, you will see that there are gaps between defined areas, and that the defined 
areas do not necessarily follow property boundaries. This is purposeful given the uncertainties that exist 
on the ground that cannot be accounted for, and in recognition of the need for flexibility. And so, the 
boundaries and gaps should be viewed as flexible rather than lines in the sand, and the final decisions on 
transitional land use types in these areas should be left to the good judgement of the appointed and 
elected officials that are charged with establishing development policy and regulations in the Town.” 
 
Given the aforementioned statement, it is the opinion of staff that the proposed rezoning would not 
conflict with the Town’s CLUP. 
 
 

33



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 
Brown / Lakeshore Density Analysis Prepared March 2019 

Staff has prepared the following numbers for the Planning and Zoning Board’s consideration. It may be 
useful to examine the number of bedrooms within a development rather than unit number when 
considering the impact of a particular development may have on existing infrastructure.  

37 Brown Lakeside Meadows Lakeshore Minor Sub 
Acres 1.918 7.9 .88 
Units Per Sq. Ft. 1 Unit per 5,222 sq. ft. 1 Unit per 13,765 sq. ft. 1 Unit per 9,583 sq. ft. 
Bedrooms Per Sq. Ft. 1 BR per 4,641 sq. ft. 1 BR per 4,588 sq. ft. 1 BR per 2,395 sq. ft. 

Here it should be noted that the new development located on Lakeshore was permitted by right as a 
minor subdivision and presents the highest density when considering bedrooms rather than units. It is 
easy to imagine a scenario where, should the existing facility be razed and the dimensional standards 
applicable to the R-2 Zoning District are applied to the property, many more bedrooms can be achieved 
on the property. 

34



1

A1

F I R S T   F L O O R   P L A N

SCALE:   1/4" = 1'-0"

KING

QUEEN

KING

QUEEN

KING

TV

W/D

W/D

QUEEN

TV

TV TV

DWDW

DW

TV

QUEEN

DW

DW

QUEEN

Unit 101

858 SF

Unit 102

856 SF

TV

Unit 104

388 SF

Unit 106

477 SF

Unit 103

365 SF

Unit 105

350 SF

12'-6" - 50' MAX DEAD END

1
5

'
-
2

"
 
-
 
5

0
'
 
M

A
X
 
D

E
A

D
 
E

N
D

TWO EXITS FROM FIRST

FLOOR IF MORE THAN 10 OCC

AND 75' OF TRAVEL

DISTANCE - IBC 1021

HORIZONTAL FLOOR ASSEMBLIES

SHALL BE 1 HOUR RATED - IBC 712.3

(CHECK ON STC RATINGS)

NO ELEVATOR REQUIRED -

IBC 1107.2.1

EXIT FROM SECOND FLOOR TO EXTERIOR

TENANT SEPARATION SHALL BE

1  HOUR RATED - IBC 709.3 EX2

(CHECK STC RATINGS)

1 HOUR RATED VERTICAL SHAFT, EXTEND

TO UNDERSIDE OF ROOF DECK - IBC

708.5 AND 707.5

NFPA 13R SPRINKLER SYSTEM SHALL

BE PROVIDED THROUGHOUT THE

ENTIRE BUILDING - IBC 903.2.8 AND

903.3.1.2

ALL CORRIDOR DOORS AND

FRAMES SHALL BE 20M

RATED - IBC TABLE 715.4

ALL STAIR SHAFT DOORS

AND FRAMES SHALL BE 60M

RATED - IBC TABLE 715.4

Corridor

1  HOUR RATED - IBC 1018

Living / Dining

13'8 x 15'3

Living / Kitchen

12'0 x 14'0

Living / Kitchen

12'4 x 14'0

Living / Kitchen

12'0 x 19'6

Bath

Bath

Bath

Bath

Bath

Bath

Bath

Bedroom #2

12'0 x 11'0

Bedroom #1

11'0 x 14'0

Bedroom

9'8 x 9'7

Bedroom

9'8 x 9'7

Bedroom

12'0 x 12'0+

Bedroom

10'0 x 9'0

Mech

Mech

Coat

Closet

Closet

Closet

Closet

Closet

Closet

Closet

MAIL BOXES

Kitchen

13'8 x 9'6

Living / Dining

13'8 x 15'3

Bedroom #2

12'0 x 11'0

Bedroom #1

11'0 x 14'0

Living / Kitchen

12'0 x 19'6

DW

Kitchen

13'8 x 9'6

TV

TV

TV

TV

TV

TV

TV

TV

Mech

Mech

Coat Closet Mech

48'-0" - 50' MAX DEAD END

Bath

EXISTING DOORS TO REMAIN,

SHUT AND LOCK, DRYWALL

OVER DOOR ON INTERIOR SIDE

NEW METAL FIRE ESCAPE

ABOVE

N
O

T
 
F

O
R

 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N

W
 
E

 
A

 
V

 
E

 
R

 
 
 
B

 
U

 
I
 
L

 
D

 
I
 
N

 
G

 
 
 
A

 
P

 
A

 
R

 
T

 
M

 
E

 
N

 
T

 
S

8
3
 
E

v
e
l
y
n
 
P

l
a
c
e

A
s
h
e
v
i
l
l
e
,
 
N

o
r
t
h
 
C

a
r
o
l
i
n
a
 
2
8
8
0
1

SD SET:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

PROJECT NUMBER:

18-088

12.20.18

© COPYRIGHT 2018

WILSON ARCHITECTS

3
0
9
 
k
e
n
i
l
w

o
r
t
h
 
r
o
a
d
,
 
a
s
h
e
v
i
l
l
e
,
 
n
c
 
2
8
8
0
3
 
|
 
 
8
2
8
.
2
5
7
.
4
9
3
0

SITE PLAN

35

AutoCAD SHX Text
wilson 

AutoCAD SHX Text
architects

AutoCAD SHX Text
w2arch.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
A1



1

A2

S E C O N D   F L O O R   P L A N

SCALE:   1/4" = 1'-0"

TV

TV

QUEEN

DW

DW

QUEEN

Unit 205

373 SF

Unit 207

361 SF

Living / Kitchen

12'4 x 14'6

Living / Kitchen

12'4 x 14'6

Bath

Bath

Bedroom

9'8 x 10'0

Bedroom

9'8 x 9'7

Mech

Mech

Closet

Closet

TV

TV

TV

QUEEN

DW

DW

QUEEN

Unit 201

403 SF

Unit 203

359 SF

Living / Kitchen

12'0 x 14'6

Living / Kitchen

12'7 x 15'6

Bath

Bath

Bedroom

10'0 x 10'10

Bedroom

10'0 x 9'7

Mech

Mech

Closet

Closet

TV

TV

TV

DW

DW

Bath

Bath

Mech

Mech

Closet

Closet

TV

QUEEN

QUEEN

Unit 204

359 SF

Unit 202

403 SF

TV

TV TV

KING

QUEEN

TV TV

DWDW

Unit 206

395 SF

Unit 208

492 SF

Living / Kitchen

12'0 x 19'10

Bath

Bath

Bedroom

12'4x 12'4+

Bedroom

10'0 x 9'4

Closet

Closet

Living / Kitchen

12'0 x 19'6

TV

TV

Mech

Living / Kitchen

12'0 x 14'6

Living / Kitchen

12'7 x 15'6

Bedroom

10'0 x 9'7

Bedroom

10'0 x 10'10

38'-4" - 50' MAX DEAD END EXISTING DOORS TO REMAIN,

SHUT AND LOCK, DRYWALL

OVER DOOR ON INTERIOR SIDE

NEW DOUBLE DOOR IN

EXISTING WINDOW OPENING

NEW METAL FIRE ESCAPE

N
O

T
 
F

O
R

 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N

W
 
E

 
A

 
V

 
E

 
R

 
 
 
B

 
U

 
I
 
L

 
D

 
I
 
N

 
G

 
 
 
A

 
P

 
A

 
R

 
T

 
M

 
E

 
N

 
T

 
S

8
3
 
E

v
e
l
y
n
 
P

l
a
c
e

A
s
h
e
v
i
l
l
e
,
 
N

o
r
t
h
 
C

a
r
o
l
i
n
a
 
2
8
8
0
1

SD SET:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

PROJECT NUMBER:

18-088

12.20.18

© COPYRIGHT 2018

WILSON ARCHITECTS

3
0
9
 
k
e
n
i
l
w

o
r
t
h
 
r
o
a
d
,
 
a
s
h
e
v
i
l
l
e
,
 
n
c
 
2
8
8
0
3
 
|
 
 
8
2
8
.
2
5
7
.
4
9
3
0

FLOOR PLANS

36

AutoCAD SHX Text
wilson 

AutoCAD SHX Text
architects

AutoCAD SHX Text
w2arch.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
A2



1

A3

A T T I C   F L O O R   P L A N

SCALE:   1/4" = 1'-0"

W
D

QUEEN

QUEEN

W
D

Bath

TV

TV

TV

TV

Closet

Closet

MechDW

DW

Coat

Coat

Mech

Pantry

Unit 301

827 SF

Unit 302

836 SF

Kitchen

9'0 x 12'8

Living / Dining

14'0 x 19'0

Laundry

Bedroom

11'3 x 13'6

Bedroom

11'3 x 13'6

Living / Dining

25'0 x 14'0

Kitchen

13'6 x 8'0

Laundry

Bath

Corridor

1  HOUR RATED - IBC 1018

ONE EXIT FROM ATTIC FLOOR WITH 4

DWELLING UNIT MAX AND 50' TRAVEL

DISTANCE - IBC 1021 - MIGHT NEED

EGRESS WINDOWS FROM BEDROOMS

ON THIRD FLOOR WITH ONE EXIT

NFPA 13R SPRINKLER SYSTEM SHALL

BE PROVIDED THROUGHOUT THE

ENTIRE BUILDING - IBC 903.2.8 AND

903.3.1.2

NEW STAIR FROM SECOND FLOOR TO

ATTIC

Common Sitting

N
O

T
 
F

O
R

 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N

W
 
E

 
A

 
V

 
E

 
R

 
 
 
B

 
U

 
I
 
L

 
D

 
I
 
N

 
G

 
 
 
A

 
P

 
A

 
R

 
T

 
M

 
E

 
N

 
T

 
S

8
3
 
E

v
e
l
y
n
 
P

l
a
c
e

A
s
h
e
v
i
l
l
e
,
 
N

o
r
t
h
 
C

a
r
o
l
i
n
a
 
2
8
8
0
1

SD SET:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

PROJECT NUMBER:

18-088

12.20.18

© COPYRIGHT 2018

WILSON ARCHITECTS

3
0
9
 
k
e
n
i
l
w

o
r
t
h
 
r
o
a
d
,
 
a
s
h
e
v
i
l
l
e
,
 
n
c
 
2
8
8
0
3
 
|
 
 
8
2
8
.
2
5
7
.
4
9
3
0

FLOOR PLANS

37

AutoCAD SHX Text
wilson 

AutoCAD SHX Text
architects

AutoCAD SHX Text
w2arch.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
A3



38



39



40



41



 
 

Report of Community Meeting held by SABA Holding Group, LLC, Applicant, in 
compliance with the Code of Ordinance Article III- Use Regulations,  

Section 36-84(e)(3) Public Involvement Meeting 
 

A public meeting was held on May 7th, 2019 from 4pm-6pm, Council Chambers, 
Town Hall, Weaverville, NC concerning an application for CZD, 37 Brown St, 

Weaverville, NC, PIN 9742-16-7113 
 

 
ATTACHMENT A- Affidavits 
 
ATTACHEMNT B-Roster of attendees 
 
The issues discussed at the aforesaid meeting were as follows: 
 

1. Zoning density, underlying zoning and proposed density contrasted with 
other uses by right 

2. The number of units in the project and configurations (1 and 2 bedroom 
units) 

3. The ultimate ownership of property: apartments vs. condos 
4. Plans for existing landscape and resident’s desire for existing trees to remain 

and vegetative buffering/fencing 
5. The applicant maintaining historical context of structure both in and out 
6. The drive and parking configuration, traffic congestion, and street parking 
7. The applicant maintaining integrity of interior details 
8. Potential reduction of number of units 
9. The removal of all contents of building prior to transfer to new owner 

 
There are no changes to be made to the petition as a result of the meeting.  
 
 

42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



 

 
Page 1 of 3  April 9, 2019 

  Town Council Regular Workshop Minutes 
 

 

                       MINUTES 
 

Town of Weaverville    Town Council Regular Workshop 

State of North Carolina Tuesday, April 9, 2019 

 

The Town Council for the Town of Weaverville met for a regular workshop on Tuesday, April 9, 2019, at 6:00 

p.m. in Council Chambers within Weaverville Town Hall at 30 South Main Street, Weaverville, North Carolina. 

 

Council members present were: Mayor Root, Vice Mayor/Councilman Doug Jackson, Councilwoman Dottie 

Sherrill, Councilman Andrew Nagle, Councilman Patrick Fitzsimmons and Councilman Jeff McKenna.  

 

Staff present was: Town Manager Selena Coffey, Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson, Town Clerk Derek 

Huninghake, Finance Officer Tonya Dozier, Police Chief Ron Davis, Fire Chief Ted Williams, Town Planner 

James Eller, Water Treatment Plant Supervisor Trent Duncan and Public Works Director Dale Pennell. 

 

1. Call to Order 

Mayor Al Root called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 

Mayor Root opened the workshop by asking Council for their feedback on the Nature Park projects related 

to the summer music series  and construction of stage in the park that Town Manager Selena Coffey 

mentioned at the March 18, 2019 Town Council meeting. He noted that the Town Manager has gotten some 

resistance from citizens in the community on these projects, which he imagines will be a wonderful idea. 

Town Council gave their approval of the projects.  

 

Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson informed Town Council that two upset bids for the former bus garage were 

received by the deadline at Town Hall on April 8, 2019 at 4 pm. The highest bid was for $350,000 and the 

Town Clerk has begun the 10-day upset bid process again, by posting the notice in the paper for April 11, 

2019. The deadline for accepting qualifying upset bids ends on April 22, 2019 at 4 pm at the Town Hall and 

can be no less than $367,550.  

 

2. Staff Review and Recommendations for Personnel Related Policies 

Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson noted that before Town Council tonight for their recommendations are four 

policies that were topics at the March 18, 2019 meeting. Staff drafted these policies for Council to review, 

since most of them had been largely delegated to the Town Manager by Town Council. 

 

A. Information Technology and Internet Use Policy 

Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson mentioned that this policy sets out provisions designed to protect the 

Town’s resources (cellphones, computers, network, etc.) against misuse and security issues. This applies to 

employees who bring in their personal cellphones and other devices that connect to the internet as well. 

Town Attorney Jackson noted that the only change that staff recommends is to clean up the inconsistencies 

in the policy. The trickiest part of the policy will be in Section 5, Limitation on Freedom of Speech and 

52



 

 
Page 2 of 3  April 9, 2019 

  Town Council Regular Workshop Minutes 
 

Expression, which acknowledges  freedom of expression by a general member of the public. However, 

when working for the government there has to be some balancing to make sure that it doesn’t affect the 

reputation of the Town. 

 

Mayor Root noted that staff needs to make it extremely clear that the equipment of the Town belongs to the 

Town. Also, to change the wording under Section 4, Expectations of Privacy, from “the greatest extent 

possible” to “respected by the Town” and from “permitted” to “will occur” for periodic review by Town 

personnel. 

 

Town Attorney Jackson noted that this policy has been delegated to the Town Manager for adoption and 

wondered if Town Council wanted to be the ones adopting the policy. 

 

Mayor Root believes that the Workplace Violence Prevention Policy should be the only one needing to be 

approved by Town Council. The other three policies can be delegated to the Town Manager. 

 

Consensus was given by Council to maintain the delegation of this policy to the Town Manager. 

 

B. Social Media Policy 

Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson mentioned that the Social Media policy has similarities to the Internet Use 

policy in regards to Freedom of Expression. The main goal of the policy is to provide guidelines that will 

allow employees to properly utilize social media. Right now, the Town has three social media accounts: 

Weaverville Police Department, Weaverville Fire Department and the Town of Weaverville.  

 

Town Manager Selena Coffey stated that under Section F, Blocking, Hiding or Removing of Public 

Comments and Hearings, the Town is trying to limit and prevent the negative comments that are vulgar or 

personal attacks and pull those down. Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson noted that we have to remember the 

Public Records Law overlays this policy as well.  

 

Councilman McKenna questioned whether staff was looking over the Town’s social media accounts every 

day or only when an issue pops up, and who monitored them. Town Manager Coffey noted that she looks at 

the Town’s main Facebook page regularly and usually does the posting on the Fire Department social media 

account, since they aren’t too active with posting on their social media account. As for the Police 

Department’s social media account, Lieutenant Oberlin manages those and she does this regularly.  

 

Consensus was given by Town Council to delegate this policy to the Town Manager. 

 

C. Workplace Violence Prevention Policy 

Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson commented that the purpose of this policy is to clearly state that the Town 

is committed to preventing workplace violence for Town employees and citizens of Town Hall. Employees 

do have an obligation to report workplace violence and failure to do so could be harmful and dangerous. 

Also, any employee found to be in violation of this policy will be subject to disciplinary action and can face 

criminal prosecution and civil actions.  

 

Mayor Root noted that the section numbers need to be adjusted, since it goes from Section 4 to 15. Also, 

under Section 4, Reporting and Investigation, make sure it is clear who to report to and that when if it is 

reported to the  human resource officer or a department head, that it is given to the Town Manager as soon 

as possible.  

53



 

 
Page 3 of 3  April 9, 2019 

  Town Council Regular Workshop Minutes 
 

 

There was Town Council consensus that this be a policy that Town Council should adopt. 

 

D. Equipment and Vehicle Use Policy 

Town Manager Selena Coffey mentioned that this policy was created after researching standard policies of 

our neighboring jurisdictions and across the state. The goal of this policy is to provide a basic framework 

governing the use of Town equipment and vehicles by establishing criteria for types of vehicle assignments, 

and maintenance and care responsibilities of Town vehicles. It is the responsibility of the employee to make 

sure they have a valid license and insurance, observe all motor vehicle laws and passenger rules, and don’t 

smoke or vape in Town vehicles. All accidents involving a Town vehicle must be immediately reported to 

the Town Manager, Finance Officer and department head. Lastly, Town Manager Coffey asked Council for 

feedback on transporting sealed alcoholic beverages in the Town vehicles. 

 

Councilman Jackson asked how the 25 mile radius was calculated for take home vehicles and noted that 

unsealed alcohol should never be allowed in the Town vehicles. The Town Manager clarified her statement 

that unsealed alcohol is illegal and should not be transported in Town vehicles. Manager Coffey also 

responded that the 25-mile commute distance is a standard guideline used by neighboring jurisdictions. 

 

Mayor Root noted that he believes it is common sense not to drink and drive, but believes it is up to the 

Town Manager’s best judgment as to whether alcohol should be transported. Also, that under Section 2, 

License and Insurance, all employees operating Town vehicles should report any violation. As for passenger 

rules, the Town might make clear that passengers should normally be business related but that if family 

members are to be passengers it should be with Town Manager approval.  

 

Town Attorney Jackson mentioned that the Travel policy did prohibit family member passengers since we 

believed that they wouldn’t be covered by our insurance. However, we have gotten clarification from the 

NC League of Municipalities that they would be fully insured. Council will be receiving a recommendation 

from staff to remove that prohibition.   

 

Consensus was given by Town Council that this policy be delegated to the Town Manager. 

 

3. Adjournment 

Councilwoman Sherrill made the motion to adjourn the special called meeting; Vice Mayor/Councilman 

Jackson seconded and all voted in favor of closing the public hearing and adjourning the meeting at 

7:05pm. 

 

 

 

__________________________________________ 

        Derek K. Huninghake, Town Clerk 

54



 

 
Page 1 of 5  April 15, 2019  

  Town Council Meeting Minutes 
 

                       

                        MINUTES 

Town of Weaverville    Town Council Meeting 

State of North Carolina Monday, April 15, 2019 

 
The Town Council for the Town of Weaverville met for its regular monthly meeting on Monday, April 15, 2019, at 7:00 

p.m. in Council Chambers within Weaverville Town Hall at 30 South Main Street, Weaverville, North Carolina. 

 

Council members present were: Mayor Al Root, Vice Mayor/Councilman Doug Jackson, Councilwoman Dottie Sherrill, 

Councilman Jeffrey McKenna, Councilman Andrew Nagle and Councilman Patrick Fitzsimmons.  

 

Staff present was: Town Manager Selena Coffey, Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson, Finance Officer Tonya Dozier, Police 

Chief Ron Davis, Fire Chief Ted Williams, Town Planner James Eller, Public Works Director Dale Pennell and Water 

Treatment Supervisor Trent Duncan. 

 

1. Call to Order 
Mayor Al Root called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  

 
2. Approval/Adjustments to the Agenda 

Councilman Nagle asked to move Consent Agenda, Item E - Approval of Audit Contract, down to Discussion Item A.  

Councilwoman Sherrill made a motion to approve the agenda with the aforementioned revision. Councilman 

McKenna seconded and all voted in favor of the motion. 

 

3. Approval of Minutes 

Councilwoman Sherrill mentioned changing the Police Chief’s name on page 1 of the February 25, 2019 Town 

Council Regular meeting from Alan Wyatt to Ron Davis and to change the name on page 2 and 4 on the March 18, 

2019 Town Council meeting minutes from Ronnie Hilliard to Roney Hilliard.  

 

Councilman McKenna made the motion to approve the minutes from February 25, 2019 Town Council Regular 

Meeting, March 18, 2019 Town Council Special-Called Meeting, and March 18, 2019 Town Council Regular Meeting  

with the aforementioned revisions. Vice Mayor/Councilman Jackson seconded the motion and all voted in favor on 

the approval of the minutes. 

 

4. Special Recognition 

Mayor Al Root gave a special recognition to the Weaverville Lion’s Club for their 70th anniversary, by honoring 

them with a proclamation in recognition of their ongoing excellent service to the Town of Weaverville. Chartered on 

April 6, 1949, the Weaverville Lion’s Club has raised funds for scholarships to graduating seniors at the North 

Buncombe High School, the Weaverville Police Department Cops for Kids fundraiser, and several other local 

charities. 

 

Dr. Woody Bollinger accepted the declaration and thanked the Town of Weaverville, Town Council and Mayor for 

the recognition and showed them the charter with 50 resident signatures. He noted that they plan on continuing their 

service for as long possible.  

 

55



 

 
Page 2 of 5  April 15, 2019  

  Town Council Meeting Minutes 
 

5. General Public Comment 

Public comments were received as follows:  

Walt Thompson, Liaison for the Reems Creek HOA, gave special recognition to Water Treatment Plant Supervisor 

Trent Duncan for his tour of the Water Treatment Plant. He was really impressed by the Town’s water system and 

operations, but specifically the professionalism of the staff. He recommends to anybody that wants to learn about the 

water system to schedule tour.    
 

6. Consent Agenda 

Councilwoman Sherrill moved for the approval of the consent agenda. Councilman Fitzsimmons seconded the motion 

and all voted unanimously to approve all action requested in the consent agenda.  

 

A. Proclamation Honoring the Weaverville Lions Club 70th Anniversary – Adopted Proclamation 

B. Monthly Tax Report – Information Only 

C. Comprehensive Land Use Update – Staff updated Council on the Land Use Information and Public Input 

Sessions held on March 21, 2019 and March 26, 2019. Over 60 people were in attendance and a presentation for 

the Reems Creek Golf Community is planned for April 25, 2019.   

D. Road Closures: Music on Main and July 4th Celebration – Approved the Road Closure Ordinances for Music 

on Main on June 22, 2019 from 12:00 pm until 10:30 pm, and the Weaverville Downtown July 4th Celebration on 

July 4, 2019 from 12:00 pm until 11:30 pm. 

E. Resolution Authorizing Credit Card Payments – Adopted Resolution Authorizing the Use of Credit Cards for 

Payment of any Type of Bill or Fee. 

 

7. Town Manager’s Report 

Town Manager Selena Coffey presented her Manager’s report to Council including that in recognition of Good 

Friday, Town offices will be closed on Friday, April 19, 2019; she will be on vacation from April 16-19, but will be 

available by text or phone; the Town will be recognizing Earth Day on April 22 and is holding a brief program for 

Arbor Day outside of Town Hall at 11am on April 26; the Town is coordinating a shred day with the State 

Employee’s Credit Union for Town residents on May 11 from 9am-12pm in the Town Hall parking lot; the first 

budget workshop is coming up on Tuesday, May 14 at 6:00 pm in Council Chambers at Town Hall; and in accordance 

with the Town’s Code of Ordinances, she reported that the Town has just sold a 1997 Vermeer Brush Chipper for 

approximately $7,500 on GovDeals.  

 

8. Discussion and Action Items 

A. Approval of Audit Contract 

Finance Officer Tonya Dozier mentioned that a Request for Proposals for audit services was completed in Spring 

2018, with Gould Killian CPA Group being selected by Town Council. This is the second year of the three year audit 

contract and the total cost of $22,150 includes $17, 950 for the audit and $4,200 for completion of the Comprehensive 

Annual Financial Report.  

 

Mayor Root noted that this audit covers the statutory obligations that the Town must follow, but doesn’t include an in-

depth forensic audit.  

 

Town Manager Selena Coffey mentioned that funds were held for an assurance audit last year and are included in the 

proposed budget this year, if Council wishes to engage in a separate auditing firm. Additional costs for a separate 

audit range from $2,500 to $5,000, depending on the scope of the audit .  

 

Councilman Nagle mentioned that his biggest problem with the statutory obligation is that for the cost of $22,150, it 

doesn’t touch on or find fraud. Also, not to budget for a separate audit if we are not going to move forward on it.   

 

Councilman McKenna suggested seeing if any other municipalities have changed their procedures for audits, due to 

what the county has been going through recently.    

56



 

 
Page 3 of 5  April 15, 2019  

  Town Council Meeting Minutes 
 

Finance Officer Dozier mentioned that she would bring those questions up to Gould Killian CPA Group. Also, she 

noted that the number of auditing firms conducting government audits is becoming smaller, due to the revisions of 

governmental auditing standards. 

  

Councilman McKenna made a motion to approve the attached audit contract for Gould Killian CPA Group and that 

the Mayor and Town Staff are authorized to execute the same. Councilman Jackson seconded the motion. The motion 

passed by a unanimous vote of Council. Motion carries 5-0. 

 

B. Presentation of Proposed Budget 

Town Manager Selena Coffey presented to Town Council for their consideration the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Proposed 

Budget. The proposed budget equals $9,962,776, which is an increase of 1.4% from the FY 2018-2019 budget, and 

has a General Fund of $7,561,526 and a Water Fund of $2,401,250. The proposed budget is based on a tax rate of 

$0.38 per $100 valuation and tax values estimated by Buncombe County of $850,453,330. The General Fund 

expenses increased due to higher living wage rates, adding a new police officer position, replacing 3 police vehicles, 1 

fire vehicle, and 2 trucks for the streets and recreation division. The capital improvements program increased with the 

addition of $25,000 for a sidewalk study and $80,000 for Lake Louise restroom facility improvements. Town 

Manager Coffey noted some new initiatives as well, one being the purchase of a computer aided dispatch (CAD) for 

the police department for $43,000 and another is to create a capital reserve fund for the future purchase of a 

replacement fire truck of $75,000. As for the Water Fund, it represents an increase of 6.3% and will increase water 

rates by 5.0% as recommended by Withers-Ravenel water rates analysis. Also, included is the vehicle replacement of 

a truck and dump truck for the water department, the replacement of an air compressor and two pump rebuilds for 

water operations, and waterline improvements to Coleman Street and Shuford Road waterlines. Town Manager 

Coffey noted that a new initiative added in the budget is a proposed waterline match of $75,000 for the North 

Buncombe Middle School waterline.  Town Manager Coffey noted  that there are two budget workshops coming up 

on May 14 and May 21 at the Town Hall, the Public Hearing on the budget is scheduled for Monday, June 11, 2019 at 

6:00 pm, and proposed adoption of the budget is scheduled for June 17, 2019. The proposed budget for FY 2019-2020 

showing the General and Water Fund budget is on the Town website and available at the Weaverville Town Hall. 

 

Public Comment: 

Thomas Veasey, 69 Lakeshore Drive, commented that he doesn’t support the Town funding the replacement of 

waterlines to the North Buncombe Middle School. He believes that citizens already pay county taxes and with the 

most recent scandal, he doesn’t think it is fair. 

 

C. Personnel Related Policies 

Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson mentioned that staff is still chipping away on the Town’s personnel policies and 

thanked Council for their input at the Town Council workshop on April 9, 2019 on the following policies: Information 

Technology and Internet Use Policy, Social Media Policy, Equipment and Vehicle Use Policy, and Workplace 

Violence Prevention Policy. By consensus, Town Council confirmed the delegation of adoption of all of these policies 

to the Town Manager, except for the Workplace Violence Prevention policy. Before Council tonight is a review of the 

last few personnel-related policies, the Voluntary Shared Leave Policy and Americans with Disabilities Act 

Compliance Policy. Town Attorney Jackson mentioned that the Town’s Voluntary Shared Leave Policy was adopted 

in 2012 and she is proposing a more limited voluntary shared leave policy that will allow regular full-time and part-

time employees that are earning benefits be allowed to donate up to 40 hours of annual leave to qualified employees 

who are experiencing a prolonged (20 days) medical condition. The shared leave would have to be approved by the 

Town Manager.  Town Attorney Jackson noted that the next policy, Americans with Disabilities Act Compliance 

Policy is new, and provides broad protections against discrimination affecting employees/citizens with qualified 

disabilities.  

 

Town Manager Selena Coffey noted that the State ADA office contacted her a few months ago and since, the Town of 

Weaverville is over 50 employees we have to do a transition plan concerning ADA compliance for Town facilities 

57



 

 
Page 4 of 5  April 15, 2019  

  Town Council Meeting Minutes 
 

and services. This is a compliance issue that staff will have to be designated to do or contract it out to another 

company.  

 

D. Ratification of Interlocal Agreement for Fire Departments 

Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson discussed the “First Due Size-Up Program” that Fire Chief Ted Williams has asked 

the Town to be the purchasing agent for, in order to take advantage of a $7,000 grant and a quantity discount. This 

program is a dispatch and pre-plan tool that allows emergency responders to have as much information as possible 

about the location they responding to by pulling information from many different data bases such as GIS, tax records, 

and permits and inspections. Town Attorney Jackson also noted that there is a “Community Connect” module with the 

program that will allow citizens with any kind of special need to be identified and allows responding agencies to 

better help these citizens during times of emergency. Through the attached interlocal agreement, the cost of the 

program would be $911.58 for each of the 19 departments and the Town of Weaverville, allowing the program to be 

available to all emergency departments in Buncombe County. 

 

Councilwoman Sherrill made a motion to ratify the interlocal agreement presented. Councilman Nagle seconded the 

motion. The motion passed by a unanimous vote of Council. Motion carries 5-0. 

 

E. Riverside Stump Dump Annexation and Initial Zoning – Certificate of Sufficiency, Set Public Hearing  on 

Annexation and Zoning for 6 pm on May 20, 2019 

Town Planner James Eller mentioned that during the March 18, 2019 Town Council meeting, Council was presented 

with a voluntary annexation petition and a zoning map amendment application, where they instructed the Town Clerk 

to investigate the eligibility of a proposed annexation and the Planning and Zoning Board was instructed to examine 

the compliance with the Town’s adopted comprehensive land use plan with desired initial zoning of R-12. Both of 

these actions have occurred and staff is seeking the setting of a public hearing before Town Council on Monday, May 

20, 2019 at 6:00 pm.  

Councilwoman Sherrill made a motion to set the public hearing for May 20, 2019 at 6:00 pm for the aforementioned 

voluntary annexation and the initial zoning of the property to R-12 should annexation be approved. Councilman 

Nagle seconded the motion. The motion passed by a unanimous vote of Council. Motion carries 5-0. 

 

F. Conditional Zoning District for 37 Brown Street – Set Public Hearing for 6 pm on May 20, 2019 

Town Planner James Eller mentioned that before Town Council for their consideration is a conditional zoning district 

proposal for the property at 37 Brown Street consisting of 1.9 acres. This application calls for an establishment of no 

more than 16 units within the existing facility, which is formerly known as the Weaver College Boy’s Dormitory. The 

only expansion that would be called for is a fire escape on the north side of the facility. Otherwise, the historical 

nature of the building should be preserved. The Planning and Zoning Board has reviewed the application and 

unanimously passed along a positive recommendation to Town Council. Staff is seeking the setting of a public 

hearing before Town Council on Monday, May 20,2019 at 6:00 pm. 

 

Councilman Nagle commented that he doesn’t want Council to be put in a situation where they have to approve a 

CZD application after the public comments, instead of allowing themselves more time to come to a decision if 

needed.  

 

Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson mentioned that the timeframe Councilman Nagle might be considering is when the 

Planning and Zoning Board has their first consideration, they have a timeframe to getting it back to Council. She also 

mentioned that at the point of holding the public hearing, the developer will have held the public community 

involvement meetings, so those comments will be addressed during the public hearing    

Vice Mayor/Councilman Jackson made a motion to set the public hearing for May 20, 2019 at 6:00 pm for the 

aforementioned proposed conditional zoning district. Councilwoman Sherrill seconded the motion. The motion passed 

by a majority vote of Council. Motion carries 5-0.  

 

58



 

 
Page 5 of 5  April 15, 2019  

  Town Council Meeting Minutes 
 

G. Quarterly Report: Planning 

Town Planner James Eller presented the Planning Department Quarterly Report and noted that 33 Zoning Permits and 

4 Sign Permit have been issued during this period. Mr. Eller also mentioned a significant change that Buncombe 

County Board of Commissioners passed by ordinance, which alters the zoning districts in which mobile homes can 

now be permitted. Now with special requirements, HUD stamped mobiles homes can be placed in R-1 and R-2 under 

Buncombe County jurisdictions.  He has been contacted by former ETJ owners about the possibility of being 

voluntarily annexed into the Town.  

H. Quarterly Report: Finance 

Finance Officer Tonya Dozier presented the Quarterly Finance Report from January 2019 – March 2019. She 

mentioned that the Revenue and Expenditure Statements by Department were used to show where the Town was in 

comparison to the budget. Yearly revenues appear to have come in higher than expected, so those funds will be added 

to the fund balance at the end of the year. As for yearly expenditures, it looks like they will equal the amount that was 

budgeted.  The quarterly report was presented and reviewed.  

 

9. Adjournment 

Councilman Nagle made the motion to adjourn; Councilman McKenna seconded and all voted to adjourn the 

Council’s meeting at 8:51 p.m. 

 

__________________________________________ 

Derek K. Huninghake, Town Clerk 

59



PROCLAMATION 

 

In Recognition of National Police Week 2019 
 
 
 

WHEREAS, in 1962, President Kennedy proclaimed May 15 as National Peace 

Officers Memorial Day and the calendar week in which May 15 falls, as National Police 

Week, a time of reflection and appreciation for the ultimate sacrifices made by the 

dedicated men and women of law enforcement who were killed or disabled in the line of 

duty; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is important that all citizens know and understand the challenges 

and responsibilities of their police department, and that members of the department 

recognize their duty to serve the people by safeguarding lives, property, and freedoms; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the Weaverville Police Department is a professional law enforcement 

agency that unceasingly provides vital public safety services and our residents and 

visitors are safer for their commitment; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town of Weaverville, urges its citizens to join it in honoring law 

enforcement officers, past and present, who have extended faithful and loyal devotion to 

their communities; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE I, Allan P. Root, by virtue of the authority vested in me as 

Mayor of the Town of Weaverville, and on behalf of Weaverville Town Council, do 

hereby proclaim the week of May 12 through May 18, 2019 as National Police Week in 

the Town of Weaverville. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of 

the Town of Weaverville to be affixed this the 20th day of May in year of 2019. 

 

 
   

  Allan P. Root, Mayor  

Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 

   

ATTEST:  Derek Huninghake, Town Clerk   

   

   

   

   

   

 

60



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  May 20, 2019   

SUBJECT: Monthly Tax Report 

PRESENTER:  Tax Collector 

ATTACHMENTS: Monthly Tax Report 
  
 
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

The Town Tax Collector provides the following monthly tax report as of                 
May 9, 2019. This report is provided for information only.  

No action is requested or required. 

 

 

 

  

61



5/9/2019
Real Property: 750,820,030$        
Real Property Discoveries: 1,279,000               

Total Real Property:  752,099,030$        
Personal: 54,787,228             
Personal Discoveries: 30,290,632             

Total Personal: 85,077,860             
Public Utilities: 4,952,725               
Exemption: (10,689,570)           
Releases: (1,056,906)              
Total Tax Value 830,383,139$        

Tax Levy @.38 cents per $100
Real Property: 2,857,976$             
Personal Property: 323,296                  
Public Utilities: 18,820                     
Less Under $5 Adjustment (57)                           
Total Public Utilities: 18,763                     
Exemption: (40,620)                   
Releases: (4,016)                     
Total Levy (Total Billed) 3,155,399$             

Total Current Year Collections 3,127,395$             
% Collected 99.11%

Total Left to be Collected: 28,004$                  

Prior Years Paid 151$                        

Town of Weaverville
MONTHLY TAX REPORT

FY 2018-19

62



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

Date of Meeting: 

Subject: 

Presenter:  

Attachments: 

Monday, May 20, 2019 

Initial Review of a Proposed Conditional Zoning District on 
the Property Commonly Known as 108 Church Street. 

Planning Director 

CZD Application, Site Plan

Description: 

Staff is in possession of an executed conditional zoning district application for the 
property commonly known as 108 Church Street. Given that a CZD is proposed, initial 
review by Town Council is required. The application is calls for the creation of 20 lots 
from the present 2.87 acres. A conditional zoning district is required for this desired 
configuration due to the reduced lots sizes and setbacks and increased density than 
would otherwise be permissible within the underlying R-1 zoning district.  

Action Requested: 

Staff is seeking the opinion of Town Council so such positions may be taken into 
consideration during deliberations with the Planning and Zoning Board who will review 
the application in conjunction with staff.  

63



CONDITIONAL ZONING DISTRICT APPLICATION 
Planning and Zoning Department 
30 South Main Street, P.O. Box 338, Weaverville, NC 28787 
(828) 484-7002--- fax (828) 645-4776 --- jeller@weavervillenc.org 
Application Fee Based Upon Size of Property 
 

Conditional Zoning Districts address situations in which a particular use, properly planned, may be 
appropriate for a specific site but, the existing zoning district of the site has insufficient standards 
to mitigate the site-specific impact on the surrounding area. Uses which may be considered for a 
Conditional Zoning District shall be established on a case-by-case basis at the request of the 
property owner. Conditional Zoning Districts are not intended for securing early or speculative 
reclassification of a property. 

At the discretion of the Town Council, it may be required of the property owner to guarantee 
performance or completion of conditions included in the Conditional Zoning Plan. Such guarantee 
may take the form of: (1) a surety performance bond made by a company licensed and authorized 
in  North Carolina, (2) a bond of a developer with an assignment to the Town of a certificate of 
deposit, (3) a bond of developer secured by an official bank check drawn in favor of the Town and 
deposited with the Town Clerk, (4) cash or an irrevocable letter of credit, (5) a bank escrow account 
whereby the developer deposits cash, a note, or a bond with a federally insured financial institution 
into an account payable to the Town. The amount of the guarantee shall be determined by Town 
Council.   

 
OWNER/APPLICANT NAME:          APPLICATION DATE:       
 
 
 
BRIEFLY DESCRIBE THE PROJECT:       

 

PHONE NUMBER:            PROPERTY ADDRESS:       
 
 
 
PIN:              DEED BOOK/PAGE:       
 
 
 
LOT AREA (acres):           ZONING DISTRICT:        
 
 
___________________________________________       _____  ________________ 
SIGNATURE OF APPLICANT         DATE  
  

64

Chris Kaselak
North Hill Ventures
9 W. Walnut St, Ste 3B
Asheville, NC 28801

Chris Kaselak
05.06.2019

Chris Kaselak
A new 20 lot residential subdivision consisting of 1300-1450 sqft single family homes.

Chris Kaselak
828.649.7658

Chris Kaselak
108 Church St

Chris Kaselak
973298759200000

Chris Kaselak
2.87 acres

Chris Kaselak
R-1

Chris Kaselak
4668/0384

Chris Kaselak


Chris Kaselak
Member                                                          05.06.2019



CONDITIONAL ZONING DISTRICT APPLICATION 
Planning and Zoning Department 
30 South Main Street, P.O. Box 338, Weaverville, NC 28787 
(828) 484-7002--- fax (828) 645-4776 --- jeller@weavervillenc.org 
Application Fee Based Upon Size of Property 
 
A petition for a Conditional Zoning District must include a site plan and supporting information 
that specifies the intended uses for property. A complete site plan will include the following: 
 
 Title block containing: 

 Name of owner & applicant 
 Property address 
 Buncombe County PIN  
 Date or dates survey was conducted or plan prepared 
 Scale of the drawing in feet per inch 
 Deed book and page reference of the deed  
 Zoning designation of property 

 Sketch vicinity map depicting the relationship between the proposed subdivision and the surrounding area 
 North Arrow and orientation 
 Lot area in acres and square feet 
 Existing topography of the site and within 300 feet of the site boundary in five (5) foot contours 
 Delineation of areas within the floodplain. 
 Names of owners of adjoining properties, Buncombe County PIN, and zoning designation 
 Minimum building setback lines applicable to the lot, including drainage or utility easements 
 Proposed number and location of signs 
 Exact dimensions, location, height, and exterior features of proposed buildings and structures 
 Photographs of buildings on properties within 200 ft. of subject property 
 Utility easements 
 Existing and proposed sanitary sewer system layout and a letter of commitment 
 Existing and proposed water distribution system layout and a letter of commitment  
 Plans for individual water supply and sewerage/septic disposal system, if any 
 A statement as to whether or not natural gas, telephone, electric, and cable lines are to be installed, and whether 

they will be above or below ground 
 Exact dimension and location of all traffic, parking, and circulation plans showing the proposed location and 

arrangement of parking spaces.  
 Existing and proposed roads, driveways, ingress/egress, easements, and rights-of-way both private and public.  
 Existing and proposed encroachments into setbacks, rights-of-way, and/or easements, if any 
 Proposed phasing, if any, and expected completion date of the project. 
 
Upon reviewing the application, site plan, and supporting documents, the Planning and Zoning 
Board will issue statement of reasonableness of the proposed Conditional Zoning District.  

Before a public hearing may be held by the Town Council, the petitioner must file in the Office of 
the Town Clerk, a written report of at least one community meeting held by the petitioner. The 
report shall include a list of those persons and organization notified of the meeting detailing the 
method and date of contact’ the date, time, and location of the meeting; a roster of persons in 
attendance, a summary of issues discussed, and a description of any changes to the petition as a 
result of the meeting. In the event the petitioner has not held at least one meeting, the petitioner 
shall file a report documenting efforts that were made and the reasons such a meeting was not held.  

 

65

Chris Kaselak


Chris Kaselak


Chris Kaselak


Chris Kaselak


Chris Kaselak


Chris Kaselak


Chris Kaselak


Chris Kaselak


Chris Kaselak


Chris Kaselak


Chris Kaselak


Chris Kaselak


Chris Kaselak


Chris Kaselak


Chris Kaselak


Chris Kaselak


Chris Kaselak


Chris Kaselak


Chris Kaselak


Chris Kaselak


Chris Kaselak


Chris Kaselak


Chris Kaselak


Chris Kaselak


Chris Kaselak


Chris Kaselak


Chris Kaselak


Chris Kaselak
NA



9 W Walnut Street, Suite 3B
Asheville, NC 28801

828.649.7658

CONDITIONAL ZONING DISTRICT APPLICATION  
108 Church St Subdivision  
Additional and Supplemental Information  
05.06.2019  

Project Phasing 
We propose to complete the project in two distinct phases: 

• Phase 1: Construction of the homes along Church St including installation of necessary 
grading and sewer infrastructure serving those homes 

• Phase 2: Construct new road, extend water main and complete remaining infrastructure to 
serve lower course of homes and construction of the remaining homes 

Expected completion date of the project: 
Assuming approval is granted in August, 2019, we expect: 

• Completion of Phase 1 in August, 2020 
• Completion of Phase 2 in November, 2021 

Placement of Utilities 
The homes will be served by the following utilities: 

• Sewer - Sewer connections to Buncombe MSD per submitted drawings and attached 
sewer allocation letter 

• Water - Water connections to Town of Weaverville Water System per submitted drawings 
• Electric - New underground service installed to each home. 
• Telephone and Cable - New underground service installed to each home. 
• Gas - Natural gas is currently not available at this location.  

66



67



9 W Walnut Street, Suite 3B | Asheville, NC 28801 | 828.649.7658

General Statement and Intent of Proposed Homes 
108 Church St Subdivision 
Conceptual Information 
05.06.2019

Design 
With every home we build, North Hill is highly focused on the design elements.  Features 
like high ceilings, open spaces, authentic materials, and lots of natural light characterize 
our builds.  A well-designed home allows us to feel good about the space we inhabit, 
proud of its appearance, and thankful for the positive influence on our daily lives. 
 
Value 
We work hard to include as many features in our homes as possible.  Our equation is not 
“How cheap can we make it and still get the asking price?”.  It is, and always will be, 
“How much can we add without raising the cost?”.  We specify every component in our 
homes with quality, durability, efficiency and aesthetics in mind. 
 
Obtainability  
North Hill focuses on building homes that are obtainble for a wide range of buyers.  We 
believe our area has a tremendous need for well designed and well built homes that are 
offered at a price that allows buyers to enter into home ownership. 
 
Specific Traits of Proposed Homes on Church Street 
In general the homes we are proposing would have the following traits.  
 1.) Homes priced in the range of $265,000-$295,000 
 2.) Most homes would be 3 bedrooms and 2 1/2 baths with 1300-1400 square feet 
 of floor space 
 3.) Garages or carports included with certain models. Designated parking for   
 other models 
 4.) Based on the natural terrain of the site, most floor plans would feature a main   
 level with  a daylighted lower level to fit the topography and help preserve views for  
 all neighbors 
 
Conceptual Information 
Please see the attached pages for more information and conceptual ideas about the type 
of homes North Hill is proposing for the project.   
 

68



9 W Walnut Street, Suite 3B | Asheville, NC 28801 | 828.649.7658

Common Exterior Features of a North Hill Home 
108 Church St Subdivision 
Conceptual Information 
05.06.2019

Architectural 
Composite 
Shingles

Spacious 
Front 

Porches

Fiber-Cement 
Lap or Board & 
Batten Siding

Painted 
Composite Clad 

Windows

Architecturally 
Current  

Interpretations  
of Classic Forms

Stucco 
Foundations Siding Colors Selected to 

Coordinate Throughout 
the Development

Large Windows 
Maximizing 

Inside/Outside 
Connections 

69



9 W Walnut Street, Suite 3B | Asheville, NC 28801 | 828.649.7658

CLS

CLS

Open to Below

Master suite 
on main

Washer/Dryer

Dining

Efficient  
Kitchens

Storage

Open 
Living 
Room

Bedroom 
Two

Bedroom 
Three

Mechanical 
and 

Storage

Vaulted  
Ceilings

Open 
Stairwells

Attic 
Storage 
Above

Full Bath

Common Interior Floorplan Features of a North Hill Home 
108 Church St Subdivision 
Conceptual Information 
05.06.2019

Secondary Floor Primary Floor

Outdoor 
Living 
Spaces

70



Examples of General Architectural Styling of Neighborhood 
108 Church St Subdivision 
Conceptual Information - 05.06.2019

9 W Walnut Street, Suite 3B | Asheville, NC 28801 | 828.649.765871



C
H

U
R

C
H

 S
TR

E
E

T E
X

T.

S
.R

. 1721

(60' R
/W

)

10
'

10
'

5'
5'

50'

10
4.1

1'

40'

80
.41

'

5'5'

10
'

10
'

44'

10
5.0

8'

34'

81
.95

'

18
'

45
' R

OW

60
'

20'

28' r

28' r

20' r

20' r

MH

MH

MH

#8
0.11 ac.
4,951 sf

#1
0.15 ac.
6,380 sf

#2
0.12 ac.
5,235 sf

#3
0.12 ac.
5,223 sf

#4
0.12 ac.
5,212 sf

#5
0.12 ac.
5,200 sf

#6
0.12 ac.
5,150 sf

#7
0.12 ac.
5,051 sf

#10
0.10 ac.
4,396 sf

#13
0.11 ac.
4,679 sf

#16
0.11 ac.
4,669 sf

#17
0.10 ac.
4,537 sf

#19
0.10 ac.
4,421 sf #18

0.10 ac.
4,443 sf #15

0.11 ac.
4,698 sf

#14
0.11 ac.
4,714 sf

#12
0.10 ac.
4,323 sf

#11
0.10 ac.
4,289 sf

#9
0.11 ac.
4,823 sf

#20
0.11 ac.
4,937 sf

STORMWATER
BMP

PHASE 1

PHASE 1

10' STORMWATER
EASEMENT

STOP SIGN (TYP.)

NO
RT

H 
HI

LL
 V

EN
TU

RE
S

5/6
/20

19

PROJECT NAME:

SHEET TITLE:

5/6/2019
ISSUE No. A-1

NHV001
DATE:

PROJECT NO.

# A

of

SHEET NO.

RE
VI

SI
ON

 D
ES

CR
IP

TI
ON

Iss
ue

 1 
- S

ub
mi

tta
l to

 T
ow

n o
f W

ea
ve

rvi
lle

DA
TE

for

Town of Weaverville
Buncombe County, NC

HI
GH

 C
OU

NT
RY

 E
NG

IN
EE

RI
NG

, P
.C

.
41

 C
LA

YT
ON

 S
TR

EE
T,

 S
UI

TE
 30

0
AS

HE
VI

LL
E,

 N
OR

TH
 C

AR
OL

IN
A 

28
80

1
T:

 82
8.2

30
.45

11
F:

 82
8.3

48
.50

40

NC
 F

IR
M 

NO
.: C

-3
34

7

CH
UR

CH
 S

TR
EE

T 
SU

BD
IV

IS
IO

N

CHURCH STREET
SUBDIVISION

1

CO
NS

TR
UC

TI
ON

 P
LA

NS
 F

OR

To
wn

 of
 W

ea
ve

rvi
lle

Bu
nc

om
be

 C
ou

nty
, N

or
th 

Ca
ro

lin
a

NHV001
CHURCH STREET SUBDIVISION

SITE PLAN
0

GRAPHIC SCALE

SCALE 1" = 30'

30' 60' 90'30' 15'

C-1

PROJECT NOTES:

OWNER: APPLICANT:
Donald Terry Burnette    North Hilll Ventures
108 Church Street    9 W. Walnut Street, Ste. 3B
Weaverville, NC 28787    Asheville, NC 28801

   T: 828-243-5557

ENGINEER:
High Country Engineering, PC (C-3347)
41 Clayton Street, Suite 300
Asheville, North Carolina 28801
T:828-230-4511
Contact: Michael R. Goforth, PE
Email: mgoforth@hcepc.net

1. Property located in Weaverville, North Carolina.  Property address is 108 Church Street, NC 28787

2. PIN NUMBER: 9732-98-7592

3. Zoning: R-1 by the Town of Weaverville.

4. Deed Book: 4668 and Page 384.

5. Proposed use is for a subdivision.

6. Project Coordinates: -82..570999° W, 35.699557° N

7. The receiving water course for this project is a Unnamed Tributary to Gill Branch.  At the confluence,
Gill Branch, Stream Index 6-87-12, is a Class C water as classified by NCDENR.

8. Total tract contains over ±2.87 acres/disturbed area= ±2.87  acres. Total new impervious area =
±0.46  acres (2.3%).

9. Boundary & Topographical information obtained from survey by Bobby C. McMahan, PLS # L-2475
of McMahan & Associates, PA and dated February 12, 2009.

10. Contour interval is 2 feet.

11. This property is shown on F.I.R.M. panel number 3700973200J, dated January 6, 2010 and is not
located within a special flood hazard zone "X" or "AE".

12. The location of underground utilities shown is approximate based on surface field evidence and
information supplied by utility agencies.  The survey makes no certification as to the completeness of
the locations shown heron.  Appropriate utility companies should be contacted for verification of
locations prior to any construction activity.

13. The contractor shall verify the invert elevations of all existing storm and sanitary sewer structures
prior to commencement of storm and sanitary sewer construction.

14. Contractor shall notify the engineer and owner/developer of any information found in the field that is
different from what is shown on these design plans.

NOT TO SCALE
LOCATION MAP

N

PROJECT LOCATION

TO
 A

SH
EV

ILL
E

NATURAL GAS, TELEPHONE, ELECTRIC, AND CABLE LINES ARE TO
BE INSTALLED BELOW GROUND WHERE AVAILABLE.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5B10C37E-CA72-4700-857A-08041CCDFB84

5/6/2019

72



TOWN	OF	WEAVERVILLE	
TOWN	COUNCIL	AGENDA	ITEM	

	

DATE	OF	MEETING:	 May 20, 2019	  

SUBJECT:	 Resolution Concerning Minimal Taxes 
 
PRESENTER:	 	 Tax Collector 
	
ATTACHMENTS:	 	 Proposed Resolution 
    NCGS 105-321(f) 
 
DESCRIPTION:	

Section 105-321(f) of the North Carolina General Statutes authorizes the 
governing body of a taxing unit to direct its tax collector not to collect minimal 
taxes charged on the tax records and receipts. Minimal taxes are the combined 
taxes and fees of the taxing unit due on a tax receipt that do not exceed an 
amount set by the governing body. Such an amount should be set based on the 
estimated cost to the taxing unit of billing the taxpayer for the amounts due on 
a tax receipt or tax notice.  The Tax Collector is of the opinion that $5.00 is the 
estimated cost of billing a taxpayer and suggests that the minimal tax be set at 
$5.00.  

Should Town Council wish to set a minimal tax amount and direct the Tax 
Collector to withhold collection efforts on tax bills with minimal taxes owed, 
then the attached resolution could be considered.  

	

COUNCIL	ACTION	REQUESTED:	

Town Council is asked to approve the attached resolution that sets the 
minimal tax amount at $5.00 and directs the Town Collector to withhold 
collection efforts on bills that are $5.00 or less. The following motion is 
suggested for this purpose: 

I	move	that	we	adopt	the	Resolution	Concerning	Minimal	Taxes.	

73



  
 
 

RESOLUTION	CONCERNING	MINIMAL	TAXES	
 
WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute §105-321(f) authorizes the 

governing body of a taxing unit to direct its tax collector not to collect minimal taxes 
charged on the tax records and receipts; and 

WHEREAS, minimal taxes are the combined taxes and fees of the taxing unit 
due on a tax receipt prepared pursuant to NCGS §105-320 in a total original principal 
amount that does not exceed an amount set by the governing; and 

WHEREAS,	the minimal tax amount set by the governing body should be the 
estimated cost to the taxing unit of billing the taxpayer for the amounts due on a tax 
receipt or tax notice; and 

WHEREAS, The Weaverville Town Council has determined the minimal tax 
amount for the Town of Weaverville to be $5.00;  

NOW,	THEREFORE	BE	IT	RESOLVED, that the Weaverville Town Council sets 
the minimal tax for the Town of Weaverville at $5.00 and directs the Weaverville Tax 
Collector not to collect taxes charged on the tax records and receipts that are $5.00 or 
less beginning with the next preceding tax year and continuing until this authority 
and direction is rescinded by action of Town Council or by operation of law; 

BE	 IT	 FURTHER	 RESOLVED, the Tax Collector is to execute this order 
pursuant to North Carolina General Statute §105-321(f) and the Town Clerk is 
directed to deliver copies of this resolution to the Tax Collector and to keep a copy on 
file in the Office of the Clerk to the Board. 

ADOPTED this the 20th day of May, 2019. 
 
 
             
       ALLAN	P.	ROOT, Mayor 
 
 
      
Derek	K.	Huninghake, Town Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

74



2 
 

 
NCGS §105-321 
 
(f) Minimal	 Taxes. – Notwithstanding the provisions of N.C.G.S. §105-380, the 

governing body of a taxing unit that collects its own taxes may, by resolution, 
direct its assessor and tax collector not to collect minimal taxes charged on the tax 
records and receipts. Minimal taxes are the combined taxes and fees of the taxing 
unit and any other units for which it collects taxes, due on a tax receipt prepared 
pursuant to G.S. 105-320 in a total original principal amount that does not exceed 
an amount, up to five dollars ($5.00), set by the governing body. The amount set 
by the governing body should be the estimated cost to the taxing unit of billing the 
taxpayer for the amounts due on a tax receipt or tax notice. Upon adoption of a 
resolution pursuant to this subsection, the tax collector shall not bill the taxpayer 
for, or otherwise collect, minimal taxes but shall keep a record of all minimal taxes 
by receipt number and amount and shall make a report of the amount of these 
taxes to the governing body at the time of the settlement. These minimal taxes 
shall not be a lien on the taxpayer's real property and shall not be collectible under 
Article 26 of this Subchapter. A resolution adopted pursuant to this subsection 
must be adopted on or before June 15 preceding the first taxable year to which it 
applies and remains in effect until amended or repealed by resolution of the taxing 
unit. A resolution adopted pursuant to this subsection shall not apply to taxes on 
registered motor vehicles. 

 

75



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

PRESENTER: 

ATTACHMENTS: 

May 20, 2019 

Comprehensive Land Use Plan Project – Staff Update 

Planning Director/Town Attorney 

None 

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

On April 30, 2019, staff presented a complete draft Comprehensive Land Use Plan to 
the Planning and Zoning Board for its review. The Planning and Zoning Board’s 
entire meeting on May 7th was devoted to the review of this document. They are 
working on prioritizing goals and expect to be ready to present a recommendation 
to Town Council in June.  

One of the most important factors impacting the Comprehensive Land Use Plan is 
the expansion of the Town’s water treatment plant. Town Council is encouraged to 
continue its discussions on this topic so that the Plan can properly reflect any 
decisions made in that regard. The Mayor has set aside a portion of the Town 
Council special called meeting on May 21st for the continuation of this conversation. 

This project remains on schedule and under budget. 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

It would be prudent for Town Council to consult calendars and choose some 
available dates for a joint meeting with the Planning and Zoning Board in July. 

76



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

Date of Meeting:  Monday, May 20, 2019 

Subject:   Request to Set Public Hearing on the FY 2019-2020 Budget 

Presenter:   Selena Coffey, Town Manager   

Attachments:  No  

 

Description: 

In accordance with the North Carolina Local Government Fiscal Control Act, N.C.G.S. § 159-

12(b), Town Council must hold a public hearing on the annual budget. This provides a time 

for public comment regarding the budget prior to its adoption by Town Council. 

 

 

Action Requested: 

As per the established budget calendar, the Town Manager/Budget Officer requests that a 

Public Hearing on the FY 2019-2020 Budget be scheduled for Tuesday, June 11, 2019 at 

6:00pm. In scheduling this Public Hearing, the Town Clerk shall also advertise the Hearing 

per N.C.G.S. § 159-12(a). 

 

 

77



Town	of	Weaverville,	North	Carolina	

Town	Manager’s	Report	

Selena D. Coffey, MPA, ICMA-CM 

May	2019	

1) Saturday	Summer	Series:  As you will recall, I have shared with Council plans for our
“2nd Saturday Summer Series” that will be held in the Main Street Nature Park on the
second Saturdays of June, July, August, and September. I am attaching a draft of the
publicity flyer for your information. These events, which will run from 6pm-8-pm, will
feature performances by local traditional music artists. The first event, on June 8, will
feature Lillian Chase accompanied by her sister, Sara Nell.

A tremendous amount of work has gone it to planning for these events, with more work 
left to be done. Our Public Works Department is currently working on our new stage in 
the Nature Park and our contractors are currently completing their work in constructing 
a new staircase leading to the Park from the municipal parking lot. 

2) Joint	Meeting	with	Planning	and	Zoning	Board:  The Planning & Zoning Board has
requested a joint meeting with Council to discuss the Comprehensive Land Use Plan
(CLUP) goals and objectives as addressed in this consent agenda’s CLUP update. Staff
proposes that this joint meeting be scheduled for Council’s regularly scheduled
workshop on July 9.

3) Mills	River	Assessment	Center:  Straus Developmental Associates has assisted the
Town in its recruitment processes in the past. They have reached out to me to request
that I assist them in the selection process for the Mills River Town Manager on May 30-
31. Therefore, I will be out of the office on these dates, but will certainly be available
should our staff need me.	

4) Walkability	Map:  In accordance with the Town’s Strategic Plan, staff has been working
on developing a walkability map for the Town. See attached draft. We have also been
collaborating with the Weaverville Business Association to develop a parking map for
the Town. I have proposed that these efforts be combined into one, two-sided map. On
one side of the map, we will have a map of the various sidewalks in Town and on the
other side, we will have a more detailed view of parking options downtown. I will
further address this project during the meeting.

5) Facility	Improvements:  As you may recall, the current fiscal year budget included
funds for replacing carpet in Town Hall/Police Department and security cameras for

78



Town Hall/Police Department and Public Works. To date, the security cameras have 
been installed and are operational. We are currently waiting on the carpet installation.	

6) Budget	Workshop:  As a reminder, the next budget workshop is Tuesday, May 21 at
6pm. This budget workshop will focus on the Water Fund and discussion of expansion of
the water treatment plant.

79



   2nd Saturday
Summer Series

Performing Art in the
Weaverville Nature Park

6pm - 8pm

Traditional Tunes
at Twilight

June 8th 
July 13th 
August 10th 
September 14th 

Join your neighbors in the Main Street
Nature Park Meadow from 6pm to 8pm for
traditional music performed by local
musicians. 
Bring a picnic and eat under
the summer sky.

Brought to you by:

Town of Weaverville

DRAFT

80



81



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

Date of Meeting: Monday, May 20, 2019 

Subject: Final Approval of Community Center Plans & Construction 
Budget 

Presenter:  Town Manager and Legerton Architects  

Attachments: No 

Description: 

Town Council has had an opportunity to review the plans that the Town’s contracted 

architectural firm, Legerton Architecture, has been working on with regard to the 

community center project. The initial preliminary cost opinion provided in May 2018 by 

Legerton, estimated a total cost of $2.1 million. Staff expected that inflation costs could 

push the total construction cost up by at least 10% resulting in an anticipated project cost 

of $2.31 million if no other issues were encountered. As the project team (including the 

firm and Town staff) has worked on the conceptual drawings and schematic designs, our 

architects have obtained formal cost projections. 

Legerton conducted a cost projection in May 2019 which concluded that the total project 

cost would be closer to $3.0 million. Upon receiving this cost projection, staff has worked 

regularly with the architects to “value-engineer” the project and now has the project 

estimate down to approximately $2.5 million. 

The Town is at a critical decision point on this project. A final decision needs to be made on 

the design and project budget in order to move forward and adhere to the tentative 

schedule as closely as possible and in order to minimize further increases in construction 
cost. 

Legerton will be attending tonight’s meeting to present the plans based on the current 

design and discuss the cost estimates.  

Action Requested: 

Town Council will be asked to approve the final plans and construction budget at this 

meeting.    

82



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

Monday, May 20, 2019

Action On a Proposed Conditional Zoning District at 37 
Brown Street  

Planning Director 

Proposed Ordinance; Site Plan; Elevations and Floor 
Plans; Code Section 36-84

Date of Meeting: 

Subject: 

Presenter:  

Attachments: 

Description: 

Staff is in possession of an executed conditional zoning district application for the 
property at 37 Brown Street. The application calls for the rehabilitation of an existing 
facility, commonly known as the Weaver College Boy’s Dormitory in such a fashion as to 
create no more than 16 dwelling units within same.   

The Planning and Zoning Board reviewed the application and plans on the nights of 
Tuesday, March 5 and Tuesday, April 2 and has unanimously passed the attached positive 
recommendation related to the project. 

Staff has worked in conjunction with the applicant to conduct the public involvement 
meeting made requisite by Sec.36-84(e)(3) prior to this night's public hearing. 

Action Requested: 

Staff is seeking action which is now appropriate following the public hearing for the 
aforementioned proposed conditional zoning district.  

83



 
 

1 
 

ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE  
CONDITIONAL ZONING DISTRICT DESIGNATED AS CZD-4  

OLD WEAVER COLLEGE DORMITORY PROPERTY AT 37 BROWN STREET 
  

WHEREAS, after proper notice required by law, Town Council held a public hearing on this 
application on May 20, 2019, in accordance with North Carolina law and Weaverville Town Code 
and, thereafter, took action to adopt an Ordinance Establishing a Conditional Zoning District 
Designated as “CZD – 4” for the Old Weaver College Dormitory Property located at 37 Brown 
Street; 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board of the Town of Weaverville has reviewed the 
project and submitted a unanimous favorable recommendation along with its statement finding 
the reasonableness of the project and consistency with the Comprehensive Land Use Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the project consists of the refurbishment and renovation of the historic boy’s 
dormitory of Weaver College into a multi-unit residential building of a maximum of 16 units and 
improvements related thereto; and 

WHEREAS, the project is being developed on that 1.918 acre parcel shown on the attached 
preliminary plat with survey data prepared by Robert K. Brady, Jr., PLS, of Blackrock Surveying & 
Land Design, PC, with a date of 1/18/2019; and 

 WHEREAS, the property is bounded by the public road known as Brown Street to the 
East/Southeast, a public road known as College Street to the Northeast, and private properties to 
the North, West and Southwest,  

WHEREAS, the CZD application was submitted by Margaret S. Ottofey, the property owner, 
through Thomas Wolfe of Saba Holding Group, LLC, her authorized agent; and 

WHEREAS, the property is currently zoned R-2 and a multi-family residential project of 
more than four units requires a conditional zoning district; and  

 WHEREAS, the Town of Weaverville has the authority pursuant to Part 3 of Article 19 of 
Chapter 160A of the North Carolina General Statutes to adopt zoning regulations, to establish 
zoning districts and to classify property within its jurisdiction according to zoning district, and to 
amend said regulations and district classifications from time to time in the interest of the public 
health, safety and welfare; and 

 WHEREAS, Section 36-84 of the Code of Ordinances of the Town of Weaverville establishes 
the procedures and requirements for zoning property to Conditional Zoning Districts; and 

WHEREAS, this project is consistent with the Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan, 
including specifically the stated goals and objectives in the Plan which encourage a variety of 
housing opportunities, and consistent with the use and dimensional requirements of the Town’s 
underlying R-2 zoning district which was designed and implemented specifically to accommodate 
residential uses; and 

84



 
 

2 
 

WHEREAS, the number of units in this project is 16 units which are to house up to 18 
bedrooms, which is well below the number of bedrooms that could be allowed by right under the 
subdivision ordinance within the R-2 zoning; 

WHEREAS, the existing historic building is compliant with the setback requirements for 
the R-2 zoning district and the building height is either in compliance with R-2 zoning or is 
allowed as an existing nonconforming structure; 

WHEREAS, a public involvement meeting was held on May 7, 2019, after proper notice of 
same and the issues that were discussed were as follows: historic nature of the structure, number 
of units and configuration, density, proposed ownership of the units, landscaping and buffering 
plans, parking configuration, traffic volume along Brown Street; and 

WHEREAS, a formal traffic analysis was not conducted as staff believes that the peak hour 
trips would not trigger the requirement stated in Town Code Section 36-25; and 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
WEAVERVILLE THAT: 

1. The zoning classification of that certain real property, which is shown on the preliminary 
plat which shows survey data prepared by Robert K. Brady, Jr., PLS, of Blackrock Surveying 
& Land Design, PC, with a date of 1/18/2019, and which is attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference, is changed from R-2 to Conditional Zoning District and is 
subject to compliance with the conditions set out herein. The official zoning map of the 
Town of Weaverville shall be amended to reflect this change upon the effective date of this 
ordinance. 

2. The following conditions shall apply: 

a. The project is to be constructed consistent with the preliminary site plan and 
historic elevation submitted by the applicant, copies of which are attached hereto 
and incorporated herein by reference. The height of the building may not exceed its 
current height which has been established as 40 feet at the roof ridge as measured 
from the front sidewalk at the front steps of the building. It is recognized that a fire 
escape must be constructed exterior to the existing building. A rear entrance from 
the parking area must be provided with related improvements to facilitate access to 
the building from the parking areas located at the rear and side of the building. 

b. The maximum number of units allowed is 16.  

c. The floor plans that are attached hereto are conceptual in nature and are allowed to 
be changed as long as the number of units does not exceed 16. Sitting areas, 
mailrooms, laundry facilities, storage areas, and other uses which support the 
residential units are allowed as long as they are housed within the existing building 
or garage area. Commercial uses, such as restaurants and shops are not allowed on 
the property.  

85



 
 

3 
 

d. The exterior of the main building must be maintained in such a manner as is 
consistent with the historic aesthetics of the building as shown on the original 
elevation submitted with the application and attached hereto, including but not 
limited to the original façade and old brickwork. The exterior of the garage building 
must be repaired with masonry stucco finish. 

e. Sidewalks are not required within the project or along Brown Street or College 
Street.  

f. All driveways/streets within the project shall be private. Said private 
driveways/streets shall be constructed to Weaverville’s driveway/street standards, 
except that the historic horseshoe driveway in the front of the building off of Brown 
Street is not required to meet those standards. The covenants, conditions and 
restrictions applicable to this project, if any, must include language stating that the 
streets are private and part of the common area of the project, and as such will be 
maintained through the assessments for common expenses.  

g. A minimum of 32 off-street parking spaces, with a minimum size of 9 feet by 18 feet, 
must be provided and must be constructed and maintain in an all-weather 
condition.  

h. One freestanding sign at the entrance of the project is allowed but such sign must 
not be larger than 50 square feet of surface area per side of the sign, for a maximum 
aggregate of 100 square feet of surface area, and must comply with the other 
standards contained in Article VIII of Chapter 36 of the Town’s Code of Ordinances.  

i. Any and all outdoor lighting that is to be installed must comply with Town Code 
Section 36-26, except as specifically provided in this paragraph. All outdoor lighting 
on the property shall be mounted on posts that are no more than 16 feet tall. 
Blocking, shielding and aiming of all outdoor lighting shall be used to minimize light 
trespass on to adjoining residential properties.  The outdoor lighting plan must be 
submitted and approved in conjunction with a zoning permit application. 

j. Landscaping must comply with Article VI of Chapter 36 of the Town’s Code of 
Ordinances. A landscaping plan must be submitted and approved in conjunction 
with a zoning permit application. 

k. Grading must comply with Article XV of Chapter 36 of the Town’s Code of 
Ordinances. A grading plan must be submitted and approved in conjunction with a 
zoning permit application. Compliance with Buncombe County sedimentation and 
erosion control standards is also required. 

l. Landscape buffers or privacy fences or walls between the property and adjoining 
properties are not required but are allowed. The developer has indicated a 
willingness to maintain all trees except for those which must be removed for the 
construction of the driveway or those that are endangering the buildings. 

86



 
 

4 
 

m. Construction related vehicles must be parked on the property and not on the public 
streets or the shoulders of those public streets. All dirt, mud, construction materials, 
or other debris deposited on the public streets as a result of construction activities 
must be removed by the contractor or owner on a daily basis, pursuant to Code 
Section 22-48. 

n.  All construction must be completed within 24 months of the issuance of the first 
permit allowing work to begin on the property. Upon request of the 
owner/developer, Town Council may, in its sole discretion, grant such extension as 
Town Council deems appropriate under the circumstances. 

o. Section 36-84 shall continue to govern the project including, but not limited, to 
those provisions regarding issuance of zoning permits, modifications, appeals, and 
final plat approval. 

3. Guarantee of conditions 

4. That the Town Zoning Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to make the 
changes as herein enacted on the official zoning map with said Conditional Zoning District 
labeled as “CZD-4” and to issue zoning permits for the improvements that are to be made in 
compliance with this Conditional Zoning District. 

5. That if any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance is, for any 
reason, held to be invalid, it will be up to Town Council to determine if the validity of the 
remaining portions of this ordinance is affected.  

6. That all ordinances and clauses of ordinances contained within the Town’s Code of 
Ordinance which are in conflict herewith, are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

7. That this ordinance is effective immediately.  
 
ADOPTED THIS the _____ day of ___________, 2019, with a vote of ___ for and ___ against. 

_____________________________________________________ 
ALLAN P. ROOT, Mayor 

 
_____________________________________________________ 
DEREK K. HUNINGHAKE, Town Clerk 
 

87



88



1

A1

F I R S T   F L O O R   P L A N

SCALE:   1/4" = 1'-0"

KING

QUEEN

KING

QUEEN

KING

TV

W/D

W/D

QUEEN

TV

TV TV

DWDW

DW

TV

QUEEN

DW

DW

QUEEN

Unit 101

858 SF

Unit 102

856 SF

TV

Unit 104

388 SF

Unit 106

477 SF

Unit 103

365 SF

Unit 105

350 SF

12'-6" - 50' MAX DEAD END

1
5

'
-
2

"
 
-
 
5

0
'
 
M

A
X
 
D

E
A

D
 
E

N
D

TWO EXITS FROM FIRST

FLOOR IF MORE THAN 10 OCC

AND 75' OF TRAVEL

DISTANCE - IBC 1021

HORIZONTAL FLOOR ASSEMBLIES

SHALL BE 1 HOUR RATED - IBC 712.3

(CHECK ON STC RATINGS)

NO ELEVATOR REQUIRED -

IBC 1107.2.1

EXIT FROM SECOND FLOOR TO EXTERIOR

TENANT SEPARATION SHALL BE

1  HOUR RATED - IBC 709.3 EX2

(CHECK STC RATINGS)

1 HOUR RATED VERTICAL SHAFT, EXTEND

TO UNDERSIDE OF ROOF DECK - IBC

708.5 AND 707.5

NFPA 13R SPRINKLER SYSTEM SHALL

BE PROVIDED THROUGHOUT THE

ENTIRE BUILDING - IBC 903.2.8 AND

903.3.1.2

ALL CORRIDOR DOORS AND

FRAMES SHALL BE 20M

RATED - IBC TABLE 715.4

ALL STAIR SHAFT DOORS

AND FRAMES SHALL BE 60M

RATED - IBC TABLE 715.4

Corridor

1  HOUR RATED - IBC 1018

Living / Dining

13'8 x 15'3

Living / Kitchen

12'0 x 14'0

Living / Kitchen

12'4 x 14'0

Living / Kitchen

12'0 x 19'6

Bath

Bath

Bath

Bath

Bath

Bath

Bath

Bedroom #2

12'0 x 11'0

Bedroom #1

11'0 x 14'0

Bedroom

9'8 x 9'7

Bedroom

9'8 x 9'7

Bedroom

12'0 x 12'0+

Bedroom

10'0 x 9'0

Mech

Mech

Coat

Closet

Closet

Closet

Closet

Closet

Closet

Closet

MAIL BOXES

Kitchen

13'8 x 9'6

Living / Dining

13'8 x 15'3

Bedroom #2

12'0 x 11'0

Bedroom #1

11'0 x 14'0

Living / Kitchen

12'0 x 19'6

DW

Kitchen

13'8 x 9'6

TV

TV

TV

TV

TV

TV

TV

TV

Mech

Mech

Coat Closet Mech

48'-0" - 50' MAX DEAD END

Bath

EXISTING DOORS TO REMAIN,

SHUT AND LOCK, DRYWALL

OVER DOOR ON INTERIOR SIDE

NEW METAL FIRE ESCAPE

ABOVE

N
O

T
 
F

O
R

 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N

W
 
E

 
A

 
V

 
E

 
R

 
 
 
B

 
U

 
I
 
L

 
D

 
I
 
N

 
G

 
 
 
A

 
P

 
A

 
R

 
T

 
M

 
E

 
N

 
T

 
S

8
3
 
E

v
e
l
y
n
 
P

l
a
c
e

A
s
h
e
v
i
l
l
e
,
 
N

o
r
t
h
 
C

a
r
o
l
i
n
a
 
2
8
8
0
1

SD SET:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

PROJECT NUMBER:

18-088

12.20.18

© COPYRIGHT 2018

WILSON ARCHITECTS

3
0
9
 
k
e
n
i
l
w

o
r
t
h
 
r
o
a
d
,
 
a
s
h
e
v
i
l
l
e
,
 
n
c
 
2
8
8
0
3
 
|
 
 
8
2
8
.
2
5
7
.
4
9
3
0

SITE PLAN

89

AutoCAD SHX Text
wilson 

AutoCAD SHX Text
architects

AutoCAD SHX Text
w2arch.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
A1



1

A2

S E C O N D   F L O O R   P L A N

SCALE:   1/4" = 1'-0"

TV

TV

QUEEN

DW

DW

QUEEN

Unit 205

373 SF

Unit 207

361 SF

Living / Kitchen

12'4 x 14'6

Living / Kitchen

12'4 x 14'6

Bath

Bath

Bedroom

9'8 x 10'0

Bedroom

9'8 x 9'7

Mech

Mech

Closet

Closet

TV

TV

TV

QUEEN

DW

DW

QUEEN

Unit 201

403 SF

Unit 203

359 SF

Living / Kitchen

12'0 x 14'6

Living / Kitchen

12'7 x 15'6

Bath

Bath

Bedroom

10'0 x 10'10

Bedroom

10'0 x 9'7

Mech

Mech

Closet

Closet

TV

TV

TV

DW

DW

Bath

Bath

Mech

Mech

Closet

Closet

TV

QUEEN

QUEEN

Unit 204

359 SF

Unit 202

403 SF

TV

TV TV

KING

QUEEN

TV TV

DWDW

Unit 206

395 SF

Unit 208

492 SF

Living / Kitchen

12'0 x 19'10

Bath

Bath

Bedroom

12'4x 12'4+

Bedroom

10'0 x 9'4

Closet

Closet

Living / Kitchen

12'0 x 19'6

TV

TV

Mech

Living / Kitchen

12'0 x 14'6

Living / Kitchen

12'7 x 15'6

Bedroom

10'0 x 9'7

Bedroom

10'0 x 10'10

38'-4" - 50' MAX DEAD END EXISTING DOORS TO REMAIN,

SHUT AND LOCK, DRYWALL

OVER DOOR ON INTERIOR SIDE

NEW DOUBLE DOOR IN

EXISTING WINDOW OPENING

NEW METAL FIRE ESCAPE

N
O

T
 
F

O
R

 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N

W
 
E

 
A

 
V

 
E

 
R

 
 
 
B

 
U

 
I
 
L

 
D

 
I
 
N

 
G

 
 
 
A

 
P

 
A

 
R

 
T

 
M

 
E

 
N

 
T

 
S

8
3
 
E

v
e
l
y
n
 
P

l
a
c
e

A
s
h
e
v
i
l
l
e
,
 
N

o
r
t
h
 
C

a
r
o
l
i
n
a
 
2
8
8
0
1

SD SET:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

PROJECT NUMBER:

18-088

12.20.18

© COPYRIGHT 2018

WILSON ARCHITECTS

3
0
9
 
k
e
n
i
l
w

o
r
t
h
 
r
o
a
d
,
 
a
s
h
e
v
i
l
l
e
,
 
n
c
 
2
8
8
0
3
 
|
 
 
8
2
8
.
2
5
7
.
4
9
3
0

FLOOR PLANS

90

AutoCAD SHX Text
wilson 

AutoCAD SHX Text
architects

AutoCAD SHX Text
w2arch.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
A2



1

A3

A T T I C   F L O O R   P L A N

SCALE:   1/4" = 1'-0"

W
D

QUEEN

QUEEN

W
D

Bath

TV

TV

TV

TV

Closet

Closet

MechDW

DW

Coat

Coat

Mech

Pantry

Unit 301

827 SF

Unit 302

836 SF

Kitchen

9'0 x 12'8

Living / Dining

14'0 x 19'0

Laundry

Bedroom

11'3 x 13'6

Bedroom

11'3 x 13'6

Living / Dining

25'0 x 14'0

Kitchen

13'6 x 8'0

Laundry

Bath

Corridor

1  HOUR RATED - IBC 1018

ONE EXIT FROM ATTIC FLOOR WITH 4

DWELLING UNIT MAX AND 50' TRAVEL

DISTANCE - IBC 1021 - MIGHT NEED

EGRESS WINDOWS FROM BEDROOMS

ON THIRD FLOOR WITH ONE EXIT

NFPA 13R SPRINKLER SYSTEM SHALL

BE PROVIDED THROUGHOUT THE

ENTIRE BUILDING - IBC 903.2.8 AND

903.3.1.2

NEW STAIR FROM SECOND FLOOR TO

ATTIC

Common Sitting

N
O

T
 
F

O
R

 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N

W
 
E

 
A

 
V

 
E

 
R

 
 
 
B

 
U

 
I
 
L

 
D

 
I
 
N

 
G

 
 
 
A

 
P

 
A

 
R

 
T

 
M

 
E

 
N

 
T

 
S

8
3
 
E

v
e
l
y
n
 
P

l
a
c
e

A
s
h
e
v
i
l
l
e
,
 
N

o
r
t
h
 
C

a
r
o
l
i
n
a
 
2
8
8
0
1

SD SET:

SHEET TITLE:

SHEET NUMBER:

PROJECT NUMBER:

18-088

12.20.18

© COPYRIGHT 2018

WILSON ARCHITECTS

3
0
9
 
k
e
n
i
l
w

o
r
t
h
 
r
o
a
d
,
 
a
s
h
e
v
i
l
l
e
,
 
n
c
 
2
8
8
0
3
 
|
 
 
8
2
8
.
2
5
7
.
4
9
3
0

FLOOR PLANS

91

AutoCAD SHX Text
wilson 

AutoCAD SHX Text
architects

AutoCAD SHX Text
w2arch.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
A3



92



93



94



Sec. 36-84. - Conditional zoning district. 

(a) Intent. It is expected that, in most cases, a general district will appropriately regulate site-specific
impact of permitted use and structures on surrounding areas, however conditional zoning districts
provide for those situations where a particular use, properly planned, may be appropriate for a
particular site, but where the underlying general district has insufficient standards to mitigate the site-
specific impact on surrounding area.

(b) Use permitted. Any use may be considered for a conditional zoning district and shall be established
on an individual basis, at the request of the property owner, according to the procedures of this
section.

(c) Conditions . In establishing a conditional zoning district town council may place conditions on the
property which set individualized standards to the site and a site plan and supporting documents
illustrating said conditions and standards may be included in the ordinance establishing the district.
These conditions which may be established by town council shall only be those which are necessary
for ordinance and plan compliance and shall only address the impacts reasonably expected to be
generated by the project. Said conditions may be proposed by town council or the applicant and
must be mutually approved by town council and the applicant.

(d) Petition of request. Property may be rezoned to a conditional zoning district only in response to and
consistent with a petition of the owners, or agents of the owners of all of the property to be included
in the district and shall be accompanied by an petition, a statement analyzing the reasonableness of
the proposed rezoning request by the petitioner, the established fee, and documentation as required
by the following:

(1) A petition for a conditional zoning district must include a site plan and supporting information
that specifies the actual use or uses intended for the property and any rules, regulations, and
conditions that, in addition to all predetermined ordinance requirements, will govern the
development and use of the property;

(2) A boundary survey and vicinity map showing the property's total acreage, current zoning
classification(s), general location in relation to major streets, date and north arrow;

(3) Existing topography on the site and within 300 feet of the boundary of the site, and the general
nature of the proposed topography contours shown at a maximum of five feet;

(4) All existing easements, reservations, rights-of-way, and any other valid restrictions on the use
of the land;

(5) The number and general location of all proposed structures;

(6) The proposed use of all land and structures, including the number of residential units or the
total square footage of any nonresidential development;

(7) All yards, buffers, screening, and landscaping and sidewalks required within the underlying
zoning district;

(8) All existing and proposed points of access to public streets and the locations of proposed new
streets;

(9) Delineation of areas within the floodplain;

(10) Proposed number and location of the signs;

(11) Proposed phasing, if any, and the approximate completion time for the project;

(12) Traffic, parking, and circulation plans, showing the proposed location and arrangement of
parking spaces and ingress and egress to adjacent streets, existing and proposed;

(13) Photographs of buildings on properties within 200 feet of the subject property establishing the
scale of the buildings within the proposed project with those surrounding;

(14) Information on the height of all proposed structures;

95



(15) Exterior features of all of the proposed development including but not limited to construction
and finishing materials;

(16) Any supporting text and all documents presented shall constitute part of the petition.

(e) Approval procedures for initial CZD. Except as specifically modified by this section, the procedures
to be followed by the town council in reviewing, granting, or denying any petition for a conditional
zoning district shall be the same as those established for general use district zoning petitions under
N.C.G.S. Ch. 160A, Art. 19. The following procedures shall also apply for the approval of conditional
zoning districts:

(1) Initial consideration by town council. Petitions for conditional zoning district shall be initially
reviewed by town council. After its initial consideration of a petition for a conditional zoning
district, town council shall refer the request to the planning board for the full review process as
required by state statute. Initial consideration of such petitions are intended to provide town
council with the opportunity to express their preliminary thoughts related to the petition but shall
not serve as a final determination on same.

(2) Planning and zoning review. Following an initial review by town council as set forth herein and
in section 36-358 all conditional zoning requests shall be submitted to the town planning and
zoning board to determine if approvals of such plans are made in consideration of identified
relevant adopted land-use plans for the area including, but not limited to, comprehensive plans,
strategic plans, district plans, area plans, neighborhood plans, corridor plans, and other land-
use policy documents. A statement analyzing the reasonableness of the proposed rezoning
shall be prepared by the town planning and zoning board for each petition for a rezoning to a
conditional zoning district and submitted to the town council for final action on the request. Due
to the scope and complexities which may be presented by a conditional zoning district request,
the planning and zoning board shall have up to 180 days from its first consideration to submit its
statement of reasonableness and recommendation to town council. If the planning and zoning
board fails to submit such statement and/or recommendation within 180 days then the request
shall be forwarded to town council with a record of the planning and zoning board's comments
and town council is eligible to consider the request and take final action thereon.

(3) Public involvement meeting. Before a public hearing may be held by the town council on a
petition for a conditional zoning the petitioner must file in the office of the town clerk a written
report of at least one community meeting held by the petitioner. The report shall include, among
other things, a listing of those persons and organizations contacted about the meeting and the
manner and date of contact, the date, time, and location of the meeting, a roster of the persons
in attendance at the meeting, a summary of issues discussed at the meeting, and a description
of any changes to the rezoning petition made by the petitioner as a result of the meeting. In the
event the petitioner has not held at least one meeting pursuant to this subsection, the petitioner
shall file a report documenting efforts that were made to arrange such a meeting and stating the
reasons such a meeting was not held. The adequacy of a meeting held or report filed pursuant
to this subsection shall be considered by the town council but shall not be subject to judicial
review. Notice of such a public hearing shall be given to all the property owners within 200 feet
of the property boundaries and in accordance with the provisions of N.C.G.S. 160A-364.

(4) Public hearing. As required by N.C.G.S. Ch. 160A, Art. 19, town council cannot take any action
on a conditional zoning district request until such time as it has held a public hearing that has
been properly noticed.

(f) District approval and ordinance. If a petition for a conditional zoning district is approved, the
development and use of the property shall be governed by the ordinance establishing the conditional
zoning district, the approved site plan for the district, and any additional approved rules, regulations,
and conditions, all of which shall constitute the zoning regulations for the approved district. Each
conditional zoning district will be given a special number, distinguishing such conditional zoning
district from another zoning district. Each ordinance adopted by town council which establishes a
conditional zoning district within the Town of Weaverville is hereby incorporated into this chapter as a

96



separate and unique zoning district and shall be reflected on the town's zoning map. Copies of such 
ordinances shall be kept on file with the town clerk and may be reviewed upon request.  

(g) Time limits. Time limits for the completion of the projects infrastructure and completion of
construction shall be established on an individual basis by town council based upon the type and
scope of development. Extensions to established time frames shall be subject to the approval of
town council.

(h) Phasing of projects. Any project phasing must be reviewed and approved with the conditional
zoning district. Phases must be shown on the site plan that is adopted in conjunction with the
ordinance approving the conditional zoning district and the time periods related to the phasing must
also be addressed in said ordinance.

(i) Guarantee of conditions. At the discretion of the town council, the council may require the property
owner to guarantee the performance or completion of conditions included in the approved conditional
zoning plan. Such guarantee may be in the form of:

(1) A surety performance bond made by a surety bonding company licensed and authorized to do
business in the state;

(2) A bond of the developer with an assignment to the town of a certificate of deposit as security
for the bond;

(3) A bond of the developer secured by an official bank check drawn in favor of the town and
deposited with the town clerk;

(4) Cash or an irrevocable letter of credit; or

(5) A bank escrow account whereby the developer deposits cash, a note, a bond or some other
instrument readily convertible into cash for a specific face value, with a federally insured
financial institution in an account payable to the town.

The amount of the guarantee shall be determined by town council and must be reasonable taking 
into consideration the type and scope of proposed development.  

(j) Judicial review. Conditional zoning district decisions under this section are legislative decisions that
are presumed valid if there is a reasonable basis for the decision.

(k) Future variance request. Property zoned CZD will not be able to apply for a variance on the
approved project.

(l) Maintaining the zoning district. A CZD is a rezoning which represents both a text and map
amendment and as such is maintained after the sale of the property. If the property owner wishes to
change the approved CZD plan, all property owners within the original CZD must apply for a
rezoning or a modification to the CZD as per section 36-84(n).

(m) Modifications. Minor modifications that can be approved by staff are limited to modifications that do
not affect the property lines, do not affect the final plat and which are in substantial compliance with
the approved plans. An extension of any time frame stated within an ordinance designating a
conditional zoning district must be approved by town council but shall otherwise be considered a
minor modification. All other modifications must be approved by town council and are subject to the
procedures set out in section 36-84(n).

(n) Approval procedures for modifications of a CZD. Except for minor modifications that can be
approved by staff or town council as provided in section 36-84(m), the procedures to be followed in
reviewing, granting or denying any requested modification to the approved site plan or the CZD
ordinance shall be the same as those established for approval of an initial CZD except that a public
involvement meeting is not required. Staff is required to notify the mayor and town council of any
modifications that staff has approved or denied.

(o) Final plat approval process. All water, sewer, stormwater infrastructure, and all street, sidewalk, and
similar improvements must be installed and verified as complete by the appropriate authority prior to
final plat review. Once the required infrastructure is complete, the final plat will be reviewed by staff

97



and the planning and zoning board for compliance with the relevant portions of the ordinance 
approving the conditional zoning district for the project. After its review the planning and zoning 
board shall submit a recommendation to town council. Town council must consider the planning and 
zoning board's findings and recommendation and, upon finding that the required infrastructure is 
complete and compliant, shall approve the final plat and authorize the recordation of same.  

Final plats must contain the following language: 

"This plat has been approved as part of a conditional zoning district and all lots shown are subject to 
all the conditions, rules and regulations governing that conditional zoning district and not subject to 
the subdivision ordinance of the Town of Weaverville. Any modification to any lot or improvement 
shown on this plat may only be accomplished as an amendment to the conditional zoning district and 
in accordance with the applicable Code provisions of the Town of Weaverville."  

(p) Issuance of zoning permits. The zoning administrator shall not issue a zoning permit until a final plat
has been approved and recorded.

(q) Noncompliance. In the event of noncompliance by a property owner or any subsequent resale or
lease of a property for use other than that stipulated in the original CZD approval, the property owner
would be in violation of the town zoning ordinance.

(r) Appeal of zoning administrator decisions concerning CZDs. Any determination made by the zoning
administrator regarding the project and/or this conditional zoning district is appealable to the zoning
board of adjustment. Such appeal shall be made in accordance with the procedure set forth in town
code section 36-328(3). In addition, staff is required to notify the mayor and town council of any
appeals related to this project and/or this conditional zoning district proceeding before the zoning
board of adjustment so that town council has the opportunity to participate as a party to the appeal
should it wish to do so.

( Ord. of 8-21-2017(1) , § 1(Exh. A); Ord. of 10-15-2018(1) , § 3) 

98



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

Date of Meeting: 

Subject: 

Presenter:  

Attachments: 

Monday, May 20, 2019

Action On Proposed Voluntary Annexation Petition of 135 
Monticello Road and the Initial Zoning Request of R-12 for 
the Same Property Described. 

Town Attorney / Planning Director 

Ordinance Establishing Annexation and Initial Zoning and 
Survey 

Description: 

During the March 18 meeting of Council the Town Clerk was instructed to investigate the 
eligibility of a proposed annexation and the Planning and Zoning Board was instructed to 
examine the compliance with the Town’s adopted comprehensive land use plan with a 
desired initial zoning of R-12. These actions have occurred and attached you will find 
documentation reflective of same. Staff reports from various departments related to 
service provision within the proposed annexation area have also been provided.

Town Council has conducted a public hearing on the proposed annexation and initial 
zoning of R-12 so this matter is now eligible for action by Town Council.

Action Requested: 

Staff is seeking action which is now appropriate following the public hearing on the 
aforementioned voluntary annexation and the initial zoning of the property to R-12 
should the annexation be approved by Town Council.

99



AN ORDINANCE EXTENDING THE CORPORATE LIMITS  
OF THE TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA –  

RIVERSIDE STUMP DUMP, INC. – +/-19.47 ACRES AT 135 MONTICELLO ROAD 
ANNEXATION #2019-1 

 
 WHEREAS, the Town Council has been petitioned under N.C. Gen. Stat. § 160A-31 to annex 
the area described below and to designated the property as R-12 zoning; and 

 WHEREAS, the Town of Weaverville has the authority pursuant to Part 3 of Article 19 of 
Chapter 160A of the North Carolina General Statutes to adopt zoning regulations, to establish 
zoning districts and to classify property within its jurisdiction according to zoning district, and to 
amend said regulations and district classifications from time to time in the interest of the public 
health, safety and welfare; and 

WHEREAS, Town Council directed the Town Clerk to investigate the sufficiency of the 
petition and the Town Clerk has certified the sufficiency of the petition; 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board has reviewed the requested R-12 zoning 
designation, found it to be consistent with the Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan, and 
submitted a unanimously recommendation in favor of R-12 if the property is annexed; 

WHEREAS, a public hearing on the question of annexation and initial zoning was held in 
the Town’s Council Chambers at Town Hall on May 20, 2019, at 6:00 p.m., after due notice by 
publication;  

 WHEREAS, at the public hearing the residents of Weaverville were given an opportunity to 
be heard on any questions regarding the desirability of the annexation and the zoning request of 
R-12; 

 WHEREAS, Town Council finds that the petition is valid and the public health, safety, and 
welfare of the inhabitants of the Town and the area proposed for annexation will best be served by 
annexation of the area proposed; 

WHEREAS, R-12 zoning is consistent with the Town's Comprehensive Land Use Plan, is 
reasonable and in the public interest; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of the Town of Weaverville, 
North Carolina, that: 

7. By virtue of the authority granted by N.C. Gen. Stat. § 160A-31, the +/-19.47 acres which 
are shown on the survey that is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, 
described in Deed Book 4900 at Page 1080, Buncombe County Registry, and further 
identified as Buncombe County Parcel Identification Number 9733-62-6052, is hereby 
annexed and made part of the Town of Weaverville. Said territory shall be subject to the 
municipal taxes according to N.C. Gen. Sta. § 160A-58.10. 

100



8. From and after the effective date of this annexation ordinance, the area so annexed shall be 
subject to all debts, laws, ordinances, and regulations in force in the Town of Weaverville 
and shall be entitled to the same privileges and benefits as other parts of the Town of 
Weaverville.  

9. The Zoning Map of the Town of Weaverville is hereby amended to establish an R-12 zoning 
classification for the property so annexed. 

10. The property owner is directed to submit to the Town of Weaverville an annexation map 
showing the property so annexed for recordation purposes. 

11. The Mayor of the Town of Weaverville shall cause to be recorded in the Office of the 
Register of Deeds for Buncombe County, and in the Office of the Secretary of State in 
Raleigh, North Carolina, an accurate map of the annexed territory, described in Paragraph 1 
above and shown on the attached survey, together with a duly certified copy of this 
Ordinance. Such a map shall also be delivered to the Buncombe County Board of Elections 
as required by N.C. Gen. Stat. § 163-288.1. 

12. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately. 

ADOPTED THIS the 20th day of May, 2019, by a ____ out of ____ vote. 
 

_____________________________________________________ 
ALLAN P. ROOT, Mayor 
 
ATTESTED BY:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
________________________________________________  ____________________________________________ 
DEREK K. HUNINGHAKE, Town Clerk  JENNIFER O. JACKSON, Town Attorney 
 

101



M
artin B

lank
D

eed B
ook 1607 P

age 174
P

IN
: 9733515734

29

28

H
 &

 K
 P

roperties
D

eed B
ook 4608 P

age 665
P

IN
: 9733627514

C
rystal Jean P

onder H
opkins &

 
A

nother V
enture LLC

D
eed B

ook 4615 P
age 467

P
IN

: 9733721293Leonard F
. P

onder &
 C

rystal Jean 
P

onder H
opkins

D
eed B

ook 4135 P
age 87

P
IN

: 9733722097

H
M

V
H

N
-3V

H
M

 LLC
D

eed B
ook 4375 P

age 108
P

IN
: 9733713521

N
 71

°1
8
'2

7
" W

  1
4
9
1
.3

2
'

N 03°48'43" E

N
o. 5(0.4' ag)

0.75" O
P

(flush)

N
 54

°5
9
'3

4
" E

112.99'

N
 68

°4
0
'4

7
" E

S 38°49'01" W

338.70' Tie only

R
eese C

ap(0.4' ag)

R
eese C

ap(0.4' bg)

LIN
E

B
E

A
R

IN
G

D
IS

T
A

N
C

E

L1

L1
N

 64
°1

5
'4

8
" E

42.28'

L2

L2
N

 37
°4

2
'0

6
" E

18.74'

L3

L3
N

 60
°5

9
'3

7
" E

20.19'
L4

N
 21

°0
4

'0
0
" E

21.23'
L5

N
 62

°1
7

'3
5
" E

6.21'
L6

S
 85

°2
4

'1
3
" E

46.36'

L7

L7
S

 52
°5

3
'4

7
" E

11.64'

L8

L8
S

 06
°1

1
'2

9
" W

10.94'

L9 L9
S

 40
°0

8
'1

6
" E

9.10'

L10

L10
N

 70
°1

2
'2

9
" E

31.97'

L11

L11
S

 89
°4

8
'4

2
" E

34.53'

L12

L12
S

 81
°0

4
'1

1
" E

22.58'

L13

L13
S

 59
°2

8
'1

1
" E

35.78'

S
 67

°3
0
'1

9
" E

S 56
°2

6
'1

0
" E

S 58
°1

1
'2

1
" E

S 45°27'38" E

S
 89

°0
3

'4
2
" E

268.30'

125.82'

S 19°42'42" W

C
urve

R
adius

A
rc Length

C
hord B

earing
C

hord Length

C1

C
1

888.17'
164.06'

S
 28

°0
6

'2
2
" W

163.83'

L14

L14
S

 22
°4

8
'5

1
" W

62.47'

C
2

2017.39'
17.71'

S
 22

°3
3

'4
9
" W

17.71'

N
 21

°3
0

'1
1
" E

58.01' T
ie only

104.53'S 09°48'36" W

S
 63

°5
7

'4
5
" E

19.91'

N
 60

°4
5

'5
8
" W

20.00'

N 27°40'17" E
51.63'

N 05°40'38" E
211.59'

156.74'

S 10°07'01" W

3165 +
/- square feet

0.073 A
cre

*H
atched area depicts an apparent gap

betw
een right-of-w

ay show
n on P

lat B
ook 110

P
age 23 and that described in C

onsent
Judgem

ent  recorded in D
eed B

ook 1284 P
age

693.N
o recorded instrum

ent found granting
right-of-w

ay or conveyance of hatched area to
N

C
 D

epartm
ent of T

ransportation.*
D

etail

A
rea of T

ract
19.397 A

cres
(D

oes not include area of apparent gap)

branch

branch

asphalt

asphalt

pool

porch

barn

shed

block   building

w
am

apa cap(0.1' ag)

w
am

apa cap(0.3' bg)

w
am

apa cap(flush)

S
 35

°0
0

'3
8
" E

26.88' tie only

N
o. 5(0.4' ag)

P
osthole in C

oncrete F
ound

branch goes underground here

branch re-em
erges here

gate

N
 85

°2
6

'3
9
" W

61.61' tie only

barbed wire

chain link

w
oven w

ire

R
ebar w

ith ID
 C

ap F
ound (N

am
e on C

ap)
R

ebar F
ound (S

ize)
Iron P

ipe F
ound (D

escription)
N

o 5 R
ebar w

ith ID
 C

ap S
et (E

H
A

)
U

nm
arked P

oint
C

oncrete R
ight-of-W

ay M
onum

ent
F

ire H
ydrant

U
tility P

ole
G

uy W
ire

S
torm

 S
ew

er M
anhole

W
oven W

ire or B
arbed W

ire F
ence

A
bove G

rade
B

elow
 G

rade
O

pen P
ipe

P
olyvinylchloride

R
einforced C

oncrete P
ipe

agbgO
P

P
V

C
R

C
P

18" RCP

W
ater V

alve

G
as Line M

arker

S
 73

°2
6

' W

1.0' tie only

D
etail

S
ee D

etail A
bove

6" P
V

C
 P

ipe filled w
ith concrete

N
C

 D
epartm

ent of T
ransportation

D
eed B

ook 1284 P
age 693

P
roject N

o. 6.801760
R

ight-of-W
ay M

ap B
ook 1 P

age 300

C
urve T

able
Line T

able

trailer

S
 17

°5
3

'5
1
" W

16.24'

gravel  drive

gate

S
ym

bol and Line Legend

C
hain Link F

ence
W

ood S
tockade F

ence
O

verhead E
lectric Line

O
verhead T

elephone Line

A
bbreviation Legend

E
d H

olm
es &

 A
ssociates

E
H

A

w
oven w

ire

w
oven w

ire

John G
. &

 M
arta L B

odenhorst
D

eed B
ook 1962 page 752

P
IN

: 9733528356

1-story brick, stone &

wood house

w
oven w

ire

M
cM

ahan cap

1"=
10'

S
ee D

etail of H
atched A

rea

edge of pavement

edge of pavement

R
ight-of-W

ay
R

/W

0.5" O
P

(0.3' ag)

brushpile

brushpile
m

ulchpile

stum
ppile

debris (scattered; dense vegetation)

2180

2170

2160

2160

2150

2150

2150

2140

2120

2110

2100

2100

2090

2080

2070

2050

2170

2160
2150

2150

2150

2140

2140

2130

2130

2120

2120

2120

2110

2110

2100

2100

2090

2080

2070

2060

2050

2152

2154
2156

2154

2152

2148

Invert=
2151.2

Invert=
2151.4

Invert=
2148.2

Invert=
2150.5

2156

2152

2152

2154

2156

2156

2154

2152

2152

2058
2056

C
oncrete

row of oaks

30" H
ickory

20" H
ickory

52" O
ak

T
w

in 36" B
eech

20" H
ickory

A
pproxim

ate tie to M
S

D
 m

anhole #110184 located 
near the intersection of G

ill R
d w

ith N
orthridge 

C
om

m
ons P

arkw
ay. M

anhole location based on 
inform

ation obtained from
 M

S
D

 w
ebsite.

S
anitary S

ew
er M

anhole 

S
pigot

W
ell

roof

T
ree (as described) soil 

 road

18" R
C

P
(dam

aged)

Invert=
2148.9

15" RCP

Invert=
2149.2

Invert=
2149.4

porch

pool house

2154

2148

2152

2160

septic tank

2-story block &
w

ood fram
e house

gravel

gravel

gravel

A
pproxim

ate location
of 12" w

ater m
ain

A
pproxim

ate location
of 12" w

ater m
ain

12" W
ater Line (approxim

ate location)

W
oods Line approxim

ate;
draw

n from
 aerial photo.

W
oods Line approxim

ate;
draw

n from
 aerial photo.

G
ill R

oad - S
.R

. 1791
(60' R

ight of W
ay)

Gill Road - S.R. 1791
(60' Right of Way)

S
torm

 S
ew

er D
rain Inlet

S
torm

 S
ew

er P
ipe

S 48°13' E
1115'

edge of pavem
ent from

 aerial photo

D

D

0

Monticello Road - S.R. 1727

(Right of W
ay varies)

330.25'

S
 87

°2
6

'4
5

" E
  1

8
6
.0

6
'

79.62'

S
 75

°0
6

'1
5
" W

31.45' T
ie only

0.5" O
P

(0.8' ag-painted orange)

L4 L5
L6

N
 83

°5
4

'2
5
" E

99.09'

64.36'

S
 69

°4
8
'3

7
" E

88.36'

S 52°08
'1

5" E

92.92'

134.52'

102.48'

254.00'

156.74'
S

 10
°0

7
'0

1
" W

2150

15" RCP
chain link

chain link

w
oven w

ire

barbed wire

w
oven w

ire

chain link

soil piles

S
 66

°5
2
'0

7
" E

2388.83'

(plat bearing)
(ground distance)

deed line (typical)

R
ight-of-W

ay line from
 C

onsent Judgem
ent

D
eed B

ook 1284 P
age 693

R
ight-of-W

ay as show
n on

P
lat B

ook 110 P
age 23

C2A

B

P
lat B

ook  P
age 

P
.B

. P
g.

B
ranch

D
itch

D
eed Line

R
ight-of-W

ay Line

N
ote: G

ravel area approxim
ate; lines

draw
n from

 aerial photo and field observation.

N
C

G
S

 M
onum

ent "G
ill"

NC Grid North

B
o
und

ary & To
po

g
rap

hic S
urvey fo

r

R
o
nnie R

ay
o
f pro

p
erty o

w
ned

 by

S
teve C

. & Jeanna Y. B
ro

w
n

R
EFER

EN
C
ES

P
IN

 9
7

3
3

6
2

6
0
5
2

D
eed

 B
o
o
k 4

3
2

4
 Pag

e 8
9
7

D
eed

 B
o
o
k 1

2
8

4
 Pag

e 6
9
3
 

R
eem

s C
reek To

w
nship, B

unco
m

be C
o
unty, N

.C
.

D
A
TE: 0

5
-0

3
-1

1
 thro

ug
h 0

5
-2

7
-1

1
   

D
R
A
W

N
 B

Y: M
A
B

JO
B
 #1

1
0

7
0

   C
H

EC
K
ED

 B
Y: JD

H

M
artin A

. B
arnes, PLS

C
o
rpo

rate License C
-2

8
0
6

P
.O

. B
o
x 1

7
3

3
5

  A
sheville, N

C
  2

8
8
1
6

8
2

8
.2

2
5

.6
5
6
2

S
C

A
LE 1

" =
 8

0
'

 N
O

TES

1
.

This survey is o
f an existing

 parcel o
r parcels o

f land
.

2
.

To
tal A

rea =
 1

9
.4

7
0
 A

cres.

3
.

A
ll areas calculated

 by co
o
rd

inate co
m

putaio
n m

etho
d
.

4
.

This survey w
as prep

ared
 w

itho
ut benefit o

f abstract title and
m

atters o
f title sho

uld
 be referred

 to
 an atto

rney-at-law
.

5
.

This p
ro

perty m
ay be subject to

 all rig
hts-o

f-w
ay, easem

ents,
reservatio

ns and
 restrictio

ns, w
ritten and

 unw
ritten, reco

rd
ed

 and
unreco

rd
ed

.

6
.

The certificatio
n sho

w
n hereo

n is no
t a certificatio

n o
f title,

zo
ning

 o
r freed

o
m

 fro
m

 encum
brances.

7
.. N

o
 und

erg
ro

und
 utilities w

ere lo
cated

.  C
all 1

-8
0
0
-6

3
2
-4

9
4
9
 

befo
re d

ig
g
ing

.

8
.

N
o
 ho

rizo
ntal co

ntro
l fo

und
 w

ithin 2
0
0

0
 feet.

9
.

B
ased

 o
n g

rap
hical lo

catio
n info

rm
atio

n fro
m

 the N
o
rth C

aro
lina

Flo
o
d
plain M

app
ing

 Pro
g
ram

, the subject p
ro

perty d
o
es no

t lie
w

ithin a sp
ecial flo

o
d
 hazard

 area, as sho
w

n o
n N

atio
nal Flo

o
d

Insurance P
ro

g
ram

 Flo
o
d
 Insurance R

ate M
ap 3

7
0
0
9
7
3
3
0
0
J,

effective d
ate January 6

, 2
0
1
0
.

1
0
.

A
ny stream

s, creeks, po
nd

s, lakes, w
etland

s, etc. lo
cated

 o
n

this pro
p
erty, sho

w
n o

r no
t sho

w
n hereo

n, m
ay be subject to

 buffer 
areas. It is the o

w
ner/d

evelo
per's resp

o
nsibility to

 have the areas 
d
esig

nated
 by p

erso
n(s)/firm

(s) autho
rized

, by the pro
per 

autho
rities, to

 m
ake such d

eterm
inatio

n.

1
1
.

A
ll d

istances sho
w
n hereo

n are ho
rizo

ntal g
ro

und
 d

istances
unless o

therw
ise no

ted
.

1
2
.

A
ll im

p
ro

vem
ents o

n site no
t lo

cated
 fo

r this survey.

1
3
.

C
o
nto

ur interval: M
ino

r - 2
 feet  M

ajo
r - 1

0
 feet

Elevatio
ns based

 o
n published

 elevatio
n fo

r N
C

G
S
 M

o
num

ent
"G

ill" o
f 2

1
2

3
.0

1
' (N

A
V
D

 8
8
).

1
4
.

A
cco

rd
ing

 to
 W

eaverville W
ater D

epartm
ent there is a 1

2
"

w
ater m

ain in the no
rth sho

uld
er o

f M
o
nticello

 R
o
ad

 betw
een fire

hyd
rants and

 ed
g
e o

f pavem
ent sho

w
n.

1
5
.

C
urrent d

eed
 d

escriptio
n includ

es p
ro

perty co
nveyed

 in D
eed

B
o
o
k 1

2
8

4
 P

ag
e 6

9
3

 and
 D

eed
 B

o
o
k 4

3
7
5
 Pag

e 1
0
8
.

1
6
.

B
asis o

f bearing
s fo

r this survey fro
m

 Plat B
o
o
k 1

1
0
 Pag

e 2
3
.

C
o
rners labeled

 A
 and

 B
 w

ere held
 fo

r o
rientatio

n to
 this plat.

V
icinity M

ap
(no

t to
 scale)

P
lat R

eferences:

1
.

Plat o
f "S

urvey o
f: N

ew
 R

ig
ht o

f W
ay A

cq
uisitio

n acro
ss the pro

p
erty o

f D
an Yo

ung
p
rep

ared
 fo

r H
M

V
H

N
-3

V
H

M
, LLC

" d
ated

 M
arch 6

, 2
0
0
7
, by W

ebb M
o
rg

an &
A
sso

ciates, P
.A

.,  G
erald

 W
. S

tevenso
n N

C
PLS

 2
6
6
9
, Jo

b File N
o
. 0

5
0
3
6
-D

-1
1
8
7

and
 reco

rd
ed

 in the B
unco

m
be C

o
unty R

eg
istry in Plat B

o
o
k 1

1
0
 Pag

e 2
3
.

2
.

Plat o
f "B

o
und

ary S
urvey fo

r Jo
hn K

no
x B

rig
m

an R
evo

cable Trust and
 H

 & K
P
ro

p
erties, LLC

", d
ated

 A
p
ril 2

4
, 2

0
0

6
, by Pesterfield

 P.A
., K

even A
. H

o
llar N

C
PLS

4
2

3
9

, File #0
6

5
1

2
 and

 reco
rd

ed
 in the B

unco
m

be C
o
unty R

eg
istry in Plat B

o
o
k 1

1
7

P
ag

e 1
9
9
.

3
.

Plat o
f "S

ubd
ivisio

n o
f A

utum
n H

ills"  d
ated

 A
pril 4

 1
9
9

5
  by R

eese & A
sso

ciates,
P
.A

.  P
hilip

 D
. R

eese N
C

P
LS

 2
6

4
2

, Jo
b N

o
. 9

4
-2

1
7
1
 and

 reco
rd

ed
 in the

B
unco

m
be C

o
unty R

eg
istry in P

lat B
o
o
k 6

4
 Pag

e 9
1
.

4
.

Plat o
f "S

urvey fo
r R

o
bert B

lank" d
ated

 N
o
vem

ber 1
9
8

7
 by M

cM
ahan & R

eese,
P
.A

., B
o
bby M

cM
ahan N

C
P
LS

 2
4

7
5

, Jo
b N

o
. 8

7
-1

4
1
0
 and

 reco
rd

ed
 in the

B
unco

m
be C

o
unty R

eg
istry in P

lat B
o
o
k 5

1
 Pag

e 8
5
.

5
.

N
o
rth C

aro
lina D

ep
artm

ent o
f Transp

o
rtatio

n R
ig

ht-o
f-W

ay Plan S
heet N

o
. 2

0
 fo

r
P
ro

ject 6
.8

0
1

7
6

0
 reco

rd
ed

 in the B
unco

m
be C

o
unty R

eg
ister o

f D
eed

s R
ig

ht o
f

W
ay M

ap
 B

o
o
k 1

, Pag
e 3

0
0
.

D
eed

 R
eferences:

B
o
o
k 1

2
8

4
 P

ag
e 6

9
3

B
o
o
k 4

3
2

4
 P

ag
e 8

9
7

B
o
o
k 4

3
7

5
 P

ag
e 1

0
8

8
0

'
0

'
8

0
'

1
6

0
'

2
4

0
'

E
xit 19

M
onticello  R

oad

G
ill Rd. U.S. 25/70

U.S. 19/23/Future I-26

W
eaver  B

lvd.

Monticello  Road

I, M
artin A

. B
arnes, certify that this bo

und
ary m

ap
 w

as d
raw

n by m
e fro

m
an actual survey m

ad
e und

er m
y supervisio

n (d
eed

 d
escriptio

n reco
rd

ed
in B

o
o
k 4

3
2

4
 P

ag
e 8

9
7

); that the bo
und

aries no
t surveyed

 are d
ashed

and
 d

raw
n fro

m
 info

rm
atio

n in references cited
 o

n p
lat; that the ratio

 o
f

p
recisio

n is 1
:1

0
,0

0
0

; and
 that this m

ap m
eets the req

uirem
ents o

f
The S

tand
ard

s o
f P

ractice fo
r Land

 S
urveying

 in N
o
rth C

aro
lina (2

1
 N

C
A
C
 5

6
.1

6
0
0
). 

This ______ d
ay o

f ____________________, 2
______.

________________________________________
M

artin A
. B

arnes, PLS
 4

2
7
4

D
11-033A

I, M
artin A

. B
arnes, further certify that the to

po
g
raphic survey w

as co
m

pleted
 und

er m
y 

d
irect and

 resp
o
nsible charg

e fro
m

 an actual  g
ro

und
 survey m

ad
e und

er m
y sup

ervisio
n; 

that this to
p
o
g
rap

hic survey w
as p

erfo
rm

ed
 to

 m
eet N

atio
nal M

ap A
ccuracy S

tand
ard

s; 
that the o

rig
inal d

ata w
as o

btained
 o

n 5
-0

3
 thro

ug
h 6

-2
8
-2

0
1
1
; that the survey w

as 
co

m
p
leted

 o
n 6

-2
9

-2
0

1
1

; and
 all co

o
rd

inates are based
 o

n N
.C

. G
R
ID

 N
A
D

8
3
(2

0
0
7
), 

N
A
V
D

 8
8
."

from P.B. 110 Pg. 23

TH
IS

 D
O

C
U

M
EN

T 
O

R
IG

IN
A
LLY IS

S
U
ED

 
A
N
D

 S
EA

LED
 B

Y 
M

A
R
TIN

 A
 B

A
R
N
ES

N
C
. N

O
. L-4

2
7

4
 O

N
 

1
0
-0

6
-2

0
1
1
.

TH
IS

 M
ED

IA
 S

H
A
LL 

N
O

T B
E C

O
N
S
ID

ER
ED

 
A
 C

ER
TIFIED

 
D

O
C

U
M

EN
T.

102



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  May 20, 2019   

SUBJECT: Sale of Old Bus Garage – 13 Central Avenue 

PRESENTER:   Town Attorney 

ATTACHMENTS: Proposed Agreement 
  
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

Staff will report at tonight’s meeting that the Town has an offer to purchase the Town’s 
surplus property located at 13 Central Avenue. The offer has been submitted on the form 
approved by Town Council, was accompanied by the required bid deposit and proposes a 
purchase price of $350,000. This is the highest offer received by the Town after 
advertisement on April 11, 2019, and an opportunity for upset bids in accordance with 
NCGS 160A-269.  

The Town Manager, Public Works Director, and Town Attorney recommend acceptance of 
this offer so that the property can be sold.  

 

TOWN COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Town Council action to accept the bid is appropriate at this time. The following motion 
could be used for such purpose: 

I make a motion that we declare 13 Central Avenue as surplus property, accept the 
offer submitted by Nekko Properties, LLC, for $350,000, and authorize the Mayor, 
Town Manager, and Town Attorney to prepare and execute the agreement and such 
other documents as are necessary to consummate the sale in accordance with the 
agreement. 

  

103



104



105



106



107



108



109



TOWN	OF	WEAVERVILLE	
TOWN	COUNCIL	AGENDA	ITEM	

DATE	OF	MEETING:		 May 20, 2019	 

SUBJECT:	 Personnel Related Policies and  
Proposed Policy and Procedures Manual 

 
PRESENTER:		 	 Town Manager/Town Attorney 
	
ATTACHMENTS:	 Alcohol and Substance Abuse and  

Drug-Free Workplace Policy and Procedures 
 Index to Proposed Policy and Procedures Manual 
 DESCRIPTION:	

The Personnel Policy calls for the Town Manager to establish policies and procedures 
related to employee substance abuse in order to ensure the safety and well-being of citizens 
and employees, and to comply with any federal, state or other laws and regulations. The 
Town Manager and Town Attorney have updated this policy and, just like the other 
personnel-related policies that Town Council has reviewed recently, provide the attached 
draft Alcohol and Substance Abuse and Drug-Free Workplace Policy for Town Council’s 
feedback. It should be noted that in keeping with this recent practice a provision has been 
added to the Personnel Policy that requires the Town Manager to provide Town Council 
with copies of the policies that she has put in place as required or authorized by the 
Personnel Policy on an annual basis.  

Town Council began its work on the Personnel Policy back in March of 2018 and has been 
incrementally making progress on its review. The Town Manager and Town Attorney are 
working towards getting this important project wrapped up with the intended end product 
being a Policy and Procedures Manual with an index similar to the one attached. To show the 
work done by Town Council a column has been added to the attached index to indicate when 
Town Council has reviewed the various policies or provisions. Several of the Articles that 
you have reviewed with the Personnel Policy have been pulled out and are now shown as 
separate personnel related policies, but the content has remained the same. You will also 
note that the index indicates whether the policy has been or is to be adopted by Town 
Council or the Town Manager. 

Staff will be asking for Town Council adoption on the final Personnel Policy and several 
personnel-related policies at its meeting in June with a requested effective date of July 1, 
2019. While Town Council has reviewed each of the component parts of the proposed Policy 
and Procedures Manual, staff would like to give the Mayor and Town Council adequate time 
for its final review. To that end, the proposed Policy and Procedure Manual will be 
completed and sent out not later than June 3, allowing for a full two weeks of review.  

COUNCIL	ACTION	REQUESTED:	

At tonight’s meeting feedback is requested on the Alcohol and Substance Abuse and Drug-
Free Workplace Policy and Procedures, as well as any last direction to the Town Manager or 
Town Attorney concerning plans for the final review of the Personnel Policy and related 
policies which is to occur on June 17, 2019, and adoption of same.  

110



TOWN	OF	WEAVERVILLE	
ALCOHOL	AND	SUBSTANCE	ABUSE	AND	

DRUG‐FREE	WORKPLACE	POLICY	AND	PROCEDURES	

1 
 

Section	1.	Purpose	and	Objectives	

The Town is committed to protecting the safety, health, and wellbeing of all employees and 
other individuals in its workplace and strives to be a drug-free workplace. The Town intends 
to provide a safe and drug-free work environment for its customers and employees.  

All employees are expected to adhere to these policies which are designed to provide a safe 
workplace, discourage alcohol and drug abuse and encourage treatment, recovery and the 
return to work of those employees with such abuse problems.  

The policy includes certain testing requirements and procedures for candidates and 
employees, including those with a commercial driver’s license, as required by the U.S. 
Department of Transportation and the Federal Highway Administration, and outlines the rules 
and regulations regarding what happens if an employee is suspected of drug use and/or has a 
positive test result, and the subsequent course of action.  

No part of this policy, nor its procedures, is intended to affect the Town’s right to manage its 
workplace, to discipline its employees, or to change the “at will” nature of employment with 
the Town. Since it is impossible to anticipate every situation which may arise under this policy, 
the Human Resources Officer should be contacted to resolve any question or situation not 
addressed herein. This contact should be made before action is initiated if at all possible.  

Section	2.	Definitions	

Alcohol	test– A technical analysis of a biological specimen (urine, hair, blood, breath, sweat, 
and/or oral fluid/saliva) to determine the presence of alcohol in an individual’s blood due to 
the intoxicating agent in beverage alcohol, ethyl alcohol, or other low molecular weight 
alcohols including methyl and isopropyl alcohol    

Commercial	Driver’s	License	(CDL) – A special driver’s license issued by the State of North 
Carolina (or other state) indicating that a driver is authorized to operate specialized 
equipment such as semi-trailers, trailers with two or more axles, vehicles with a towing 
capacity, buses, vehicles with heavy load capacity, and vehicles used to transport hazardous 
materials. 

Drug	test – A technical analysis of a biological specimen (urine, hair, blood, breath, sweat, 
and/or oral fluid/saliva) to determine the presence or absence of specified parent drugs, or 
their metabolites, including cannabis (marijuana), cocaine, phencyclidine (PCP), heroin, 
opiates or opioids, amphetamines, but does not include non-controlled over-the-counter drugs 
unless the context indicates otherwise 

Medical	Review	Officer	(MRO)	–	A licensed physician (medical doctor or doctor of 
osteopathy) responsible for receiving and analyzing laboratory results generated by the 
Town’s drug and alcohol testing program, who has knowledge of substance abuse disorders, 
and who has appropriate medical training to interpret and evaluate an individual’s confirmed 

111



TOWN	OF	WEAVERVILLE	
ALCOHOL	AND	SUBSTANCE	ABUSE	AND	

DRUG‐FREE	WORKPLACE	POLICY	AND	PROCEDURES	

2 
 

positive test result, together with his or her medical history and other relevant biomedical 
information. 

Positive	Result – The presence of an illegal drug at a level equal to or greater than the 
threshold value established by the Department of Health and Human Services for federal 
Workplace Drug Testing Program; the presence of an alcohol concentration of 0.04 or greater. 

Prohibited	substances – Illegal drugs and prescription drugs not taken in accordance with a 
prescription given to the employee. 

Reasonable	suspicion – An objectively justifiable belief that is based on specific facts and 
circumstances and reasonable inferences drawn from those facts and circumstances. 

Safety	sensitive	positions – Those job classifications which are entrusted with preserving the 
public health and safety or the safety of other employees; typically have a special responsibility 
to maintain physical and mental fitness for duty at all times while on the job; include, but are 
not limited to: (1) positions requiring the use of weapons, operation of vehicles, machinery or 
equipment as a primary task; (2) positions requiring the handling of hazardous materials, the 
mishandling of which may place the employee, fellow employees, or the general public at risk 
of serious injury, or the nature of which would create a security risk in the workplace; (3) 
positions working on or with large or hazardous equipment; (4) positions requiring the 
potential use of weapons; (5) positions where physical and/or mental fitness is required to 
prevent immediate injury to the public or to fellow employees; (6) positions working with 
youth and/or those required to routinely drive other persons; and (7) other positions as 
required or determined by law, or designated by the Town Manager, as safety sensitive. The 
following are hereby designated as safety sensitive positions: all sworn law enforcement 
officers, all heavy equipment operators, all employees that are required to have a CDL as a 
condition of their job, all certified Fire Department personnel, all employees working at the 
Water Treatment Plant, and all employees working on the water distribution system. 

Section	3.	Applicability	

This policy applies to applicants wishing to secure a position with the Town and all Town 
employees.  

Section	4.		Employee	Assistance	Program	(EAP)	

Employees with substance abuse problems are encouraged to voluntarily seek help. Employees 
may self refer themselves to a medical facility.  

Any employee voluntarily seeking help from management will be referred to the Employee 
Assistance Program. The Town believes an employee who comes forward to report a 
substance abuse problem should be encouraged to participate in a counseling, treatment, or 
rehabilitation program. Employees who avail themselves of this program are subject to 
random testing, at the Town’s discretion, for up to 2 years after successful completion of the 
program. 

112



TOWN	OF	WEAVERVILLE	
ALCOHOL	AND	SUBSTANCE	ABUSE	AND	

DRUG‐FREE	WORKPLACE	POLICY	AND	PROCEDURES	

3 
 

Employees who successfully complete a rehabilitation program will not be penalized for their 
participation. However, any future violations of this policy will result in further disciplinary 
action including dismissal from employment.  

Section	5.	Medication	Use	Reporting	

Employees of the Town that are taking medication that may alter their ability to perform the 
essential duties of their position shall report this to their supervisor. The employee does not 
have to explain what the medication is or what the medication is for. The Town will make 
reasonable attempts to accommodate the employee and their needs during the time period in 
which the employee remains on that medication. 

Section	6.		Prohibitions			

Activities that are expressly prohibited on Town property and in the Town’s workplaces, and 
while conducting Town business, include, but are not limited to, the following: 

a. the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, sale, possession, or use of 
controlled substances; 

b. the unlawful use of prescription drugs; 
c. the possession, manufacture, or delivery of drug paraphernalia; 
d. the solicitation for or sale of narcotics or other illegal drugs or prescription medication 

without a prescription;  
e. being impaired or under the influence of legal or illegal drugs or alcohol, whether on 

Town property or at a Town workplace or not, if such impairment or influence adversely 
affects the employee’s work performance, the safety of the employee or of others, or puts 
at risk the Town’s reputation; and 

f. the presence of any detectable amount of an illegal substance in the employee’s system 
while at work, while on Town property or the property of its customers, or while on 
Town business; and 

g. reporting to work or remaining on duty with an alcohol concentration of 0.04 or greater.  

Section	7.	Drug	and	Alcohol	Testing	Required	

Testing shall be required for all of the following subject to the provisions and procedures 
outlined in this policy: 

a. employees wishing to secure employment with the Town; 
b. employees who are involved in an accident or incident; 
c. employees returning to work following referral, evaluation, and/or treatment for a 

positive alcohol or controlled substances test, and periodic follow-up testing; 
d. employees who are reasonably suspected to be under the influence of drugs,  alcohol, or 

other impairing substance while on the job; 
e. randomly selected employees holding a CDL; and 
f. randomly selected employees working in safety sensitive positions. 

113



TOWN	OF	WEAVERVILLE	
ALCOHOL	AND	SUBSTANCE	ABUSE	AND	

DRUG‐FREE	WORKPLACE	POLICY	AND	PROCEDURES	

4 
 

  
A. Pre‐Employment	Testing – A candidate selected for employment in a safety sensitive 

position or position which requires a CDL will be tested for illegal substances. Other 
candidates may, in the discretion of the Town Manager, be required to submit to a pre-
employment drug test. If the candidate elects to proceed with the testing, he or she will be 
contacted by the Human Resources Officer in order to schedule the test. If the employee 
chooses not to proceed with the testing or the testing yields a “positive” or “dilute 
specimen” result without satisfactory medical explanation and approval, the employment 
offer will be withdrawn. 

B. Post‐Accident/Post‐Incident	Testing – The Town will conduct post-accident or post-
incident drug and/or alcohol testing if there is a reasonable possibility that employee drug 
or alcohol use is likely to have contributed to the accident or incident and for which the 
drug and alcohol test can accurately identify impairment caused by drug or alcohol use. An 
employee involved in an on-the-job accident or incident under circumstances that suggest 
possible use or influence of drugs or alcohol in the accident or incident may in the 
discretion of the Town Manager be required to submit to a drug and/or alcohol test. This 
applies not only to the person who was or could have been injured, but also any employee 
who potentially contributed to the accident or injury in any way. Discretion may be 
exercised by the Town Manager in determining whether testing is required if there is no 
reason to suspect that an employee was actively involved in an accident or incident 
because of alcohol or substance use, except that drug and alcohol testing is required when a 
Town vehicle is involved in an accident and: 

i. there is a fatality or bodily injury requiring medical treatment away from the 
scene (whether or not the employee caused the accident); 

ii. the employee received a traffic citation under state or local law for a moving 
traffic violation arising from the incident; 

iii. one or more of the vehicles involved receives disabling damage requiring 
that the vehicle be towed from the scene. 

Testing for drugs and alcohol should occur within 2 hours of the accident or incident but 
not more than 8 hours following the time of the accident or incident. If the employee is 
unable to be tested within 2 hours, reasons for the delay must be documented. If no alcohol 
test is conducted at the scene and the employee leaves the workplace, the employee should 
not drink any alcoholic beverages for at least 8 hours due to the fact that the Town may still 
call the employee back in for testing. 

Employees may be required to be escorted by another Town employee to a testing facility 
after an accident or incident has occurred. No employee will be allowed to drive 
themselves to a testing facility after an accident or incident has occurred. No employee is 
authorized to operate Town equipment or a Town vehicle until test results are confirmed.  

 

114



TOWN	OF	WEAVERVILLE	
ALCOHOL	AND	SUBSTANCE	ABUSE	AND	

DRUG‐FREE	WORKPLACE	POLICY	AND	PROCEDURES	

5 
 

C. Return	to	Duty	and	Periodic	Follow‐up	Testing	Following	Referral,	Evaluation	
and/or	Treatment	for	Positive	Alcohol	or	Controlled	Substances	Test – As a condition 
of continued employment with the Town an employee that has tested positive for drugs 
and/or alcohol may in the discretion of the Town Manager be required to submit to return 
to duty testing and/or random testing during a period not to exceed 2 years from the date 
of return to work. 

D. Reasonable	Suspicion	Testing – The Town may ask an employee to submit to a drug 
and/or alcohol test at any time it feels that the employee may be under the influence of 
drugs and/or alcohol, including, but not limited to, the following circumstances: 

• Direct observation of prohibited drug or alcohol use 
• Evidence of drugs/alcohol on or about the employee’s person or in the 

employee’s vicinity 
• Unusual conduct on the employee’s part that suggests impairment or 

influence of drugs/alcohol 
• Visible signs of impairment including, but not limited to, slurred speech, 

glassy eyes, strong odor of alcohol or drugs on the employee’s person, 
swaying or staggering, inability to walk a straight line, unusually loud 
speech, abusive language, harassing behavior 

• Physical or verbal altercation 
• Arrest, citation, or deferred prosecution related to drugs/alcohol 
• Behavior that is so unusual that it warrants a report to Town 

management (i.e. confusion, disorientation, lack of coordination, marked 
personality changes, marked appearance changes, irrational behavior, 
negative performance patterns, excessive and unexplained absenteeism 
or tardiness) 

If the Town Manager determines that an employee is either reasonably suspected of being 
under the influence of drugs and/or alcohol or reasonably suspected of drug or alcohol 
abuse, then the employee will be required to submit to a drug and/or alcohol test. 

E. Random	Testing – An employee who is entrusted with preserving public health, public 
safety, or the safety of other employees, has a special responsibility to maintain physical 
and mental fitness for duty at all times, while on the job, off of the job, and while on call. 
Quarterly randomized testing is required for all safety sensitive positions and for all 
positions that require a CDL. For compliance purposes, two groups of employees for 
random testing will be maintained. Town employees holding a CDL or are otherwise 
subject to DOT regulations will be placed in one group. Town employees in safety sensitive 
positions that are not DOT regulated will be placed in a second group. Random testing will 
be conducted on a percentage basis in a fair manner as provided by DOT regulations. Each 
time a random selection is made, every employee will have an equal chance of being 
selected. Random tests will be unannounced and spread reasonably throughout the year. 
Once the selection of the employees to be tested is made, the supervisor shall advise the 

115



TOWN	OF	WEAVERVILLE	
ALCOHOL	AND	SUBSTANCE	ABUSE	AND	

DRUG‐FREE	WORKPLACE	POLICY	AND	PROCEDURES	

6 
 

employee that he or she has been randomly selected for an immediate drug/alcohol test 
and the supervisor may be required to accompany the employee to the testing location and 
wait until the testing is completed. Town employees who are subject to federal or state 
mandated substance abuse testing, including but not limited to DOT regulations, will be 
tested pursuant to such testing requirements notwithstanding this policy.   

Section	8.	Refusal	to	Submit	to	Testing  

Applicants who refuse to submit to a pre-employment test will not be hired. If an employee 
refuses to submit to testing under this policy or attempts to falsify such a test, the employee will 
be subject to appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal from employment. 
In such a case, the employee will be given an opportunity to explain the circumstances prior to 
any final employment action becoming effective.	

Section	9.	Confidentiality	

All information from an employee or applicant’s drug and alcohol test is confidential and only 
those with a need to know are informed of the test results. Disclosure of test results to any other 
person, agency, or organization is prohibited unless written authorization is obtained from the 
employee or applicant, except as provided by law.  

Section	10.	Testing	Procedures	

A. Specimen	Collection	–	An applicant will be required to have the test taken at a Town-
approved testing facility as indicated by the Human Resources Officer and will be required 
to sign and submit a consent form. Return to duty testing must, likewise, be conducted at an 
approved testing facility as indicated by the Human Resources Officer. For post-accident or 
incident, reasonable suspicion testing, random testing, and follow-up testing, an employee 
escort to a Town-approved testing facility may be required.  

B. Testing	Requirements	–	All alcohol and drug testing of employees and applicants shall be 
conducted in compliance with the North Carolina Controlled Substance Examination 
Regulation Act (NCGS § 95-230 et	seq.) or the US Drug and Alcohol Testing Regulations (49 
CFR Part 40), whichever is applicable, and shall be conducted in an approved testing facility 
or laboratory selected by the Town.   

C. Testing	Facilities – To be approved as a testing facility, a medical facility or laboratory must 
have: (1) testing procedures which ensure privacy to employees and applicants consistent 
with the prevention of tampering; (2) methods of analysis which ensure reliable test results, 
including the use of gas chromatography or mass spectrometry to confirm positive test 
results; (3) chain of custody procedures which ensure proper identification, labeling, and 
handling of test samples; and (4) retention and storage procedures which ensure reliable 
results on confirmatory tests of original samples.  

D. Positive	Results – An employee whose drug test yields a positive result shall be given a 
follow-up confirmation test. If the confirmation test results are positive, then the employee 

116



TOWN	OF	WEAVERVILLE	
ALCOHOL	AND	SUBSTANCE	ABUSE	AND	

DRUG‐FREE	WORKPLACE	POLICY	AND	PROCEDURES	

7 
 

or applicant will be notified by the MRO and given an opportunity to respond verbally or 
explain in writing. The Town may, in its discretion, take this explanation into account in 
making any employment related decision. A confirmation of the test results by the MRO shall 
be considered final.  

Section	11.	Communication	of	Negative	Test	Results	

If a drug screening test result is negative, the laboratory will so advise the Human Resources 
Officer, or other designated Town official. Negative test results are available to the employee or 
applicant upon request. 

Section	12.	Communication	of	and	Response	to	Positive	Test	Results	

If the alcohol or drug screening test result is positive, the laboratory will so advise the Human 
Resources Officer, or other designated Town official, and the following action shall be taken: 

a. A job applicant shall be informed of the positive test by the Human Resources Officer and 
the conditional offer of employment will be withdrawn; 

b. A current employee shall be informed of the positive test results by the Human Resources 
Officers who will also inform the Town Manager.  

c. A pre-disciplinary hearing between the employee, the department head, and the Town 
Manager will be scheduled. Procedures described in the Personnel Policy will be 
followed.  

d. Employees who hold a CDL will be subject to the DOT regulations for positive test results. 
The Town will complete and submit Forms CDL-8 or CDL-9, whichever may be 
appropriate. 

e. An employee who tests positive for alcohol with an alcohol concentration of 0.04 or 
greater will be removed from duty for a 24 hour period without pay and will be subject 
to a return to duty test. The return to duty test must indicate an alcohol concentration of 
0.00.   

f. Factors to be considered in determining the appropriate response to a positive test result 
include the nature of the position to which an employee is assigned, the extent of 
performance deficiencies, the seriousness of any accident or incident, the employee’s 
work history, and the existence of past disciplinary actions. Mandatory EAP referral, 
leave (either with or without pay), and disciplinary action up to and including dismissal 
may result. If an employee has previously received a positive test result while employed 
by the Town, any subsequent positive test results (other than the follow-up confirmatory 
test) will result in immediate dismissal. 

g. If disciplinary action is recommended or taken, the employee shall be notified in writing 
and the employee shall be afforded a right to appeal the decision as set out in the 
Personnel Policy. 

117



TOWN	OF	WEAVERVILLE	
ALCOHOL	AND	SUBSTANCE	ABUSE	AND	

DRUG‐FREE	WORKPLACE	POLICY	AND	PROCEDURES	

8 
 

Section	13.	Counseling,	Treatment	and	Rehabilitation	and	Return	to	Work		

Counseling, treatment, and rehabilitation for drug and alcohol issues are eligible for use of sick 
and annual leave to the extent that such leave is available to the employee, otherwise such time 
off is to be without pay.  An employee receiving counseling, treatment, and rehabilitation may 
qualify for voluntary shared leave.  An employee may return to work only after he or she has 
been certified by a treatment facility or substance abuse counselor as being fit to return to duty 
and he or she has produced a negative alcohol and drug test result. As a condition of return, the 
employee may be required to submit to further random drug and alcohol screenings for a period 
not to exceed 2 years from return to work. 

Section	14.	Adoption	and	Effective	Date	

This policy is adopted by the Town Manager pursuant to the Town’s Personnel Policy and may, 
from time-to-time be amended by the Town Manager under that same authority.  This policy is 
effective beginning July 1, 2019, and shall continue in full force and effect until amended or 
repealed. 

ADOPTED	BY the Town Manager on the _____ day of May, 2019. 

 

TOWN	OF	WEAVERVILLE	

 

By:             
 Selena	D.	Coffey, MPA, ICMA-CM 
 Town Manager 

 

118



 

 

TOWN	OF	WEAVERVILLE		
POLICY	AND	PROCEDURE	MANUAL	INDEX	

 
TAB	 POLICY	 COUNCIL	

REVIEWED	
APPROVED	OR	TO	
BE	APPROVED	BY	

1 PERSONNEL POLICY 	 TOWN COUNCIL 
I ORGANIZATION OF THE PERSONNEL SYSTEM 4/16/18 
II DEFINITIONS 4/16/18 
III RECORDS AND REPORTS 4/16/18 
IV POSITION CLASSIFICATION PLAN 5/21/18 
V PAY PLAN 10/15/18 
VI CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT 4/16/18 

4/9/19 
4/15/19 

VII HOLIDAYS AND LEAVE 10/15/18 
1/28/19 
2/25/19 

VIII BENEFITS 10/15/18 
1/28/19 
2/25/19 

IX OPEN DOOR POLICY 3/19/18 
X WHISTLEBLOWER POLICY 3/19/18 
XI ANTI-HARASSMENT POLICY 4/16/18 
XII RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION 5/21/18 
XIII SEPARATION FROM 

EMPLOYMENT/REINSTATEMENT 
3/19/18 

XIV DISCIPLINE 3/19/18 
 XV GRIEVANCE POLICY AND PROCEDURE AND 

ADVERSE ACTION APPEAL PROCEDURE 
3/19/18  

2 PAY PLAN/POSITION CLASSIFICATION PLAN 7/16/18 TOWN COUNCIL 
3 WORKPLACE VIOLENCE PREVENTION POLICY AND 

PROCEDURES 
4/9/19 TOWN COUNCIL 

4 ANTI-HARASSMENT POLICY AND PROCEDURES 4/16/18 TOWN COUNCIL 
5 AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE 

POLICY AND PROCEDURES 
4/15/19 TOWN COUNCIL 

6 GRIEVANCE POLICY AND PROCEDURES 3/19/18 TOWN COUNCIL 
7 FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE POLICY AND PROCEDURES 2/25/19 TOWN COUNCIL 
8 WORKERS’ COMPENSATION POLICY AND PROCEDURES 2/25/19 TOWN COUNCIL 
9 TRAVEL POLICY AND PROCEDURES 4/16/18 TOWN COUNCIL 

10 EMPLOYEE SUGGESTION INCENTIVE PROGRAM 2/25/19 TOWN COUNCIL 
11 VOLUNTARY SHARED LEAVE PROGRAM 4/15/19 TOWN MANAGER 
12 ALCOHOL AND SUBSTANCE ABUSE AND  

DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE POLICY AND PROCEDURES 
5/20/19 TOWN MANAGER 

13 EQUIPMENT AND VEHICLE USE POLICY 4/9/19 TOWN MANAGER 
14 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND INTERNET USE 

POLICY 
4/9/19 TOWN MANAGER 

15 SOCIAL MEDIA USE POLICY AND PROCEDURES 4/9/19 TOWN MANAGER 

119



TOWN	OF	WEAVERVILLE	

TOWN	COUNCIL	AGENDA	ITEM	

	

	

Date	of	Meeting:	 	 May	20,	2019	 	  

Subject:	 	 	 Quarterly Report-Fire Department 

Presenter:	 	 	 Fire Chief	 	

Attachments:	 	 	 Quarterly	Report	  

	

Description:	

Attached please find the quarterly report for the department 

	

Council	Action	Requested:	

No action needed. 

	

120



 

Total Calls For The Quarter ‐             464 
 
  Call Breakdown by Category –  
     
    Fire                11 
    Overpressure, Rupture, Explosion, Overheat   3 
    Emergency Medical          270 
    Hazardous Condition          7 
    Service Calls             68 
    Good Intent Calls            68 
    False Alarms             32 
    Severe Weather            5 
 
Average response Time for all Calls‐  4:25 
 
Responded to 89.36% of all calls within the 8 minute industry standard. 
The calls that make up the 10.64% were mutual aid to neighboring departments or calls where 
we would be requested to stage away until law enforcement determined the scene was safe to 
enter as well as a few that were delayed arrival due to weather and road conditions. 

 
Number of Overlapping Calls ‐   81    Percent of Overlapping Calls ‐   18% 
 
Number of Calls Within Town Limits ‐  217  Number of Calls In NB District ‐  247 
 
Automatic Aid Given – 26      Automatic Aid Received – 5 
 
Total Fire Loss ‐ $19,500        Pre‐incident Value ‐ $6,123,000 
 
Percentage of Fire Loss ‐ .003% 
 
 

121



122



TOWN	OF	WEAVERVILLE	

TOWN	COUNCIL	AGENDA	ITEM	

	

	

Date	of	Meeting:	 	 May 20, 2019 

Subject:	 	 	 Quarterly Report-Police Department  

Presenter:	 	 	 Police Chief 

Attachments:	 	 	 Quarterly Report  

	

Description:	

Attached please find the quarterly report for the department. 
 

 

	

Council	Action	Requested:	

No action needed. 

	

	

123



WPD 
Quarterly Report February-April 2019

• Most all categories listed on the activity chart remained the same 
with little change over the same period of time when compared to 
2018.

• However, calls requiring more than one officer to be on scene (i.e. 
dealing with multiple suspects etc.) increased, as have total number 
of reports taken.

• Arrests average 17 a month.  Approximately 35% of those a persons 
hand an outstanding warrant an Order For Arrest (OFA).

• Total number of police activities/calls for service are averaging 900-
1,100 per month (minus Business & residential checks).

124



February-April 2019 Activity Numbers

17 15 21

26
15 11

55
55 53

85

63 63

116

114
103

February March April*

Arrests Drug Charges Reports Offenses (m) Citations and Warnings

125



Crimes chart February-April 2019

0 0 0

14 15
12

36

22

20

Feruary March April*

Violent crimes (Robbery Rape etc.) Property Crimes (Larceny, Auto Theft B&E) Drug, Weapon, DWI etc. Crimes

126



January-April 2019 Response times

• High Priority Calls- Response to the is urgent (i.e. in progress, weapon 
calls etc.)

• Average Priority Calls- Response to the scene is necessary but not 
urgent.

• Low priority Calls- Action on this type of call is sometimes handled on 
the phone (i.e. someone just needs to speak to an officer) thus the 
there is a shorter response time

• Data for April at 3.9, 3.85 and 3.83 thus the numbers are very close 
on the chart.

127



Response time chart February-April 2019

3.25

4.13
3.9

5.55

7.26

3.85

2.63
2.5

3.83

0

2

4

6

8

February March April
High Priority Average Priority Low Priority 128


	PH - Annexation and Zoning - Riverside Stump Dump - May 2019
	Annexation Petition and Initial Zoning for 135 Monticello - Action Item 5.20.19.pdf
	Annexation Petition and Initial Zoning for 135 Monticello - Action Item.pdf
	135 Monticello (Riverside Stump Dump) Voluntary Annexation and Zoning Map Amendment Application.pdf
	135 Monticello Rd -Riverside stump dump SURVEY.pdf
	Riverside Stump Dump - Certificate of Sufficiency.pdf
	135 Monticello Initial Zoning.pdf

	135 Monticello Staff Report - Admin.pdf
	135 Monticello Staff Report - PW.pdf
	135 Monticello Staff Report - PD.pdf
	RE_ 135 Monticello (Riverside Stump Dump) Annex...


	PH - CZD - 37 Brown Street
	Setting Public Hearing for Proposed 37 Brown Conditional Zoning District.pdf
	Agent Authorizaton for Land Use Development - 37 Brown.pdf

	37 Brown CZD Staff Report.pdf
	Density Analysis.pdf
	Old College Dorm Floor Plans.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	18-088 weaver PLAN-A1
	18-088 weaver PLAN-A2
	18-088 weaver PLAN-A3


	37 Brown Elevations.pdf
	temp58382.PDF
	temp58383.PDF
	temp58381.PDF

	37 Brown Public Involvement Meeting Report.pdf
	37 Brown Public Involvement Meeting Report.pdf
	Affidavit of Mailing - 37 Brown Public Involvement Meeting.pdf
	Affidavit of Posting - 37 Brown Public Involvement Meeting.pdf
	Affidavit of Publication - 37 Brown Public Involvement Meeting.pdf
	37 Brown Public Involvement Meeting Roster.pdf


	April 9 2019 -Town Council Regular Workshop Minutes  - with sdc and jj rev
	April 15 2019-Town Council Meeting Minutes - sdc and jj rev
	Proclamation National Police Week 2019
	Monthly Tax Report for 5-9-19
	Sheet1 (2)

	Initial Review of CZD - 108 Church 5.20.19
	Initial Review of CZD - 108 Church 5.20.19.pdf
	CZD App -Additional and Supplemental Info - 108 Church.pdf
	108 Church Street Plans.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	C-1



	Resolution Concerning Minimal Taxes - May 2019
	CLUP Project - Staff Update - May 2019
	set budget ph agenda item 5-20-2019
	Town Mgrs Report May 2019
	TM Report May 2019
	2nd Saturday Summer Series - Flyer - 2019
	Weaverville_WalkingMap_Draft1

	community center final agenda item 5-20-2019
	Action on CZD - 37 Brown Street
	37 Browm CZD - Action Item 5.20.19.pdf
	Setting Public Hearing for Proposed 37 Brown Conditional Zoning District.pdf
	Setting Public Hearing for Proposed 37 Brown Conditional Zoning District.pdf

	Old College Dorm Floor Plans.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	18-088 weaver PLAN-A1
	18-088 weaver PLAN-A2
	18-088 weaver PLAN-A3


	37 Brown Elevations.pdf
	temp58382.PDF
	temp58383.PDF
	temp58381.PDF



	Action on Riverside Stump Dump Annexation and Initial Zoning
	Annexation Petition and Initial Zoning for 135 Monticello - Action Item.pdf
	Annexation Petition and Initial Zoning for 135 Monticello.pdf
	135 Monticello Rd -Riverside stump dump SURVEY.pdf


	Sale of Old Bus Garage Property - May 2019
	Personnel Related Policies and Proposed Policy and Procedures Manual
	WFD Quarterly Report May 2019
	Agenda Item Summary FD May 19
	Council Report Feb-May 2019
	Prev &  Edu Report Feb-April 2019

	WPD Quarterly Report May 2019
	Agenda Item Summary-Quarterly Report
	Quarterly Report February-April 2019




